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P R O C E E D I N G S  

(Transcript follows i n  sequence from 

Jolume 1.) 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: All r i g h t ,  M r .  Beasley. 

MR. BEASLEY: I call M r .  Brown. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I assume there are no objections t o  

that order change . 
MR. BEASLEY: We have discussed tha t  w i t h  the other 

part ies. 

W. LYNN BROWN 

Has cal led as a witness on behalf o f  Tampa E l e c t r i c  Company 

and, having been duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d  as fol lows: 

DIRECT EXAM I NATION 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q S i r ,  would you please s tate your name, your business 

address, and your pos i t ion  w i t h  Tampa E l  e c t r i  c Company? 

A W i  11 i am L. Brown, D i  rector  o f  Who1 esal e Marketing. 

My business address i s  702 North Frankl in Street,  Tampa, 

F1 orida 33602. 

Q Mr. Brown, d id  you prepare and cause t o  be f i l e d  i n  

t h i  s proceeding an 11 - page document en t i  tl ed Prepared D i  r ec t  

Testimony o f  W .  Lynn Brown? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q I f  I were t o  ask you the questions contained i n  tha t  

prepared testimony, would your answers be the same? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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A Yes, they would. 

MR. BEASLEY: I would ask t h a t  M r .  Brown's prepared 

l i r e c t  testimony be inserted i n t o  the record as though read. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without objection, show M r .  Brown's 
iestimony i s  entered i n t o  the record as though read. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

PREPARED DIRECT TESTIMONY 

OF 

W. LYNN BROWN 

Please s t a t e  your name, 

My name is Lynn B r o w n .  

Franklin Street, Tampa, 

Tampa Electric Company 

address, occupation and employer. 

My business address is 702 North 

Florida 33602. I am employed by 

("Tampa Electric" o r  "company") as 

Director, Wholesale Marketing and Sales.  

Please provide a brief outline of your educational 

background and business experience. 

I received a Bachelors degree in Electrical Engineering 

from Louisiana S t a t e  University in 1972 and subsequently 

joined Tampa Electric. 1 held various engineering, 

operations and managerial positions in Energy Delivery 

from 1973 through 1997. I became Manager of Short Term 

Wholesale Trading in April 1997 and was promoted to 

Director, Wholesale Marketing and Sales in August of 1998 

where I am responsible f o r  sho r t  and long-term wholesale 

power purchases and sales .  
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Q. Have you previously testified before the Florida Public 

Service Commission ("Commission") ? 

A. Yes. I testified before this Commission in Docket No. 

990001-E1 regarding the appropriateness and prudency of 

various purchased power agreements. I also testified in 

Docket No. 9 91 7 7 9 -E1 regarding the appropriate 

application of incentives to wholesale power sales by 

investor-owned electric utilities. 

Q. What is the purpose of your direct testimony in this 

proceeding? 

A .  The purpose of my testimony in this proceeding is to 

describe Tampa Electric's practices in making wholesale 

sales and purchases of electricity. I also describe the 

prudence of making concurrent wholesale sales and 

purchases. Finally, I discuss the appropriateness of the 

company's wholesale sales and purchased power practices 

from the standpoint of retail customers in general and 

interruptible customers in particular. 

Q. A r e  there any general observations you wish to make 

regarding the usefulness of selling and buying power at 

wholesale? 

2 
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A. Yes. Electricity is a unique commodity in that it is 

produced and then immediately consumed. Electric 

utilities are challenged to continuously match their 

power production and purchases with sales. This 

challenge is elevated by the fact that power production 

facilities are added in large blocks which, from time to 

time, result in a surplus or deficit of power. It is 

more economical to add power plants of a size that 

temporarily exceeds the marginal increase in system 

demand. Because of this, utilities enter into wholesale 

sales to make full use of their generating p l a n t s  and, 

from time to time, purchase from other utilities when 

necessary or economical to do so. The overall goal in 

making wholesale sales and purchases is to keep t h e  

overall cost of electricity to retail customers as low as 

practicable. 

Tampa Electric's Wholesale Sales and Purchases 

Q. What circumstances are considered when 

whether to commit to a wholesale sale? 

A. Tampa Electric evaluates its forecasted 

determining 

ava i 1 ab1 e 

generating capacity in excess of installed reserve 

requirements that could be offered in the marketplace. 

3 
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Potential firm sales 

identified and pursued. 

that appear beneficial 

Q. Please describe the types of wholesale sales 

Electric makes. 

A .  Tampa Electr ic  makes separated firm sa les  and 

separated firm and non-firm sales. Currently 

are 

Tampa 

non- 

Tampa 

Electric has 320 megawatts of separated firm wholesale 

sales. Of this amount, 145 megawatts are unit power 

sales and 175 megawatts are requirements sales. These 

sales comprise less than 10 percent of Tampa Electric's 

firm load. These sales are longer than a year in 

duration and, thus, under the Commission's established 

policy, are separated from Tampa Electric's r e t a i l  

jurisdiction. In essence, a sale is separated to remove 

all generating plant and operating expenses associated 

with the sale  from the retail jurisdiction. Since t he  

proposed agency action portion of the  Commission order 

tha t  gave rise to the present proceeding only addressed 

the appropriate regulatory treatment for the revenues and 

expenses associated with non-separated wholesale power 

sa l e s ,  separated firm sales are not being addressed in 

t h i s  proceeding. 
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A. 

Q -  

A. 

Q. 

Please describe Tampa Electric's non-separated wholesale 

sales. 

In accordance with the  Commission's requirements, non- 

separated sales are normally less than a year in duration 

and may be firm or non-firm. 

What types of wholesale power purchases does Tampa 

Electric make? 

From time to .time Tampa Electric purchases wholesale firm 

and non-firm power to augment its existing generating 

assets to economically and reliably meet the needs of its 

customers. The company purchases power on a firm and 

non-firm basis, as necessary, to meet reliability 

requirements or to cover scheduled and unscheduled 

generation outages. The company also purchases power on 

a non-firm basis when it is less expensive than the cost 

of operating its own generating units. In so doing, 

Tampa Elec t r ic  takes  advantage of market opportunities 

that lower the cost of power delivered to Tampa 

Electric's customers. 

Does Tampa Electric make any other types of wholesale 

power purchases? 

5 
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A. Yes. In addition to the purchases I have described, the 

company may, from time to time, make purchases that are 

classified as optional provision or "buy-through', 

purchases for non-firm retail customers taking service 

under interruptible rates. 

Q. A r e  there times when Tampa Electric is unable to purchase 

"buy-through', power on behalf interruptible customers? 

A. Yes. Occasionally Tampa Electric is unable to purchase 

sufficient energy to maintain service to non-firm 

customers and must interrupt their service. Non-firm 

customers may also be interrupted to provide state 

operating reserves as a result of the sudden l o s s  of a 

large generating unit located within the Florida 

Reliability Coordinating Council ( "FRCC" ) region. 

Further, these customers m a y  be interrupted to provide 

emergency interchange service to FRCC member utilities 

that are unable to serve firm native load requirements 

due to insufficient generating capacity. These service 

requirements are described in Tampa Electric's Commission 

approved tariffs governing interruptible service. 

The  Prudence of Simultaneous Sales and Purchases of Wholesale 

Power 

6 
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Q. 

A .  

Q- 

A. 

Are there times when Tampa Electric simultaneously 

purchases capacity and energy for retail customers' needs 

while it is making firm wholesale sales? 

Yes. Tampa Electric currently is serving long-term 

wholesale sales that are separated from the retail 

jurisdiction which yield cost savings to retail 

customers. There are  occasions during the course of 

serving these long-term sales when Tampa Electric 

purchases power to meet reliability requirements and 

lower the company's system operating costs. The fact 

that Tampa Electric purchases power from time to time 

does not detract from the overall beneficial nature of 

its firm wholesale sales. 

Is it prudent f o r  t h e  company to make wholesale sales at 

the same time that it is purchasing capacity and energy? 

Yes. Tampa Electric's capacity and energy purchases have 

augmented its system's generating resources to provide 

reliable service to customers. Capacity and energy is 

sometimes purchased f o r  short periods of time to bridge 

the gap between generating resource additions. 

Additionally, Tampa Electric evaluates long-term purchase 

opportunities against constructing generation to serve 

7 
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native load. If an opportunity i s  advantageous, then t he  

company may elect to purchase, rather than build 

generation. 

Q -  Is it prudent t o  make short-term, non-firm sales 

concurrently with longer-term power purchases? 

A. Yes. Many power purchases require a minimum energy take 

or "energy put'' which may, at times, cause a back down of 

Tampa Electric's generation. A t  these times, short-term 

wholesale sales are made to maintain native generation 

output at optimum levels. The resultant sa l e s  price may 

be more or less than the price for the purchased energy. 

Revenues from short-term sales help defray the cost of 

purchased power. 

Fair Treatment of Interruntible Customers 

Q. How are Tampa Electric's interruptible customers impacted 

by wholesale sales and purchases? 

A. A11 of the company's retail customers, including 

interruptible customers, benefit from the company making 

wholesale sales and purchases. Short and long-term sales 

increase utilization of generating capacity. Retail 

customers benefit from t h e  existence of separated sales 

8 
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since these sales  relieve retail customers of the 

carrying costs of generating plant committed to these 

sales as well as the related operating expenses. 

Revenues from short-term sales are flowed back to retail 

ratepayers. 

Q. Has Tampa Electric interrupted its interruptible 

customers to make any new firm separated or non-separated 

wholesale sales? 

A.  No. The only firm wholesale sales that the company is 

currently making have been in place for a number of 

years. In fact, these same sales were in place last year 

when the Commission concluded, in response to FIPUG's 

"motion for mid-course protection," that FIPUG had 

provided no factual support for a finding that Tampa 

Electric has made wholesale energy sales in violation of 

No 

new firm separated or non-separated sales have been 

entered i n t o  by Tampa Electric and, thus, the company has 

not interrupted interruptible customers to make any new 

sales. 

its interruptible service tariff or applicable law. 1 

Order No. PSC-00-1266-PAA-E1 issued in Docket No. 000001-E1 on July 11, 
2000. 
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Q. Does Tampa Electric have a policy of interrupting its 

interruptible customers in order to make non-firm 

wholesale sales? 

A. No. Tampa Electric has a company policy of not making 

non-firm wholesale power sales at t he  same time it is 

interrupting its non-firm retail customers or making "buy 

through" purchases f o r  them. Whenever interruptions 

appear imminent or "buy through" purchases are necessary, 

existing non-firm sales are ramped out as quickly as 

reasonably poss ib le  or power is bought f o r  the purpose of 

continuing the sale. If power is bought for the purpose 

of continuing t h e  sale, the cost is netted against the 

sale's revenues and retail ratepayers are not impacted. 

Q. Please summarize your testimony. 

A. My testimony described Tampa 

practices as they relate to 

purchase of wholesale electric 

purposes served by our sa les  

appropriateness of making 

Electric's policies and 

the company's sale and 

power. I described the 

and purchases and the 

who1 e sale purchases 

contemporaneous with wholesale sales .  Finally, I 

described how the company makes these sales and purchases 

to benefit Tampa Electric's general body of ratepayers 

10 



. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

2 0  

21 

22 

23 

24  

2 5  

including customers taking interruptible service. 

Q. Does this conclude your testimony? 

A. Yes, it does. 
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BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q 

test  i mony? 

A 

Mr. Brown, would you please summarize your direct 

My testimony describes Tampa Electric's policies and 

practices as they relate t o  the company's sale and purchase o f  

wholesale electric power. 
our sales and purchases and the appropriateness o f  making 

whol esal e purchases contemporaneous w i t h  whol esal e sal es. 
Finally,  I describe how the company makes these sales and 

purchases t o  benefit Tampa Electric's general body o f  

ratepayers, i ncl udi ng customers tak ing  interruptible service. 

I describe the purposes served by 

In particular, my testimony points ou t  t h a t  Tampa 

Electric has not interrupted i t s  interruptible customers t o  
make any new f i  rm separated or nonseparated whol esal e sales. 
No new firm separated or nonseparated sales have been entered 
i n t o  by Tampa Electric. Moreover, Tampa Electric does not make 
nonfirm wholesale power sales a t  the same time i t  is  
interrupting i ts  nonfirm retail customers or when i t  is making 

buy-though purchases for them. 
Whenever interruptions appear imminent or buy-through 

purchases are necessary, any existing nonfi rm sales are ramped 
out  as quickly as reasonably possible or power i s  bought for 
the purpose o f  continuing the sale. 
purpose o f  continuing the sale, the cost i s  netted against the 
sales revenues and t h u s  retail customers are not  impacted. 

I f  power i s  bought f o r  the 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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I n  short, Tampa E l e c t r i c  u t i  1 i zes nonseparated 

wholesale sale and power purchases t o  help u t i l i z e  i t s  system 

and meet i t s  customer needs i n  the most cos t -e f fec t i ve  way 

possible. Thank you. 

MR. BEASLEY: We tender the witness. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Mr. Badders. 

MR. BADDERS: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : M r  . McGee . 
MR. McGEE: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r .  McWhi r t e r  . 
CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q Mr. Brown, on Page 3 o f  your testimony a t  Line 6 you 

t a l k  about how a u t i 1  i t y  system works and you buy large blocks 

o f  power i n  excess o f  your current needs and then you grow i n t o  

tha t ,  i s  t ha t  essent ia l ly  what you are saying? 

A I t h ink  my testimony re fe rs  t o  the fac t  tha t  

blocks and they grow u t i l i t i e s  of ten add generating capacity i n  

i n t o  tha t  generating capacity, yes. 

Q A t  the present time does Tampa E 

substanti a1 excess capacity? 

A Not a t  the present time. 

e c t r i c  have 

Q Does Tampa E lec t r i c  have substantial excess capacity 

a t  any time i n  the foreseeable future? 

A When our Bayside pro ject  h i t s  the l i n e  i n  2003 we 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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w i l l  have excess capacity a t  tha t  point .  

Q Can you give us a b r i e f  estimate o f  what the 

s i tua t ion  w i l l  be a t  t h a t  point  i n  time w i th  respect t o  your 

generating capacity as opposed t o  the t o t a l  demand o f  a l l  o f  

your customers, including demand- side management and other 

nonf i rm customers? 

A I don' t  have the exact numbers. I do know tha t  i n  

addi t ion t o  our reserves tha t  we are required t o  maintain we 

w i l l  have probably a couple o f  hundred megawatts extra above 

tha t  leve l .  

Q A t  the present time your company i s  authorized by the 

Federal Energy Regul atory Commission t o  sell power wi th in  the 

State o f  Flor ida and without the State o f  F l o r i d a  a t  market 

prices? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q Have there been times i n  the l a s t  few years tha t  

Tampa E lec t r i c  would receive more from a wholesale sale than i t  

would receive from i t s  IS customers? 

A I don' t  know. 

Q Can you give us an i nd ica t ion  o f  what the typ ica l  

market p r ice  for wholesale power i s  a t  t h i s  - -  during the 

summer months? 

A 

Q 

A 

Are you r e f e r r i n g  t o  a nonseparated wholesale sa 

A nonseparated who1 esal e sal e, correct. 

Any given hour during the summer i f  the market 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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spikes, and i t  has over the past several years, any given hour 

o r  perhaps a given day you could - - i f  you are s e l l  i n g  i n  tha t  

market you could reap a s ign i f i can t  p r o f i t ,  and tha t  could 

exceed the ra te  a t  which the i n te r rup t i b le  customers are paying 

a t  t ha t  time. 

Q Can you give us an example o f  what the i n te r rup t i b le  

customer would be paying fo r  a megawatt hour compared t o  what 

you could get i n  the market under those spot market conditions? 

A Well, I work i n  wholesale marketing, I ' m  not i n  the 

rates area. My understanding i s  the i n t e r r u p t i  bl e customers 

pay 30 t o  $40 a megawatt hour, something i n  t h a t  neighborhood, 

and t h a t  i s  t o t a l  And, o f  course, the u t i l i t y  has t o  pay fo r  

i t s  costs t o  serve them. So what the net di f ference i s ,  I 

don' t  know what the p r o f i t  is ,  or  the return i s  on that .  But 

a t  any given hour, any given day during the summer i f  the 

market spikes i t  could spike up t o  several hundred do l la rs  a 

megawatt hour. And depending on what your cost i s ,  o f  course, 

your p r o f i t  could be several hundred do l la rs  a megawatt hour, 

perhaps. 

Q And tha t  i s  the amount o f  money you are looking a t ,  

you deduct your incremental fuel costs, which might be $20, and 

the remainder less whatever you have as an incremental O&M cost 

would be considered the gain, and Tampa E l e c t r i c  i n  t h i s  

proceeding seeks 20 percent o f  tha t  gain t o  go above-the-line? 

A I th ink  our pos i t ion i s  t ha t  we seek 20 percent o f  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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the gain. 

:ommi ssion'  s decision 1 ast  year. 

In other words, we are i n  agreement w i th  the 

Q Now, i f  you can purchase power t o  - - i n  the event 

there i s  some kind o f  outage and you aren ' t  able t o  serve your 

IS customer, i f  you can purchase power you can s t i l l  receive 

revenue from tha t  customer and the customer pays the f u l l  cost 

o f  your base charges plus the cost o f  power you purchase t o  

serve the 1 oad? 

A 

Q Yes. 

A Yes. A71 o f  our i n te r rup t i b le  customers have asked 

Are you re fe r r i ng  t o  buy-though power? 

us t o  buy-though power f o r  them whenever there i s  a generation 

shortage. And whatever the cost o f  t ha t  purchased power i s ,  it 

i s  normal 1 y done on short-term, o f  course, whatever tha t  

purchased power i s  i s  passed on t o  them, exclusively t o  them. 

Is tha t  the t o t a l  pr i ce  tha t  the customer pays f o r  Q 
the e l e c t r i c i t y ,  j u s t  the cost o f  replacement power, or do they 

pay you something fo r  your transmission system and your 

general - -  

A 

Q 

I don' t  know exact ly what the ra te  de ta i l s  are. 

Do you know how much prime time res ident ia l  customers 

your company has? 

A Not exactly, no. 

Q Can you give us a general broad indicat ion? 

A I th ink  i t  i s  somewhere i n  excess o f  50,000. 
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And what i s  a prime time customer? 

MR. BEASLEY: Commissioners, I would object. This i s  

beyond the scope o f  Mr. Brown's testimony. And I would 

know which issue o f  the two or perhaps three issues on 

e i t  pertains to .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r .  McWhirter. 

MR. McWHIRTER: Mr. Brown has segregated, he has 

on nonfirm customers, spec i f i ca l l y  i n t e r r u p t i b l e  

customers, but Tampa E l e c t r i c  has many other nonfirm customers. 

They have customers tha t  are on the GSLD r a t e  and then they 

have prime time customers, a l l  o f  whom are subject - - they are 

nonfirm and can be interrupted, and I wanted t o  ask him what 

the impact has been upon the other customers, the impact o f  

buy-throughs have been on other customers i n  the past few 

years. 

d i rec t  testimony. 

It seems t o  me tha t  i t  i s  well w i t h i n  the scope o f  his 

MR. BEASLEY: Commi ssi  oner , buy- though power i s not 
r e a l l y  w i th in  the scope o f  the issues t h a t  are before you. The 

issues are what i s  the appropriate regulatory treatment for the 

fuel and purchased power associated w i th  nonseparated who1 esal e 

sales, and i n  the same issue w i th  respect t o  O&M. And 

buy-though may be something tha t  FIPUG wanted t o  tag onto t h i s  

docket, but i t  i s  not a subject f o r  t h i s  docket. Certainly 

prlme time customers are not a subject o f  t h i s  docket. 

MR. McWHIRTER: Buy-through as I used i t  was not the 
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technical phrase, the buy-though t a r i f f .  

power tha t  i s  purchased i n  order t o  serve the r e t a i l  load 

during times when TECO i s  short on capacity. And they have 

indicated tha t  the i n te r rup t i b le  customers are the only ones 

tha t  are r e a l l y  affected, but you have a very substantial 

number of other customers tha t  are affected by capacity 

shortages. They are also affected by the fuel  costs and they 

also pay fo r  TECO's t o t a l  fuel  cost. So I t h ink  t h i s  i s  a l l  

win the scope o f  Mr. Brown's testimony and ce r ta in l y  worthy o f  

a t  l eas t  b r i e f  exploration. 

I ' m  t a l  k ing about 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I w i l l  al low you a narrow b i t  o f  

l a t i t u d e  i n  i den t i f y i ng  because we are s p e c i f i c a l l y  looking a t  

the treatment o f  costs, having t o  do w i t h  the incremental fuel  

costs and the O&M costs. So please r e s t r i c t  your questioning 

t o  get a t  those par t i cu la r  issues. And I t h i n k  there may be 

some associated - - 
MR. McWHIRTER: I intend t o  do j u s t  tha t ,  Mr. 

Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you. 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q Do you buy power - -  do you know whether you buy power 

i n  order t o  serve prime time customers, or  do you always 

in te r rup t  prime time customers when there i s  a shortage o f  

capaci ty? 

A Sometimes we will buy power t o  serve them and 
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sometimes w e ' l l  i n te r rup t  them. 

Q When you buy tha t  power, i s  the f u l l  cost o f  the 

power tha t  i s  purchased included i n  the fuel cost t ha t  the 

company charges t o  customers? 

A My understanding i s  tha t  - - and, again, I ' m  not i n  

the rates group, the witness a f t e r  me i s  Denise Jordan, who i s  

i n  our rates group. Perhaps she could answer these questions 

bet ter  than I could. But my understanding i s  t ha t  t ha t  

purchased power cost i s  j u s t  put i n  our fuel clause, i t  i s  par t  

o f  the fuel clause. 

Q 

A Thirteen people. 

Q 

How large i s  your department, M r .  Brown? 

And are you paid from wholesale sales revenue o r  are 

you paid from the corporation's general revenues? 

A Our salar ies are based on - -  or ac tua l l y  come from 

Tampa E lec t r i c  Company. We are not paid an incent ive based on 

who1 esal e sal es or  anything 1 i ke that .  

w i th  incremental O&M cost. 

considered as par t  o f  the 

t o  wholesale sales? 

ssue before us today can bes 

Q P a r t  o f  t h i s  case deals 

Is any por t ion o f  your department 

incremental O&M cost a t t r ibu tab le  

A I don' t  know. The O&M 

be addressed by Ms. Jordan. 

Q Do you have any knowledge - - wel l ,  you don ' t  know 

anything about O&M cost, what i s  incremental and so fo r th?  

A No, si r .  
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Q Your company presently has 320 megawatts o f  wholesale 

es which you c lass i fy  as separated sales? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q And how much - - how many megawatts o f  long-term 

capacity purchases do you have? This would be capacity 

A I don' t  know offhand. 

Q Is there anybody appearing i n  

know? Would Ms. Jordan know that? 

A No. No, I have the informat i  

wi th me. 

purchases tha t  are i n  excess of one year. 

t h i s  

n, bi 

case tha t  would 

t I don' t  have i t  

Q You indicated i n  your testimony tha t  Tampa E lec t r i c  

i s  current ly  engaging i n  firm and nonfirm nonseparated 

short-term sales.  I am going t o  - - instead o f  always using the 

phrase nonseparated sales, I am going t o  t a l k  about j u s t  

short-term and tha t  would be synonomous i n  my questioning f o r  

nonseparated. Is t ha t  okay wi th  you? 

A Well, l e t  me address something you said. I th ink  you 

said we are engaged i n  f i r m  and nonfirm nonseparated sales,  i s  

that  what you said? 

Q Yes. 

A 

sales.  We have none going on a t  t h i s  t ime. We do have f i r m  

separated sales going on a t  t h i s  t ime ,  but we do nonfirm 

nonseparated sales. 

We are not current ly  engaged i n  f i r m  nonseparated 
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Q Okay. So on Page 5 a t  Line 11, you say from time t o  

time Tampa E lec t r i c  purchases wholesale f i r m  and nonfirm power, 

but  you don' t  se l l  firm power a t  t h i s  t ime other than your 

separated sales? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q And i n  the par t  of t h i s  case tha t  went toward the 

f i n a l  order tha t  i s  i n  evidence as Exhibi t  5, one o f  the 

F lor ida Power witnesses t e s t i f i e d  tha t  i n  today's market most 

sales have d i f f e r i n g  degrees o f  firmness. Do you know what he 

meant by that? 

A Yes 

Q What? 

A That i s  exactly r i g h t .  The sales do have d i f f e r e n t  

degrees o f  firmness. The firmness o f  the sale could be based 

on a generating un i t ,  the a v a i l a b i l i t y  o f  a pa r t i cu la r  

generating un i t ,  or  they could be based on a p r i o r i t y  o f  

in ter rupt ion,  such as in te r rup t ing  the sale before in te r rup t ing  

i n te r rup t i ng  the s a l e  i n  

customers. There are 

your f i r m  customers, f o r  example, o r  

proportion t o  in te r rup t ing  your f i r m  

various 1 eve1 s o f  f i  rmness . 
Q I see. But you don ' t  have 

A That i s  correct, not a t  t h  

Q And a l l  o f  your short-term 

1 i ke F1 ori da Power and L ight? 

A That i s  correct. 

any f i r m  short-term sales? 

s time. 

sal es are reca l l  ab1 e, j u s t  
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Q An you indicate there i s  a procedure you go 

through - -  
A Well, I'm not speaking on beha 

Light.  I can only speak on our behalf. 

Q She t e s t i f i e d  t o  that .  

A Okay. 

f o f  F lor ida Power and 

Q You said tha t  they a re  recal lable. What procedure do 

you go through t o  reca l l  these sales? 

A If we lose a generating un i t ,  f o r  example, and we are 

engaged i n  a nonfirm nonseparated sale tha t ,  you know, i t ' s  a 

short-term sale, then we may attempt t o  buy power f o r  tha t  sale 

i f  we wish t o  continue the sale. And i f  we buy power f o r  tha t  

sale, then the cost o f  t h a t  power gets charged t o  the sale. O r  

i f  we choose not t o  buy power f o r  the sale, we w i l l  n o t i f y  the 

other party, the buyer o f  our sale tha t  we need t o  cut the 

sale. And we w i l l  cut  it generally a t  the top o f  the next 

hour. Ramp the sale out, i n  other words. 

Q Do you know the process f o r  i n te r rup t i ng  your 

in te r rup t ib le ,  your DSM, and your prime time customers? 

A I am not responsible f o r  that ,  no, I do not. 

Q I f  I t o l d  you subject t o  check t h a t  i t  was done by - -  

MR. BEASLEY: The witness said he i s  not f a m i l i a r  

w i th  that .  

he has no knowledge o f  i t . 

I would object t o  any questions i n  t h a t  area since 

MR. McWHIRTER: That i s  a ra t ional  object ion and I 
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w i l l  accept i t  and w i l l  not pursue tha t  question. 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q I would presume tha t  as your - - you have two kinds o f  

capacity problems, one i s  slow and evolving based on current 

temperature and other weather conditions, and one i s  a forced 

outage. 

go through wi th  respect t o  no t i f y i ng  your nonfirm short-term 

sales tha t  they have got t o  get o f f  the l i n e ?  

I n  the event o f  a forced outage, what procedure do you 

A We immediately contact them, and t h i s  i s  assuming 

t h a t  we have not chosen t o  buy power t o  continue the sale. We 

immediately contact them and l e t  them know t h a t  we are ramping 

the sale out as soon as reasonably p rac t ica l .  And some o f  them 

can f ind  replacement power quickly, t h a t  i s  immediately, and 

some we may have t o  hold the sale f o r  ten minutes, 15 minutes, 

perhaps t o  the top o f  the hour i n  order f o r  them t o  ramp i n  

rep1 acement power. 

Q 
A 

Are they always o f f  the l i n e  by the top o f  the hour? 

Sales are ramped out e i ther  a t  the top o f  the hour or 
across the top o f  the hour. There are a couple o f  d i f f e ren t  

types o f  ramps tha t  are used. 

Q 
A 

What happens i f  they don ' t  terminate t h e i r  demand? 

We cut the sale. We n o t i f y  them we are not going t o  

continue the sale beyond generally the top o f  the next hour. 

Q 
A 

How do you cut  it? 

We1 1 , i n  wholesale, we j u s t  - - we j u s t  send a message 
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t o  our r e l i a b i l i t y  side, the r e l i a b i l i t y  side o f  the house. We 

are funct ional ly  unbundled from r e l i a b i l i t y  as per FERC order. 

And the r e l i a b i l i t y  side o f  the house ramps out the sale as f a r  

as the g r i d  i s  concerned. They handle the actual ramping out 

o f  the sale. 

Q 
A No. No, I don' t .  

Q 

And you don ' t  know how tha t  i s  done? 

Do you know whether or  not the r e l i a b i l i t y  side o f  

your house can j u s t  p u l l  a switch and get r i d  o f  them? 

A No, they d o n ' t  actua l l y  p u l l  a switch. What they are 

doing i s  they are red i rec t ing  tha t  generation t h a t  was directed 

across a t i e  l i ne ,  f o r  example, t o  another - -  t o  a buyer. 

other words, you were s e l l i n g  tha t  power t o  t h a t  buyer through 

a nonfirm nonseparated wholesale sale. They don ' t  cut the 

switch. The generation i s  simply now used t o  serve r e t a i l  

load. 

In 

4 Well, i f  you have got a t i e  l i n e  tha t  has a firm 

separated customer and a nonf i  r m  short-term customer, how do 

you deal wi th  that? 

A 

the  buyer 

They coordinate tha t  w i th  the r e l i a b i l i t y  function o f  

Q O f  the buyer? 

A Yes. 

Q And tha t  t o  your knowledge always occurs w i th in  an 

hour? 
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A To my knowledge, yes. 

Q On Page 9 o f  your testimony you re fe r  t o  FIPUG's 

motion l a s t  year f o r  a midcourse protect ion and you point  out 

tha t  the Public Service Commission found a t  t ha t  time tha t  

Tampa E l e c t r i c  has - -  tha t  FIPUG presented no factual support 

f o r  a f ind ing tha t  Tampa E lec t r i c  has made wholesale sales i n  

v io la t i on  of i t s  i n te r rup t i b le  service t a r i f f  or  applicable 

law.  

make a wholesale sale, would tha t  v io la te  your t a r i f f ?  

If you interrupted an i n te r rup t i b le  customer i n  order t o  

A Not t o  my knowledge. It depends on the type o f  sale, 

but as f a r  as I know, no. 

Q Is there any l a w  tha t  would be v io la ted i f  you 

interrupted one o f  your r e t a i l  customers i n  order t o  s e l l  a t  

market t o  a wholesale customer? 

A Not t o  my knowledge. 

Q Your company pol icy ,  however, i s  t ha t  you wouldn't do 

tha t  even though l a w  doesn't require it? 

A We are  t a l  k ing about nonfirm sales here, nonfi  r m  

nonseparated sales. 

before we in te r rup t  the i n te r rup t i b le  customers. 

I t  i s  our po l i cy  t o  i n te r rup t  the sale 

Q But there i s  no law,  o r  t a r i f f ,  or  other regulatory 

requirement t h a t  i s  i n  place a t  t h i s  time tha t  requires you t o  

make only nonfirm short-term sales. 

short-term sales i f  you want to? 

You can make f i r m  

A Yes. 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r .  McWhirter, you a re  going t o  a 

point  w i t h  t h i s  l i n e  o f  questioning, I assume. 

MR. McWHIRTER: 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: A l l  r i g h t .  

I am about t o  wind up, Mr. Chairman. 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q I f  someone wanted t o  examine your records t o  

determine exactly what was happening with respect t o  those 

transactions, i s  that  publ ic information that  i s  read i l y  

avai lable or  i s  i t  conf ident ia l? 

MR. BEASLEY: Commissioners, I would object t o  tha t  

question. 

involved here and i t  goes i n t o  legal matters pertaining t o  

conf ident ia l i ty ,  which i s  a subject unto i t s e l f ,  as t h i s  

Commission i s  f u l l y  aware. And I would urge tha t  the - -  

I t  i s  w e l l  beyond the scope o f  the two issues 

MR. McWHIRTER: I ' m  not asking him what the l a w  i s ,  

I ' m  asking him how h is  department t r e a t s  it. 

MR. BEASLEY: Well, I d i d n ' t  hear that  i n  the 

question. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: You can go ahead and restate your 

question, M r  . McWhi r t e r  . 
BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q Is the information concerning your d a i l y  transactions 

on nonfirm sales and the interrupt ions o f  them, i s  tha t  publ ic 

know1 edge ava i  1 ab1 e fo r  exami nation? 

A No. It would be avai lable f o r  examination provided 
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the examiner signed a con f iden t ia l i t y  agreement and they were 
an approved examiner, yes. 

Q Let me give you a hypothetical example. Say you have 

50 megawatts tha t  you are on a Tuesday and i t  looks l i k e  r a i n  

i s  forecasted for Wednesday and Thursday, and you make a sale 

of t ha t  50 megawatts a t  $30, and $17.48 o f  t h a t  is  incremental 

fuel cost, and $2.52 cents i s  O&M costs, and you have $10 

dol lars l e f t  over. 

that  $10 l e f t  over, TECO would get $2, or  20 percent, and the 

other $8 would be flowed through the environmental and fuel  

c l  auses? 

Is it TECO's posi t ion i n  t h i s  case tha t  o f  

A We would get the $10 assuming we had achieved the 

three-year benchmark, yes. The $10 p r o f i t  would be s p l i t  80/20 

assuming tha t  we had achieved the hurdle ra te,  the benchmark. 

Q Yes. You had already met your threshold. 

A 

Q 

Yes, tha t  i s  my assumption. 

And then the next day the r a i n  doesn't come and you 

have got a capacity problem, and you go out and buy $125 power 

i n  order t o  meet the demand, not o f  your nonfirm, but o f  your 

f i  rm customers. 

Well, i f  t h i s  $30 sale tha t  we are making i s  A 

nonfirm - - 
Q Yes. Well - -  
A 

Q 

- -  then we would generally cut the sale. 

You would cut the sale rather than purchasing? 
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A That i s  correct. Unless we chose t o  purchase for the 

sale. 

Q Te l l  us the c r i t e r i a  tha t  you have established 

re1 ating those two sales and the point  a t  which you would - - i f  

there i s  power avai lable on the wholesale market, the point  a t  

which you would ask the nonfirm customer t o  c u r t a i l  rather than 

buying the more expensive power t o  serve your r e t a i l  load? 

A 

Q 
I'm not sure 1 understand your question, but - -  
Well, you said tha t  you can buy power f o r  125 and 

serve your load and you can a t  the same time serve tha t  

50-megawatt sale - - 
A Yes. 

Q - - but you said you wouldn't buy t h a t  power, you 

would ramp down the customer. There must be some level  a t  

which you would buy i t  and some level  beyond which you would 

not buy it. 

A Me11 , i f  we are making a 50-megawatt s a l e  f o r  $30 on 
a next-day basis, and I t h ink  t h a t  i s  your scenario, we are 

making it on a next-day basis, and we get i n t o  tha t  day and we 

have t o  buy power a t  $125 because we l o s t  a generating u n i t  or  

whatever, then we w i l l  ramp tha t  nonfirm sale out rather than 

buy the $125 power. 

Q 

A Probably. 

Q 

Would you do i t  i f  i t  cost $35? 

You would ask him t o  ramp down? 
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A Yes. 

Q Well, then i n  tha t  circumstance there wou d - -  i n  

your system there would never be a s i tua t ion  i n  which you would 

purchase power simultaneously wi th  a nonfi  r m  sal e o f  who1 esal e 

power i n  order t o  meet your r e t a i l  demand? 

A We purchase power and we make nonfirm sales a l l  the 

time contemporaneously. We purchase - - generally, we purchase 

longer term power, must take power, options, things l i k e  t h a t  

t ha t  the option i s  struck o r  ca l led on f o r  a period o f  time, so 

i t  becomes a must take. And then i f  we have surplus i n  an hour 

or  two o f  tha t  period o f  time, we may make a contemporaneous 

nonf i r m  s a l  e. That ' s common . 
Q But i n  any event, the cost o f  purchased power t o  meet 

your r e t a i l  load i s  more expensive than the revenue tha t  you 

are receiving from a nonfirm short-term sale, you would always 

cut  out tha t  sale? 

A Not necessarily. It depends on the power tha t  you 

are purchasing and i t  depends on what you purchased i t  for. 

And maybe we are t a l  k ing past each other , but  t o  give an 

example, i f  you purchased power fo r  tomorrow on a 16-hour 

schedule, and the power of schedule s ta r t s  a t  7:OO a.m. i n  the 

morning and runs u n t i l  11:OO p.m. tha t  n ight  a t  a f i xed  pr ice,  

and a t  7 : O O  a.m. i f  you happen t o  have surplus generation, o f  

course i t ' s  a must take purchase, i t  ramped i n  a t  7 :OO a.m., 

but  you have extra generation. 
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The reason you purchased tha t  16- hour schedule was 

fo r  your r e t a i l  customers t o  get over the peak, but you had t o  

purchase i t  fo r  16 hours. So i n  those ea r l y  morning hours you 

had extra generation on your system. And so i t  behooves you t o  

make nonfirm hourly sa les  u n t i l  you need tha t  power tha t  you 

purchased t o  serve a1 1 o f  your r e t a i  1 1 oad. 

That i s  what you would c a l l  a must buy sale? Q 

A Must take, yes. 

Q Must take sale? 

A Excuse me, must take purchase, not sale. 

Q Thank you very much. Okay. Now, under tha t  must 

take purchase tha t  you have - -  i s  i t  possible t h a t  would cost 

you $125? 

A It could. 

Q Now, o f  t ha t  $125, the f u l l  cost o f  tha t  would be 
recovered through your fuel  or  purchased capacity c l  ause, would 

i t  not? 

A Yes. Yes, i t  would. 

Q And the f u l l  cost o f . t h a t  would be paid by the r e t a i l  

customer? 

A Yes. 

Q And so the r e t a i l  customer would be charged $125, and 

f o r  the simultaneous 50-megawatt sale he would receive an $8 

p r o f i t ?  

A I f  you were making t h i s  sale t h a t  you described a t  
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$30, i s  tha t  what you are saying? 

Q Yes. 

A That i s  correct. 

Q Okay. Since the customers pay the f u l l  cost o f  the 

must take power, and the $30 i s  used r e a l l y  t o  reduce some o f  

the hur t  on the customer f o r  having t o  buy tha t  expensive 

power, don' t  you th ink  i t  would be reasonable t o  l e t  the 

customer get the whole 10 rather than j u s t  8 o f  the l o ?  

MR. BEASLEY: Mr. Chairman, t h i s  i s  again going f a r  

a f ie ld .  It i s  readdressing the formula f o r  the incent ive whi 

you have adopted as a matter o f  f inal  agency action. 

done, i t ' s  over, and t h i s  i s  a reevaluation or a reattack on 

tha t  f i n a l  decision, and i t  doesn't re la te  t o  the issues tha t  

are before you. 

It's 

MR. McWHIRTER: I most strongly disagree w i t h  tha t  

interpretat ion.  This i s  exact ly what FIPUG i s  t a l k i n g  about. 

h 

I f  you have a sale i n  which we c a l l  - - I would c a l l  a bai l  -out  

sale and the u t i l i t y  had purchased power a t  a high p r i c e  and 

sold f o r  a low pr ice  i t s  own power a t  the same time, we don' t  

th ink an incentive ought t o  be paid on tha t  k ind o f  

transact- on. And I'm asking him i f  he wouldn't t h ink  tha t  was 

f a i r .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Well, I can agree t h a t  i s  the 
context o f  your question. But I also agree tha t  the only 

aspect o f  tha t  i s  how they a l locate the costs, not whether or 
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not i t  i s  equitable or not. And on h i s  testimony I th ink  those 

are the only two issues tha t  he i s  dealing wi th .  

MR. McWHIRTER: We1 1, he answered how they a1 1 ocate 

the costs, so I won't ask him any more questions, M r .  Chairman, 

and I thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . Thank you. M r .  

Burgess. 

MR. BURGESS: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: S t a f f .  

MR. KEATING: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Commi ss i  oners? Redi r e c t  . 
MR. BEASLEY: Yes. 

RED I RECT EXAM 1 NATION 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q You were asked a series of questions about ba i l -ou t  

power and other p r i o r i t i e s  when you have sales and purchases, 

can you assume t h a t  a u t i l i t y  system has the fol lowing power 

supply resources i n  i t s  po r t fo l i o :  

power contract f o r  100 megawatts a t  $80 a megawatt hour, and 

tha t  i s  must take: i t  has a $75 per megawatt hour CT, 

combustion turbine; and i t  has a $25 per megawatt hour base 
load intermediate un i t .  And tha t  i s  a l l  i t  has on i t s  system. 

How would you c a l l  upon these resources i n  the order 

I t  has a f i r m  purchased 

o f  dispatch sequence, Mr. Brown? 

A You would put the must take a t  the bottom o f  the 
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dispatch stack, because you have no choice as t o  whether or not 

you can dispatch that ,  you must take it. And so even though i t  

i s  the most expensive cost, i t  would go a t  - - i t  would be 

dispatched f i r s t ,  essent ia l ly .  And then on top o f  tha t  you 

would put your $25 base load, and then on top of  t ha t  you would 

put your $75 CT. 

Q 

A 

then the CT. 

I n  which order would you c a l l  upon those resources? 

The must take would be f i r s t ,  then the base load, 

Q Okay. Assume you have got tha t  system, tha t  

purchased power and those two other power resources, and on any 

given day you are being able t o  serve a l l  o f  your load w i th  the 

purchased power and par t  of your base load unit. And you can 

use another par t  o f  t ha t  base load u n i t  t o  make a sale. Le t ' s  

say you s e l l  i t a t  5 megawatts o f  power fo r  $50 a megawatt 

hour. What would be the incremental cost o f  t ha t  sale, M r .  

Brown? 

A Well, i f  you are s e l l i n g  i t  o f f  your base u n i t  which 

i s  - - based on your example i t  i s  described as your incremental 

u n i t  on the stack, then the incremental cost would be $25 a 

megawatt hour. 

Q What would be the d i f f i c u l t y  o f  using, l e t ' s  say, the 

more expensive $80 per megawatt f i r m  purchased power must take 

contract as your incremental cost? 

A Well, the $80 i s  a must take. I t ' s  incremental cost 
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I r e a l l y  zero. And, f rankly,  i f  you use t h a t  as your 

incremental cost, you wouldn't make the s a l e  because the sale 

pr ice i s  $50. It's less than the cost o f  the must take, so you 

douldn't  make the sale a t  a l l .  What you would essent ia l ly  do 

i s  ramp down your base load u n i t  and not make the s a l e  a t  a l l .  

What impact would tha t  have on your general body o f  Q 
ratepayers? 

A It would hur t  them. 

Q How would i t  hur t  them? 

A Well,  by not making the ale, t ha t  i s ,  not being 

incented t o  make tha t  sale you would be ramping down the 

generation and not receiv ing a $25 p r o f i t  because your base 
load incremental cost i s  25, the sale p r ice  i s  50, therefore i t  

vlrould be a $25 p r o f i t .  You would not be reaping t h a t  $25 

p r o f i t  is  what would happen. 

Q Is the a v a i l a b i l i t y  o f  wholesale purchases and sales 

beneficial t o  your general body of ratep, 

A Yes. 

Q How i s  i t  benef ic ia l?  

A Well, i t  u t i l i z e s  generation. 

your resources t o  the best o f  t h e i r  abi 1 

yers? 

It u t i l i z e s  a l l  o f  

t y  a t  the time. 

Q In managing a l l  o f  your purchases and sales, do you 

s t r i v e  t o  do tha t  as e f f i c i e n t l y  and as economical and as 

optimally as you can? 

A Yes. 
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Q You were asked a question about the confidential 

iature and pub1 i c  access t o  documents and other information 

:oncerning your purchases and sales? 
A Yes. 

Q That information i s  always avai lable t o  the 

:ommission f o r  audit and review, i s  i t  not? 

A Yes, t o  my understanding. And the reason I said tha t  

it i s  not avai lable j u s t  t o  the publ ic is tha t  i t  contains 

sensi ti ve market i nformat i on. 

MR. BEASLEY: Thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: There were no exhibi ts.  Thank you. 

MR. McWHIRTER: I would l i k e  t o  ask j u s t  one question 

3n recross. Just one question, M r .  Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I am very leery,  M r .  McWhirter, 

because o f  your esteemed knowledge and s k i l l .  

are going t o  open the door back t o  another round o f  

questioning. 

you need t o  br ing out, but I hope it i s  not going back t o  the 

l i n e  o f  questioning - -  

I ' m  a f ra id  we 

I f  i t  i s  absolutely necessary and something tha t  

MR. McWHIRTER: No, s i r ,  i t  i s  imperative. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. 

RECROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q You said tha t  you would not make the $25 incremental 

s a l e  t o  reduce the impact on your customers unless you were 
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incented t o  do it? 

A No. I said tha t  if the $25 generation, which is  your 

base load generation, was indeed your incremental cost, then, 

yes, you would be incented t o  make the sale because the sale 

p r ice  i s  $50. 

However, i f  you were forced t o  use $80 as your 

incremental cost by some order, then you would not make the 

sale because you would lose $30 on the sale. 

MR. McWHIRTER: I ' m  not going t o  ask another one, 
although - -  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you. You are excused, Mr. 

Brown. 

C a l l  your next witness. 

MR. BEASLEY: I c a l l  Denise Jordan. 

J. DENISE JORDAN 

was ca l led as a witness on behalf o f  Tampa E lec t r i c  Company 

and, having been duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d  as follows: 

D I RECT EXAM I NATION 
BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q Would you please s ta te  your name, your business 

address, and your pos i t ion  w i th  Tampa E lec t r i c ,  please? 

A J. Denise Jordan, 702 North Frankl in Street, Tampa, 

I am the Di rector  o f  Rates and Planning. 

Ms. Jordon, d i d  you prepare and submit i n  t h i s  

proceeding a 12 -page document e n t i t l e d  prepared rebut ta l  - - 

F lor ida 33602. 

Q 
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2xcuse me, I ' m  jumping ahead - -  prepared d i rec t  testimony 

zonsisting o f  s i x  pages? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q I f  I were t o  ask you the questions contained in that  

clirect testimony, would your answers be the same? 

A Yes, they would. 

MR. BEASLEY: I would ask tha t  Ms. Jordan's d i rec t  

testimony be inserted i n t o  the record as though read. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without objection, show Ms. 

Jordan's d i rec t  testimony i s  entered i n t o  the record as though 

read. 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

PREPARED DIRECT TESTIMONY 

OF 

J. DENISE JORDAN 

Q. Please state your name, address, occupation and employer. 

A. My name is J. Denise Jordan. My business address is 702 

I am North Franklin Street, Tampa, Florida 33602. 

employed by Tampa Electric Company ("Tampa Electric" or 

"company") in the position of Director, Rates and 

Planning in the Regulatory Affairs Department. 

Q. Please provide a brief outline of your educational 

background and business experience. 

A. I received a Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering degree in 

1987 from Georgia Institute of Technology in Atlanta, 

Georgia. Prior to joining Tampa Electric, I accumulated 

13 years of electric utility experience working for 

Florida Power Corporation in the areas of rate design and 

administration, demand-side management implementation, 

commercial and industrial account management, customer 

service and marketing. In April 2000, I joined Tampa 

Electric as Manager, Electric Regulatory Affairs. In 
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February 2001, I was promoted to Director, Rates and 

Planning. My present responsibilities include the a reas  

of fuel and purchased power, capacity, environmental and 

energy conservation cost recovery clauses, and rate 

design and analyses. 

Q. What is the purpose of your testimony? 

A. The purpose of my testimony is to address the calculation 

of gains for non-separated wholesale sales. In addition, 

1 will address t he  regulatory treatment of revenues, 

expenses and gains associated with these sales. These 

a re  the outstanding issues that remain after the Florida 

Public Service Commission's ("Commission") proposed 

agency action in Part I11 of O r d e r  No. PSC-00-1744-PAA 

("Order No. 00-1744") issued on September 26, 2000 in 

Docket No. 991779-EI. 

Q. Have you reviewed t he  regulatory treatment of revenues 

and expenses of non-separated wholesale sa les  recommended 

by Commission Staff and approved by the Commission in the 

proposed agency action portion of Order No. 00-1744 that 

gave rise to this proceeding? 

A. Yes, 1 have. 
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Q *  

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q -  

What is Tampa Electric's position regarding that proposed 

regulatory treatment? 

Tampa Electric agrees with the regulatory treatment 

recommended by the Commission Staff and proposed in Order 

No. 00-1744. It is consistent with the approach proposed 

by Tampa E l e c t r i c  in Docket No. 991779-EI, and we believe 

it to be reasonable. 

Is it appropriate for Tampa Electric to credit any 

incremental operating and maintenance ( "O&MN) costs to 

the fuel and purchased power cost recovery clause ("Fuel 

Clause" ) ? 

No. An amount equal to all incremental O&M costs 

attributed to t h e  sa le  should be credited to operating 

revenues because Tampa Electric does not have any 

associated fuel-related O&M expenses charged to the  Fuel 

Clause. 

Does the company make non-firm wholesale power sales 

while simultaneously making optional provision or "buy- 

through" purchases t o  serve its non-f irm retail 

customers? 

3 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

1 7  

18 

19 

20 

21 

2 2  

23 

24 

25 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Tampa Electric has a company policy of not making non- 

firm wholesale power sales at the same time it is making 

optional provision or 'Ibuy-through'l purchases for its 

non-firm retail customers. As explained fully in the 

direct testimony of Tampa Electric's witness W. Lynn 

Brown, there may be occasions of overlap due to 

operational issues that must be considered. 

Are Tampa Electric's non-firm retail customers required 

to purchase "buy-throughll power to avoid interruptions? 

No. Tampa Electric's interruptible retail tariffs 

include an optional provision f o r  I1buy-throughii power 

purchases t h a t  is entirely voluntary on the part of t h e  

customer. This provision is exercised entirely at the 

customer's discretion and direction. All of Tampa 

customers taking service under the interruptible service 

rates have requested this option. 

A r e  there times when it is appropriate for Tampa Electric 

to make non-separated wholesale sales while purchasing 

power to serve firm and non-firm retail customers even 

though the price of t h e  purchased power is greater than 

the price of the power being sold? 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. The company purchases power based upon its 

forecasted needs to serve retail customers. The I company 

also purchases power at t h e  request of interruptible 

customers in lieu their being interrupted. The company 

makes non-separated wholesale sales based upon generation 

and purchased power in excess of retail customers’ needs. 

Gains from these sales benefit all retail ratepayers. 

According to witness Brown, there are instances when the 

company makes wholesale sales when proceeds from these 

sa les  are less than the cost of purchased power f o r  

various reasons. Had the company not made the sales, the 

entire cost of purchased power would have been borne by 

retail ratepayers. By making non-separated sales even 

when the wholesale sales proceeds are  less than  the 

purchased power costs, the total costs are minimized. 

These actions are appropriate, prudent and in t h e  best 

interest of ratepayers. 

When calculating the incremental fuel costs to be 

credited to the Fuel Clause, should the cost of purchased 

power be considered in the  event the company is 

purchasing power for r e t a i l  customers at the same time it 

is making a non-separated wholesale sale? 

No. For reasons stated above, t he  appropriate fuel costs 

5 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

to consider are simply 

generating t he  energy f o r  

t h e  

t h e  

incremental 

sale. 

Q. Does that conclude your testimony? 

A. Yes, it does. 

fuel costs 

6 



1 

2 

3 
4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

142 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q Would you please summarize your d i r e c t  testimony, Ms. 

Jordan? 

A As my testimony explains. Tampa E l e c t r i c  agrees w i th  

the regulatory treatment recommended by the Commission s t a f f  

and proposed by the Commission i n  Order Number 001744. 

consistent wi th  the approach Tampa E l e c t r i c  proposed i n  Docket 

Number 991779, and we believe i t  t o  be reasonable. 

It i s  

Tampa E lec t r i c  believes tha t  each IOU should c red i t  

i t s  fuel and purchased power cost recovery clause f o r  an amount 

equal t o  the incremental fuel cost o f  generating the energy fo r  

such sales. With respect t o  O&M, Tampa E l e c t r i c  believes each 

IOU should c red i t  i t s  operating revenues fo r  an amount equal t o  

the incremental O&M cost of  the generating energy f o r  each such 

sale. With respect t o  implementation o f  the incent ive 

mechani sm approved by the Commi ss i  on i n Order Number PSC - 1744 . 
Tampa E lec t r i c  agrees w i th  the implementation methodology set  

f o r t h  i n  the Commission s t a f f ' s  September 22nd, 2000 memorandum 

issued i n  the fuel adjustment docket. 

That concl udes my testimony. 

MR. BEASLEY: Thank you. We tender the  witness f o r  

cross. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . M r .  Badders. 

MR. BADDERS: No questions . 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS : M r  . McGee. 
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MR. McGEE: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r  . McWhi r t e r  . 
CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q Ms. Jordan, I have handed you two documents; one i s  

the testimony tha t  you f i l e d  l a s t  week w i th  respect t o  your 

actual capacity cost recovery and your estimated true-up fo r  

the r e s t  o f  the year. Do you recognize that? 

A Yes. 

Q And the second document i s  a FIPUG exh ib i t  - - 
MR. CHILDS: Which, M r .  Chairman, i f  you w i l l  give me 

a number, I w i l l  mark i t  f o r  i den t i f i ca t i on .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: I s  tha t  6? 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Yes. Show t h i s  marked as 

Exhib i t  6. 

MR. BEASLEY: Mr . McWhi r t e r  , could you d i  f f e ren t i  ate 

between which o f  these two is  being marked Exh ib i t  6. 

MR. McWHIRTER: You have t o  open the f i r s t  page and 

you w i l l  see where down a t  the lower r ight-hand corner i t  says 

received August the 21st, t h a t  i s  Exhib i t  6. 

(Exhibi t  6 marked f o r  i den t i f i ca t i on . )  

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q Ms. Jordan, i f  you look a t  Exh ib i t  6 and would you 

confirm tha t  the pages I have extracted are t r u e  and accurate 

extracts from the exh ib i t  tha t  you f i l e d  w i th  the Commission? 
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A Yes, they are.  

Q Ms. Jordan, Schedule E6 indicates the amount o f  power 

that  Tampa E lec t r i c  Company anticipates t h a t  i t  w i l l  s e l l  t h i s  

year on the wholesale market. And i f  you look a t  the very 

bottom o f  the page i t  has a Bates mark 15 on it. You w i l l  see 

the d i f f e ren t  types o f  sales and the amount o f  money received 

on each one, and i t  has a fuel cost and a t o t a l  cost. Do you 

see tha t?  

A Yes. 

Q Okay. Now, which o f  those sales would be c l a s s i f i e d  

as nonseparated sales tha t  are the subject matter o f  inqu i ry  i n  

t h i s  case? 

A The various, j u r i sd i c t i ona l ,  market-based. 

Q 

A It i s  Column 2, what i s  i d e n t i f i e d  as various. 

Would you say tha t  again, please, I d i d n ’ t  hear you? 

Q Uh-huh. 

A Going across sold t o ,  j u r i sd i c t i ona l ,  type and 

schedule, market - based. 

Q Okay. Would Schedule J be a nonseparated sale? 

A The Schedule J t ha t  i s  shown there i s  r e a l l y  as a 

resu l t  o f  the open access transmission tariff, i t  i s  anc i l l a ry  

service tha t  i s bei ng provided t o  i ndependent power producers 

tha t  are wheel i ng through our servi ce area. 

Q Okay. And Schedule D would be included? 

A Yes, it i s  nonseparated. 
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Now, those are FMPA sales and you are not making Q 
those anymore, i s  t ha t  correct? 

A 

Q Now, there i s  a difference i n  the market-based sales, 

We are not making those anymore. 

you get instead o f  3.548, I'm going t o  say $35.48 a megawatt 

hour i s  the fuel cost you get on these sales and $38 i s  the 

t o t a l  cost. What i s  the cost tha t  you are i den t i f y i ng  there 

tha t  i s  more than the fuel cost? 

A The t o t a l  cost includes the O&M. 
Q A l l  r i g h t .  So i n  t h i s  case when we are ta l k ing  about 

O&M, the dif ference between those two columns i s  the amount o f  

money - -  

A 

Q 
Is the var iable O&M associated w i th  making the sale. 

So tha t  money would flow back t o  Tampa E l e c t r i c ' s  

general operating revenues and customers woul dn ' t see any par t  

o f  the dif ference between $35 and $38, i s  t h a t  correct? 

A Well, f i r s t  o f  a l l ,  i t  would f low back, but it would 

be matching the costs. The costs are a ra te  base component, I 

th ink,  as Witness Portuondo said e a r l i e r ,  and you are being 

consistent. You are matching your costs w i th  your revenues. 

And i f  you were i n  a s i tua t ion  where you were overearning, then 

a t  tha t  point ,  yes, the ratepayers would see that .  

Q Mr. Brown said tha t  he couldn ' t  t e l l  us what  those 

costs - -  what your O&M costs are. Can you t e l l  us how you 

derived that? 
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A We have a methodology tha t  we have had i n  place - - 
EPRI  developed i t  back, I th ink,  l i k e  i n  1982/'83 t i m e  frame. 

It was researched, devel oped, and pub1 ished by EPRI . And 

bas ica l l y  i t  takes i n t o  account the previous year 's O&M 

expenses u t i l i z i n g  the capacity factor f o r  the coal - f i r e d  

generation and picking up the variable O&M piece tha t  way. 

And i t  generally winds up t o  be $2.52? 

It has varied over time. But r i g h t  now based on the 

Q 
A 

2000, i t  i s  $2.55 per megawatt hour. 

Q 55 cents? 

A Yes. 

Q And tha t  money you w i l l  keep, but i t  w i l l  be 

re f1  ected i n  your survei 11 ance report? 

A 

Q 

A No, I do not. 

Q 

That would be my assumption, yes. 

Do you prepare the survei l lance report? 

Now, i s  there anything i n  your report  f i l e d  on August 

21st tha t  - -  or  a t  l e a s t  t h a t  I received on August 21st - -  t ha t  

describes what pr ice was paid f o r  these d i f f e r e n t  sales by the 

buyer? 
A Ind iv idual ly ,  no. 

Q I s  i t  anywhere i n  t o t a l  shown? 

A Well, the fuel  cost, t h i s  i s  j u s t  the fuel docket, i f  

tha t  i s  - -  fuel  adjustment clause, so I ' m  not sure what you are 

as k i  ng . 
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Q Well, the s t a f f ' s  memorandum tha t  has been discussed 

here today tha t  you are well f a m i l i a r  wi th,  i n  i t s  report ing 

requirements i t  asks you t o  set out the gains. Does t h i s  

report set out the gains i n  accordance w i th  tha t  memorandum? 

A Not on t h i s  par t i cu la r  schedule the gains are not 

shown, but they are shown. 

Q Where are they shown? 

A In t o t a l ,  not i n  ind iv idual ,  i f  tha t  i s  what you are 

asking me. 

Q 

A I don't have an A Schedule i n  f ron t  o f  me, but - - 

Q Well, look a t  Page 8 o f  your exh ib i t .  Go back t o  the 

I j u s t  want t o  know what the gains are. 

second page i n .  

A Okay. 

Q 
A 

I th ink  tha t  i s  your E l - B ?  

Do you f i n d  the gains on tha t  page? 

No. A t  t ha t  po int  i t  i s  - -  i t  i s  included i n  the 

t o t a l  cost  o f  power sold, A2,  Line Item A2. That includes the 

gains, so i t ' s  a gross number there. 

Q Line A2, which has 22 million? 
A Right. The 22.1 m i l l i o n  includes the gains from the 

sales 

Q But there i s  something you f i l e d  somewhere tha t  

breaks out the speci f ic  gains, i s  t ha t  r i g h t ?  

A In t o t a l ,  correct. 

Q Was t h a t  i n  the big document tha t  I gave you tha t  I 
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Schedu 

Q 
handed 

d i d n ' t  ext ract  for the exhi b i t ?  

A When you look a t  the A Schedu 

Yes, ma'am. 

- -  on A6 there i s  a l i n e  tha t  

There i s  a column. I don' t  know 

148 

e - -  

shows the 80 percent 

i f  you have an A 

e i n  f ront  o f  you. 

No, I don' t .  Is i t  i n  tha t  other document tha t  I 

you? 

A 

Commission. 

No, i t ' s  i n  what we f i l e  every month w i t h  the 

Q It's a monthly report? 

A Yes 

Q A l l  r i gh t .  Now, look at the page tha t  i s  marked as 

17, and t h i s  i s  the power you purchased for the year. And you 

have gotten i t  i n  various aspects, but the only one we are 

dealing w i th  i s  market-based, I guess. Look a t  the very bottom 

o f  Page 17. 

A Yes 

Q Which o f  those are nonseparated? Is i t  jus t  the 

market o r  i s  i t  some o f  the others? 

A This i s  purchased power. This i s  purchased power. 

Q Yes, t h a t ' s  what I ' m  asking you. 

A Separating purchased power, I ' m  not sure what you are 

asking me. 

Q Well, what i s  nonseparated purchased power, where i s  
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tha t  shown on t h i s  exh ib i t?  

A Can you - -  

Q 

A Right. 

Q 

customers? 

Schedule E7 i s  purchased power? 

And tha t  i s  power you buy i n  order t o  serve your 

A Right. 

Q 

A 

And you charge them for it? 

This i s  the purchased power tha t  was required t o  meet 

r e t a i  1 needs. 

Q That i s  correct. 

A 

Q I guess I'm a dumb questioner. What does 

So what do you mean by nonseparated purchased power? 

market - based mean down there? 

A Marked-based i s  the type o f  schedule tha t  i t  was 

bought, or  the agreement. 

Q So the average p r i ce  f o r  the year f o r  the power you 

buy t o  serve your r e t a i l  load w i l l  be $66.06? 

A Correct. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: M r .  McWhirter, may I 

you fo r  j u s t  a minute? 

MR. McWHIRTER: Yes, ma'am. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Ms. Kaufman, the exh 

you handed me i s  numbered a l i t t l e  b i t  d i f f e r e n t l y ,  

having some trouble fo l lowing the questioning. Can 
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another copy, please? 

MS. KAUFMAN: Absolutely. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: I only have one exh ib i t ,  but 

there are two. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: While we are a t  a break, Mr. 

McWhi r t e r ,  tha t  number you j u s t  quoted, tha t  ' s on Schedule E7, 

which i s  Page 17? 

MR. McWHIRTER: Yes, s i r .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Whereabouts on t h a t  page? 

MR. McWHIRTER: You may have the wrong one, too. 

the very bottom i t shows the power tha t  - -  Schedule E7, 

Page 2 o f  2. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Yes, I have tha t .  

MR. McWHIRTER: You've got i t  now? 

A t  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: It shows t o t a l  numbers, it d idn ' t  

break i t  out t o  the do l la r  f igure,  so I was j u s t  wondering. 

You j u s t  d i d  a ca lcu lat ion on that ,  then? 

MR. McWHIRTER: Yes. I was looking a t  the cents per 

k i lowat t  hour, and tha t  i s  i n  Column 3. 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q I s  t ha t  the t o t a l  p r ice  t h a t  you pay f o r  the power 

you purchased from the market? 

A That i s  the fue l  cost. 

Q Now, i s  a l l  o f  t h i s  - -  a l l  o f  t h i s  power tha t  you 

purchased, tha t  i s  power tha t  you are obl igated t o  purchase? 
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A Not i n  the sense i f  you mean from a QF, but i n  order 

t o  serve our r e t a i l  load, any u t i l i t y  does not have j u s t  t h e i r  

own generation. Your generation i s  usual ly - -  your resource 

mix i s  consistent o f  your own generation, purchases from 

qua l i f y ing  f a c i l i t i e s  and purchases from other u t i l i t i e s .  And 

t o  maintain the reserve margin, l e t ' s  say i n  the shoulder 

months when you know you a re  going t o  be doing maintenance, you 

may go out i n t o  the market and purchase fo r  a three-month 

purchase o r  a six-month purchase t o  maintain your reserve 

margin. So, i n  essence, yes, i t ' s  ob l igat ion because i t  i s  

ob l igat ion t o  serve, but i t  may not be contractual, i f  t h a t  i s  

what you are asking. 

Q Can you give me the r e l a t i v e  lengths o f  the period 

tha t  you are obligated t o  purchase t h i s  power under Schedule 3 ,  

I P P ,  other and market - based? 

A They vary. The I P P  i s  a contract, long-term 

contract, the Schedule JAs are short-term. The other are 

usual ly block purchases tha t  are shown i n  our ten-year s i t e  

plan, and the market-based i s  usual ly spot.  
Q I d i d n ' t  understand. You said purchases tha t  are i n  

your ten-year s i t e  p l  an? 

A Correct. 

Q That means from companies tha t  you l i s t  as purchased 

capacity t o  give the overa l l  capacity o f  your company and 

those - -  
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A Yes. 

Q 
A Correct. 

Q And HPP/IPP, tha t  i s  your a f f i l i a t e d  TECO Power 

- - you pay $72.23 a megawatt f o r  t ha t  capacity? 

Partners company? 

A Correct. 

Q And you pay 

A Yes. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  

them $53.82? 

MR. BEASLEY. Commissioners, may I inquire? This i s  

s ta r t i ng  t o  sound l i k e  an omnibus deposition f o r  the fuel 

docket and the ten-year s i t e  plan proceeding, and I would l i k e  

t o  inquire how i t  i s  re la ted t o  the issues t h a t  are before you? 

MR. McWHIRTER: I will t i e  i t  i n  shor t ly ,  M r .  

Chai rman . 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I w i l l  al low you t h a t  l a t i t ude .  

MR. McWHIRTER: I can do tha t  quicker than explaining 

t o  him what I'm t r y i n g  t o  do. 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q Back on Page 15. And you sell power t o  Hardee Power 

Partners under a separated contract f o r  $32.76? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q Can you give me some quick i ns igh t  i n t o  why you pay 

so much more for the power tha t  you buy from your a f f i l i a t e d  

company than the pr ice  you s e l l  t o  the a f f i l i a t e d  company? 
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A Wel l ,  I wasn't involved w i th  the or ig ina l  contract, 

but I can t e l l  you - - and I guess I see where you are going i n  

terms o f  looking a t  the pr ice o f  the power sold versus what we 

are purchasing. As I mentioned e a r l i e r ,  we are purchasing 

several d i f f e ren t  types o f  power here t o  serve over peak load 

that we w i l l  need. And as Witness Brown pointed out e a r l i e r ,  

dhat i s  happening i s  that  when we are going t o  the market i t  

may be during the shoulders hours. And obviously your p r i ce  

that  you - -  t ha t  you sold i t  f o r  i s  not going t o  match 

apples-to-apples t o  what you purchased the or ig ina l  purchased 

power agreement for. So I don ' t  t h ink  tha t  you can say i t ' s  a 

one-for-one s i tuat ion.  We are u t i l i z i n g  the purchased power 

when we need i t  t o  get us through the peak, and we are s e l l i n g  

i t  i n  order t o  help mit igate t h a t  cost or  impact t o  the 

ratepayers . 
Q So the $48 m i l l i o n  you paid t o  Hardee Power Partners 

l a s t  year i s  not related t o  a f i xed  pr ice  tha t  you agreed t o ,  

when you buy from but i t ' s  what you pay from t ime- to- t ime 

Hardee, i s  t ha t  it? 

A T h a t ' s  not what I said. I sa d tha t  the pr ices tha t  

we enter i n t o  for the purchased power are done i n  order t o  meet 

anticipated 1 oad, forecasted 1 oad, t o  meet the system reserve 

margin requirements. To cover our ob1 iga t ion  t o  serve. 

Q How are those - -  how i s  t h a t  power pr iced t o  you, who 

prices i t  and what rat ionale do you use? 
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A A t  tha t  po int  I cannot t e l l  you exact ly how 

everything i s  priced. 

Q That would have been Mr. Brown? 

A That would have been Mr. Brown. 

Q A l l  r i gh t .  When you calculate your gain, i s  t ha t  

done one time a year or i s  i t  done every time you make a sale? 

Just how does tha t  come about? 

A 

Q 
The gain i s  calculated on every sale. 

Okay. And then when do you - -  when do you send the 

money around? Do you w a i t  u n t i l  the end o f  the 'ear t o  

determine whether you get your incentive, or  do you take an 

incentive out o f  every sale? 

A Well, f i r s t  o f  a l l ,  we have t o  

before we can even s t a r t  sharing i n  the 

probably not going t o  happen u n t i l  l a t e r  

happens then. So i t  wouldn't make sense 

every sale because you have t o  w a i t  u n t i  

reach the benchmark 

ncentive, and t h a t ' s  

i n  the year, i f  i t  

t o  take i t  out o f  

you get there. 

Q If  you get there i n  August, do you then take it out 

o f  every sale as the sale occurs, or do you w a i t  u n t i l  sometime 

1 ater? 

A You would take i t  out a t  t ha t  po int .  

MR. McWHIRTER: That 's a l l  the questions I have, M r .  

Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : M r  . Burgess. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 
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BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q Ms. Jordan, you made passing reference t o  the FMPA 

sales. And as I reca l l ,  tha t  contract speci f ied the un i ts  out 

o f  which the sale was being made, d i d  i t  not? 

A Correct. 

Q When tha t  - -  and you make those - -  those are 

nonseparated sales, were they not? 

A Correct. 

Q When you do that ,  does tha t  enter i n t o  the issue o f  

incremental cost i n  any way, e i ther  from the standpoint o f  t h  

fuel t ha t  i s  removed from the r e t a i l  por t ion o f  the fuel 

adjustment clause or i n  the calculat ion o f  gain? 

A The incremental fuel  cost f o r  t ha t  sale i s  based upon 

those uni ts ,  and so tha t  i s  what i s  removed o r  matched up. 

Q And what you are saying i s  in those cases, then, the 

incremental cost would have nothing t o  do w i th  the dispatch 

sequence, i t  would be t ha t  specif ied i n  the contract? 

A For tha t  sale. 

Q For tha t  sale. But you would - - and you would use 

that ,  but you would use tha t  as the amount t o  be removed from 
the balance tha t  i s  apportioned t o  the r e t a i l  load, fuel load? 

A Correct. 

Q And you would use tha t  same amount t o  be subtracted 

from the p r i ce  i n  ca lcu lat ing the gain - -  

A Right. 
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4 
A Yes. 

- -  t o  be credited against the fuel? 

MR. BURGESS: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: S t a f f .  

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KEATING: 

Q Ms. Jordan, I have the same questions f o r  you tha t  I 

had f o r  the previous two u t i 1  i t y  witnesses. When TECO 

economical 1 y dispatches i t s  resources t o  serve i t s  1 oad, 
i t  dist inguish between resources from i t s  own generation 

resources purchased from other generati on sources? 

A No 

Q And I w i l l  provide the same hypothetical examp 

does 

and 

e, as 

wel l ,  and I hope tha t  you were l i s t e n i n g  when I c l a r i f i e d  i t  

for the previous witness. 

t h i s  time around, as we l l .  

I w i l l  t r y  t o  phrase i t  t h a t  way 

Assuming tha t  TECO has made a 50 -megawatt whol esal e 

I f  TECO must concurrently purchase energy sale fo r  one hour. 

power from another generation source t o  serve the l a s t  50 

megawatts o f  i t s  t o t a l  load, i s  the energy cost o f  the 

purchased power the incremental energy cost o f  TECO's 

50 -megawatt whol esal e sal e? 

A Yes, i f  the purchase was made t o  serve s p e c i f i c a l l y  

tha t  50-megawatt sale. 

Q And, again, assuming t h a t  TECO i s  making a 
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50-megawatt wholesale energy sale f o r  one hour, and i f  TECO 

Eurrently purchases power from another generation source t o  

serve part  o f  i t s  load, but s t i l l  i s  required t o  dispatch i t s  

3wn generation - - t h i s  i s  where I had t o  c l a r i f y  l a s t  time, l e t  

ne make sure I state i t  c lear ly .  

I f  TECO i s  concurrently purchasing power from another 

generation source while i t  i s  making tha t  50-megawatt sale f o r  

one hour t o  serve pa r t  o f  i t s  t o t a l  load and t h a t  purchase 

v~ould be dispatched ahead o f  generation t h a t  must be used t o  

serve TECO’s t o t a l  load, i s  the energy cost o f  the purchased 

power the incremental energy cost o f  the 50-megawatt wholesale 

energy sale? 

A No, i t  would not be. I am assuming t h a t  i s  a must 

take s i tua t ion  and, therefore, i t  woul d be zero incremental 

cost, so i t  would not be on the increment. 

Q 

A Thank you. 

Q 

And tha t  assumption was correct in my question. 

I f  the Commission orders each u t i l i t y  t o  c red i t  

operating revenues w i t h  an amount equal t o  the O&M expenses o f  

a nonseparated wholesale energy sale, would t h a t  order create a 

double recovery o f  those expenses, those O&M expenses f o r  TECO? 

A No, i t  would not. 

Q Okay. For a nonseparated sale - - and t h i s  would be a 

nonseparated sale tha t  i s  firm and fo r  less than one year, does 

incremental cost f o r  the purpose o f  ca lcu lat ing net gain and 
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the incent ive on tha t  sale include costs for f i r m  o r  nonfirm 

purchased power made i n  ant ic ipat ion o f  f a c i l i t a t i n g  the 

nonseparated s a l  e? 

A 

Q 
Could you repeat that ,  please. 

Sure. For a nonseparated sale tha t  i s  firm and less 
than one year i n  duration, does the incremental costs o f  t ha t  

sale f o r  the purpose o f  calculat ing the net gain and any 

incent ive include costs f o r  f i r m  or  nonfirm purchased power 

made i n  ant ic ipat ion o f  f a c i l i t a t i n g  the nonseparated sale? 

A 

the o r ig ina l  sale t o  begin with. 

It would depend on the i n t e n t  o f  why you entered i n t o  

COMMISSIONER JABER: Ms. Jordan - - excuse me, 
Cochran. While s t a f f  thinks about t h a t  a l i t t l e  b i t  more, l e t  

me j u s t  ask you a question w i th  respect t o  i f  the Commission 

were t o  f i n d  tha t  O&M expenses, the incremental O&M expenses 

were not appropriate f o r  recovery through the clause, but 

rather could be included i n  base rate,  what e f f e c t  do you 

expect tha t  would have on your incent ive sales? 

THE WITNESS: I don' t  t h ink  i t  would have an e f fec t .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: Is t h a t  because the O&M expenses 

are minimal? 

THE WITNESS: No, I th ink  t h a t  t h a t  would be 

appropriate so i t  would not impact our decision t o  go and enter 

i n t o  sales. 

expenses, which woul d be appropri ate. 

I t  would j u s t  be l i n i n g  up the revenues w i th  the 
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COMMISSIONER JABER: So i f  the recovery was through 

base rates, as long as obviously the revenues and expenses were 

included i n  base rates there wouldn't be any problem wi th  not 

allowing tha t  sor t  o f  pass-through i n  the fuel clause? 

THE WITNESS : Correct. 

BY MR. KEATING: 

Q Ms. Jordan, i n  response t o  my l a s t  question - - i f  you 

would l i k e  fo r  me t o  repeat it, I w i l l ?  

A Would you, please. 

Q Certainly. For a nonseparated sale t h a t  i s  firm and 

less than one year i n  duration, does incremental cost f o r  the 

purpose o f  ca lcu lat ing net gain and any incentive t h a t  would 

apply include costs f o r  f i r m  or nonfirm purchased power made i n  

ant ic ipat ion o f  f a c i l i t a t i n g  the nonseparated sale? 

A I f  the purchased power was on the increment from 

making the sale, then i t  would be included. But i f  you were 

not purchasing, o r  i f  you were purchasing i t  w i th  must take and 

there was zero incremental, then i t  would be the incremental 

cost o f  whatever i t  took t o  make tha t  sale, whether it be base 

o r  CT uni ts .  

Q For a nonseparated sale tha t  i s  - -  again, t h a t  i s  

firm and less than one year i n  duration, would the incremental 

costs for purpose o f  ca lcu lat ing net gain and any incent ive 

include costs f o r  f i r m  or nonfirm purchased power not 

anticipated as being needed t o  f a c i l i t a t e  t h e  sale, but  made 
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because o f  some unforeseen event? 

A 

Q 

Give me the scenario one more time, please. 

I t ' s  f o r  a nonseparated sale tha t  i s  f i r m  and less 

than one year i n  duration, would the incremental costs for tha t  

sale f o r  the purpose o f  calculat ing the net gain and any 

incent ive include costs f o r  firm or  nonfirm purchased power 

tha t  was not anticipated as being needed t o  facilitate t ha t  

nonseparated sale f i r m  less than one year, but  made because o f  

some unforeseen event? 

A No. 

MR. KEATING: Okay. That 's a l l  the questions I have. 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Commissioners. 

MR. BEASLEY: One red i rec t .  

RED I RECT EXAM I NATION 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q I s  t ha t  because the power purchased t o  meet some 

unforeseen event l i k e  a u n i t  outage o r  something was must take 

and, therefore, zero cost? 

A Correct. 

MR. BEASLEY: That 's a l l  I have. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . Exhibi ts.  

MR. BEASLEY: I don ' t  bel ieve we - - 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r .  McWhirter, I believe you had 

Exhib i t  6. Do you want t o  move tha t?  
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MR. McWHIRTER: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without objection, show Exhibi t  6 

admitted 

(Exhibi t  6 admitted i n t o  the record. ) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you. I guess you w i l l  be 

back, Ms. Jordan. We are going t o  f i n i s h  up, but we a re  going 

t o  take a 15-minute break f o r  the court reporter, and then we 

w i l l  come back and f i n i s h  up. 

I have a document tha t  I th ink  had a l l  o f  the 

schedules tha t  you referred t o  on it, but l e t ' s  be real  clear 

about tha t .  The docket t h a t  I have has Schedule E l B ,  Schedule 

E2, Schedule E6, which i s  two pages, and Schedule E7, which i s  

two pages. 

MR. McWHIRTER: That's it. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: That 's the complete - - 
MR. McWHIRTER: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: But I had a d i f f e r e n t  document. 

I had a second document t h a t  had Schedules A l ,  and I th ink  

through A7, so should we just i d e n t i f y  those as separate - -  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: 

tha t  j u s t  accidental ly d is t r ibuted? 

Did you intend t o  mark tha t  o r  was 

MR. McWHIRTER: That was accidental ly d is t r ibuted.  I 

d i d  not ask her questions about it. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Yes. Because I d i d n ' t  reca l l  

you asking any question on any o f  those schedules. 
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MR. McWHIRTER: I didn ' t .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: Questions w i th  respect t o  FMPA, 

showed up on the page tha t  I have here, Schedule A5, Page 1 

D f  3. 

lake clear f o r  me. And i f  t h i s  i s  not an exh ib i t  I am supposed 

t o  have, I would rather tha t  you take i t  back. 

During the break would someone please look a t  t h i s  and 

MS. KAUFMAN: We'll do that .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very well  . We w i l l  re turn a t  1:lO. 

(Recess . ) 
MS. KAUFMAN: M r .  Chairman, I th ink  we have 

straightened out Exhib i t  Number 6 now, and each o f  the 

Commissioners should have the correct one. And I gave one t o  

the court reporter, as well . 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Great. Thank you. And so we are 

now w i th  M r .  Kordecki. You may proceed. 

GERARD J .  KORDECKI 

was cal led as a witness on behalf o f  F lor ida Indus t r ia l  Power 

Users Group, and, having been duly sworn, t e s t i f i e d  as follows: 

D I RECT EXAM I NATI ON 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q 
A 

Q 
please? 

A 

Mr. Kordecki, you have been sworn? 

Yes, I have. 

Would you state your fu l l  name and your address, 

Gerard J .  Kordecki , 10301 Orange Grove Drive, Tampa, 
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F1 ori da 33618. 

Q And you are the same Gerard Kordecki that filed 
testimony in this case? 

A Yes, I am. 
Q And i f  I asked you the same questions that were posed 

in that testimony, would your responses be the same? 
A Yes, they would. 
Q 

test i mony? 
A 

Would you summarize for us what you said in the 

My testimony addresses how each jurisdictional 
uti 1 i ty shoul d cal cu7 ate the incremental cost o f  making 
nonseparated who1 esal e sal es . I di scuss the incremental fuel 

costs of generating the energy f o r  these sales and the 
calculations of incremental operation and maintenance costs 

caused by these sales. 
Utilities should only receive incentives when 

customers are realizing benefits from the utility's management 
o f  the generation resources. In rewarding utilities for their 
wholesale sales, only net benefits or net gains should be 
calculated in determining the incentive benchmark. 

The calculation o f  these gains must take into account 
costs which may be shifted to retail customers or costs which 
retail customers are already paying in their base rates. In its 
order the Commission stated each IOU shall credit its fuel and 
purchased power cost recovery clause for an amount equal to the 
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incremental fuel cost o f  generating the energy f o r  each such 

sale. 

I would add t o  t h i s  statement tha t  the incremental 

costs should be the higher o f  purchased power o r  generation i n  

each hour. This would mean tha t  during simultaneous purchase 

and sales tha t  i f  purchase costs were higher than generated 

costs, t ha t  purchased power costs would be used t o  calculate 

the p r o f i t s .  Adoption o f  t h i s  highest cost a l loca t ion  protects 

r e t a i l  customers against s h i f t i n g  higher costs caused by the 

transactions. 

Another element o f  cost described i n  the order was 

operation and maintenance costs. The order states, "Each IOU 

shal l  c red i t  i t s  operating revenues f o r  an amount equal t o  the 

incremental operating and maintenance costs o f  generating the 

energy f o r  each such sa le .  " The standard for O&M expenses for 
these sales should be a c red i t  t o  the clauses. 

operating revenues from sales i s  a d i r e c t  reduction from the 

gain from the sale. A u t i l i t y  should not be allowed t o  c red i t  

the operating revenues f o r  O&M unless the u t i l i t y  can prove 

tha t  these costs are, i n  fact ,  incremental, t h a t  i s ,  would not 

occur without the transaction. This  would also include how 

these O&M costs were exact ly  calculated. 

Credi t ing 

Secondly, the u t i l i t y  must be required t o  show tha t  

these O&M costs are not already being received i n  base rates. 

This would require tha t  a u t i l i t y  show tha t  the O&M costs 
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a1 1 owed i n  the i  r 1 a s t  r a t e  case when expanded f o r  increased 

k i lowat t  hour usage since tha t  case, would be excluded i f  the 

O&M expenses - -  I'm sorry, i f  without the co l lec t ion  o f  these 

expenses the O&M budget would be - - I have 1 ost  my p l  ace, I 'm 
sorry. 

reduction i n  operating revenues, from t h e i r  operating revenues. 

It would go over the O&M budget as expanded and be a 

That i s  my summary. 

Does tha t  conclude your summary? Q 

A Yes, i t  does. 

MR. McWHIRTER: Mr. Chairman, I would rl quest tha t  

M r .  Kordecki I s  testimony be entered i n t o  the record and I w i l l  

submit him f o r  cross examination. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without objection, show Mr. 

Kordecki ' s  p r e f i l e d  testimony i s  entered i n t o  the record as 

though read. 
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BEFOFW, THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

DIRECT TESTIMONY 

OF 

GERARDJ. KORDECKI 

ON BEHALF OF 

THE FLORIDA INDUSTMAL P O m R  USERS GROUP 

DOCKET NO. 010283-E1 

I. Introduction 

Q. Please state your name and address and occupation. 

A. My name is Gerard J. Kordecki. My business address is 10301 Orange Grove Drive, 

Tampa, Florida 33618. I am self employed as an energy and regulatory consultant. 

Q. Please summarize your educational background and work experience. 

A. I received a Bachelor of Science degree in Advertising in 1963 and a Master of Arts in 

Marketing in 1965. Both degrees are fiom the University of Florida. I also pursued 

graduate study in Economics at the University of Florida. I worked for Tampa Electric 

Company for 33 years in various capacities involving marketing, conservation, resource 

planning and rates and regulation. I have participated in the development of and supervised 

the preparation of numerous studies and plans involving conservation goals and programs, 

cost allocations, rates, load research and resource plans. Since January 1999, I have 

consulted with power plant developers, merchant plant applicants and industrial and 

institutional utility customers on rates, regulatory policy and transmission access issues. 

Q. Mr. Kordecki, have you previously testified before the Florida Public Service 
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Commission ("FPSC" or "Commission")? 

A, Yes, I have testified regarding the subjects identified in my preceding answer on more 

than 36 occasions which included rate cases, determination of need hearings and various 

conservation dockets. I have also participated in a number of rule hearings, agenda 

conferences and Commission workshops. 

11. Background 

Q. Describe some of the major changes you have observed during your 33 years 

experience in the electric industry in Florida. 

A. Before the 1980s, most wholesale sales were made to serve the native load requirements 

of the purchasing utility. In the late 1970s and early 1980s, the effect of OPEC on oil prices 

changed the power market. Those utilities with coal capacity sold to oil-burning utilities 

to displace high-priced oil units. Of course, this was only done when selling utilities did 

not need the lower cost capacity for their retail customers. Most of these transactions were 

done on the Florida Broker System. The savings were split between the seller and the buyer. 

There were M e  or no significant sales outside of Florida. A number of utilities built or 

purchased coal capacity in anticipation of even higher oil costs. In the 1980s, this was 

termed "oil-back out." The wholesale market continued to revolve around requirements 

sales and the as-available sales on the Florida broker to displace oil. 

The 1990s brought about changes in capacity availability. Utilities built very few 

new generating units and cogeneration potential declined. This situation wasn't limited to 

Florida. It was widespread through the US.  as supply tightened. The present shortages of 

capacity (California and the far West), which are familiar to everyone, are a result of this 
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lack of construction. Even the three Peninsular Florida IOUs are increasing their capacity 

levels by adopting a 20% reserve margin (up from 15%) for 2004. 

FERC Order 8 8 8 brought about a second change in the market. This order required 

transmission-owing utilities to allow power suppliers (including IPPs, marketers, merchant 

plants, etc.) to use their transmission systems to make wholesale sales. Many of these 

FERC-defined utilities can sell energy at market-based rates--whatever the market will bear. 

In fact, all utilities in Florida have this market-based rate authority. Two, I believe, can only 

make market-based sales outside of Florida; however, this changes the "opportunity cost" 

for in-state wholesale sales when the purchases are to supply retail customers, specifically 

DSM and other non-firm customers. 

In the late 199Os, and especially in the last two years, we find ourselves with 

dwindling capacity, broader markets due to expanded transmission access, and market 

pricing, which can take advantage of the lower reserves. 

Q. Mr. Kordecki, what effect do you believe these conditions have on FIorida utilities 

today? 

A. When utilities were buying power, they were paying more. When they were selling, 

they could take advantage of higher pricing over a larger geographical area. Except for 

cost-based emergency sales, wholesale sales probably were made out of state, even if the 

energy could have been sold in state but at lower prices. So power that might have been 

sold on the Florida Broker in the 1980s may have been sold elsewhere. In state, there were 

probably situations where buying utilities were willing to make longer term purchase 

commitments to ensure themselves of power availability; that is, to be first in line. 
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Q. Is your answer a condemnation of the buying and selling practices of Florida 

utilities? 

A. No, it is not a condemnation. The utility reactions to shortages in supply are very 

rational. On the selling side, it is good business, encouraged by FPSC incentives, to 

maximize profits for the good of retail customers. On the buying side, utilities try to obtain 

a reliable energy supply at the lowest cost. These should be the objectives of every utility 

trading floor. However, the concern in this volatile trading market is that retail customers 

not assume risks or higher costs because wholesale sales are not adequately or properly 

priced at the true costs of these discretionary sales. 

Q. What is your understanding of the events that have led up to this hearing? 

A. The Florida Commission Staff concluded that utilities no longer needed an incentive to 

make wholesale sales. It asked the Commission to consider doing away with the incentive. 

Utilities responded by suggesting that the incentive should be broadened. There have been 

a series of hearings focusing on the question of whether it continues to be necessary to offer 

incentives to investor-owned utilities to encourage them to maximize their wholesale sales. 

On May 1 0,2000, a hearing was held on this issue in Docket 99 1799-EI. As a result 

of that hearing, the Commission issued Order No. PSC-00-1 744-PAA-E1 on September 26, 

2000. This Order allowed incentives to be applied to all non-separated wholesale power 

sales that exceed a benchmark. The incentive applies to both firm and non-firm sales, 

except for emergency sales. The Commission also dealt with the calculation of gains and 

the appropriate regulatory treatment for revenues and expenses associated with non- 

separated wholesale power sales. This aspect of the Order was Proposed Agency Action 
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(FAA) because there was no issue or evidence presented in the May lofh hearing on this 

subject. On October 1 1,2000, FIPUG filed a motion for clarification of parts I and I1 of the 

Order, protested part I11 of the Order, and requested a hearing on the PAA section. 

FIPUG pointed out that the Order, as written, could ignore higher cost replacement 

purchased power when determining the cost of an incremental sale even if the cost of 

replacement power far exceeds any benefits retail customers would derive from the 

wholesale sale. FIPUG asserted that the Commission did not intend to design an incentive 

that might promote such a bizarre result. 

The formula for calculating the gains on wholesale sales should consider all of the 

costs of the sale. When a utility lacks capacity to meet the demand of its retail customers 

because it has entered into a non-separated wholesale transaction, the cost of replacement 

power is not to serve retail customers, but should be considered a cost of the wholesale 

transaction, exclusive of other appropriate costs involved in the transaction. The 

assumption is that the Commission wants wholesale sales to be made when, and only when, 

captive customers, who bear the cost of the plant in rate base, benefit from the wholesale 

sale. The Commission should require that the marginal cost on the utility system, whether 

generated or purchased, should be used in the calculation of the cost of a non-separated saIe. 

FIPUG’ s second contention is that proper regulatory policy should prevent a utility 

from double collection of costs. No O&M costs collected from wholesale customers should 

be retained by the utility when these costs are already paid by retail customers in their base 

rates. When calculating gains from non-separated wholesale sales, no revenue recovered 

as O&M costs should be considered part of the gain to be divided between the utility and 
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customers because it is a cost reimbursement, not profit on the sale. 

111. Summary 

Q. Please summarize the elements of your testimony. 

A. My testimony will address the issues raised by FIPUG in its protest and recommend 

"costs" which should be included in the calculation of the gains on making a wholesale sale. 

Such "costs" determine the margin or profit of an energylcapacity sale between utilities as 

defined by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). I will recommend aproper 

basis for determining the profit from applicable sales and a profit pooling mechanism that 

should be adopted to ensure that retail customers are protected against unwise wholesale 

sales. 

Q. What is the guiding principle for calculating the profit on these sales for the 

protection of retail customers? 

A. The revenues from non-separated sales must be reduced by removing the full costs 

attributable to the transaction. This procedure will protect retail customers from being 

required to subsidize the sale. 

IV. Types of Sales 

Q. Are all wholesale sales the same? 

A. Not at all. There are numerous variations on the theme ranging from short-term 

emergency sales to long-term firm h l l  requirements sales. In this case, we are dealing only 

with two broad categories of sales. These are firm and non-firm non-separated wholesale 

sales. 

Q. What do you mean by separated and non-separated sales? 
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A. Separated sales are wholesale sales in which the generating plant, ancillary assets and 

all allocated expenses are removed from the rate base for ratemaking purposes. The utility 

keeps all the revenue from the sales and bears all of the expense related to the sale. Non- 

separated sales are wholesale sales in which the assets remain in the retail rate base. All 

revenue is allocated to retail customers and all fixed costs are borne by retail customers. 

Q. Define a non-separated sale. 

A. As stated above, a non-separated sale involves a sale where the utility has not broken 

out the cost components of the wholesale transaction and reduced its retail rate base for 

those components. The revenues from non-separated sales must be reduced by their "costs" 

so retail ratepayers do not subsidize wholesale transactions. The remainder or profit is 

distributed to retail customers or shared by retail customers and the utility, depending on 

whether the utility has met a sales or incentive benchmark. 

Q. What types of wholesale sales are classified as non-separated? 

A. Most non-separated sales are non-firm transactions, no longer than a year. Also 

included are firm sales of less than one year, and there may be some seasonal non-firm sales 

and sales which have some level of firmness depending on certain circumstances or events. 

Examples of sales with some degree of firmness might be a sale from a single generating 

unit (unit power sale), which is a firm sale only while the unit is on line. If the unit has a 

forced or planned outage, the sale is discontinued. Another example might be a reservation 

sale in which Utility A contracts with Utility B to make a purchase (normally over an 

extended period of time). The purchasing Utility A pays a fee to have the right of purchase, 

but it must notify the selling Utility B a set number of hours in advance on the day before 
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Utility A takes the capacity. At the point of notification, if Utility B has the power, the 

purchase for the next day becomes firm. There are an infinite number of ways to structure 

transactions which may have some level of firmness. 

Q. When does the distinction between separated and non-separated sales become 

important to customers? 

A. Generally only when there is a rate case or when rates are under a return on equity 

ceiling that requires a refimd to customers when the ceiling is breached. Classification of 

a sale is important to utilities because it affects their stated regulatory earnings. Utilities file 

monthly earnings surveillance reports. If a sale is separated between rate cases, it doesn't 

affect base rates of retail customers, but it may trigger an over earnings situation. In the 

case of both separated and non-separated sales, the allocation of fuel costs is most important 

in protecting retail customers. 

Q. Why do customers benefit from non-separated wholesale sales? 

A. Retail customers pay base rates that cover the capital carrying costs and the fixed O&M 

expenses attributable to facilities in the retail rate base. However, retail customers do not 

require use of the generation capacity 100% of the time. When capacity is not being used 

to serve the retail load, retail customers can benefit fiom off-system wholesale sales if the 

revenue fiom these sales is used to reduce the utility's he1 cost recovery factor or other 

costs recovered through the cost recovery clauses. 

Customers will always appear to "benefit" from a wholesale sale any time the sales 

revenue exceeds incremental sale costs. Sales of unneeded capacity should be encouraged, 

but care needs to be taken in today's active wholesale market that the incentive to make 
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wholesale sales does not backfire and encourage off-system sales when capacity is needed 

to serve retail customers. If the utility can keep any portion of the revenue from off-system 

sales, but not face any risk when the rate-based capacity is diverted to wholesale 

transactions, then there is no corresponding disincentive to avoid r i s k y  wholesale sales. 

Q. What differentiates firm sales from non-firm sales? 

A. Utilities may enter into binding contracts with wholesale customers to maintain a firm 

supply of power to a wholesale customer, regardless of if the sale eventually proves to be 

profitable or unprofitable. For example, if Utility A has a sale to City C which will supply 

City C’s h l I  electrical requirements for more than one year, this would be a firm sale that 

should be separated from Utility A’s rate base to accurately reflect its earnings. If the sale 

were less than one year, it would be a non-separated sale. 

Non-firm sales may be recallable by the utility if capacity is needed to serve retail 

and wholesale requirements or to supply capacity to another utility which is in an 

emergency capacity situation. Let’s say Utility A is making a non-firm sale to Utility B. 

Utility A’s retail load rises to a level which requires Utility A to discontinue or recall the 

sale to Utility B. The key element of this non-firm sale is that there should be a superior 

obligation (meeting retail demand) which the selling Utility A should meet before it can 

make or continue a sale to Utility B. 

Q. Are utilities required to recall a non-firm sale in order to serve retail customers? 

A. By stated custom, yes, but not by FPSC mandate. It is my opinion that the FPSC should 

assert its authority to ensure that there is no doubt as to the regulatory policy of the state on 

this subject. The practice has been to recall the non-firm sales in capacity shortfall 
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situations. It is my opinion that FIPUG is correct that a utility should be required to recall 

a non-firm sale in order to meet retail load demand. Now that the expanded shareholder 

incentive covers all wholesale sales, excluding firm long-term transactions, FIPUG has 

expressed legitimate concern that a utility may be tempted to maintain or enter into a non- 

firm sale to the detriment of its retail customers, and specifically, its non-firm retail 

customers. 

Q. How can non-firm wholesale sales that are not recalled affect non-firm retail 

customers? 

A. Non-firm retail customers may be forced to purchase optional power or even be 

interrupted while the utility is making a wholesale sale. Non-firm customers pay for the 

capacity in their overall retail rates, though these rates may be less than firm customers’ 

rates. Non-firm customers pay less for this capacity because they have volunteered to be 

interrupted or purchase third-party option power when capacity is needed by a utility to 

protect its firm retail load. Non-firm customers were not informed and they did not bargain 

for the utility to use their loads as a vehicle to make wholesale sales. 

Q. Is there a difference between a non-separated firm sale and a non-firm sale during 

a capacity shortage? 

A. Yes, a non-separated firm sale normally has no recall rights unless conditions or events 

for recall are explicitly stated in the contract. Typically, there are no recall rights in firm 

sales contracts. I f  Utility A is in a capacity shortage, it must attempt to purchase power on 

the wholesale market to meet its obligations to serve retail and wholesale customers. If the 

capacity shortage occurs at a time when the utility is making wholesale sales, logic would 
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dictate that the replacement power is being purchased to serve the wholesale sale, not the 

retail customers, who should have a higher priority of service fiom the utility's capacity. 

Utility A should not be allowed to purchase power and pass those costs directly through to 

retail customers via a recovery clause, but this can happen if care is not taken to prevent it. 

If Utility A cannot find enough power to cover its firm wholesale and retail demand, it can 

interrupt non-firm retail customers (interruptible, load management and curtailable). In this 

example, the costs incurred during the capacity shortfall are borne by the utility' s non-firm 

customers who essentially "pay" so Utility A can make a wholesale sale to another utility. 

The potential adverse effects of a firm wholesale sale or a non-firm sale that is not recalled 

during a capacity shortage are, for all practical purposes, the same. There is the real 

potential for the costs of these sales to be inappropriately shifted to retail customers. 

V. PIPUG'S Protest 

Q. Mr. Kordecki, with the above background in mind, describe FIPUG's protest. 

A. Order No. PSC-00- 1744-PM-EI, Section 111-Calculation of Gains and Appropriate 

Regulatory Treatment, contains four findings by the Commission which are the subject of 

this hearing. FIPUG has no disagreement with the general principles of the Commission 

decision but believes more specificity in the application of those principles is needed to 

equitably deal with the costs of wholesale transactions so that retail ratepayers are held 

harmless. 

Q. 

A. 

Describe the first aspect of the PAA Order which requires more specificity. 

Item #1 of the PAA states: 

Each IOU shall credit its fuel and purchased power costs recovery 
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clause for an amount equal to the incremental cost of generating the 
energy for each sale. 

Q. What is FIPUG's concern with this statement? 

A. The proper costing of incremental wholesale sales helps the Commission determine 

how well the utility is managing its assets in meeting its obligation of supplying reliable 

power at reasonable rates. If marginal or incremental costs are properly estimated, then 

cross-subsidy issues between retail customers and wholesale customers are minimized when 

making wholesale transactions. If there are any purchased power costs which are higher 

than the utility's marginal generating costs of its units, such cost must be included as the 

cost of the non-separated sale. When purchased power is the highest cost power on the 

utility system, the incremental cost. 

Q. Can you give us some examples? 

A. Yes. Let's say a utility is making a short-term firm sale of 100 megawatts at 

$55" of which $45/MWH is considered the incremental cost (fuel $40 and $5 for 

everything else). A capacity shortfall occurs and the utility cannot meet its retail and 

wholesale requirements (in this example, the utility has no non-firm load). The utility then 

purchases 100 megawatts at $70/MWH for five hours in the afternoon. In the calculation 

of the incremental costs of the 100 megawatt sale, the incremental costs in those five hours 

becomes $70 plus any incremental "other" costs. In the calculation of the costs of the non- 

separated transaction, the $70/MWH should be averaged into the calculation of the 

incremental costs of the sale. 

Now we change the utility load from all firm to include 100 megawatts of non-firm 
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load. The utility has a third-party option purchase provision in its tariff. The same 

anticipated capacity shortfall occurs and a purchase will be made by the utility. The 

incremental cost to make the 100 megawatt sale and maintain the retail and wholesale 

requirements is the same as the earlier example, where the utility had all firm retail load. 

The question posed in this example is: should the utility treat the purchase as part of the 

incremental cost to make the sale or should the utility be allowed to pass through the 

purchase costs of the 100 megawatt purchase to those customers whose non-firm tariffs 

have a third-party purchase option. The proper costing procedure is to count the 100 

megawatt purchase as a part of the incremental cost of the sale. The existence of non-firm 

load is to help protect firm load from interruptions during capacity shortfalls. Non-firm 

load was never intended to help the utility make or protect off-system wholesale sales. 

Q. 

sale. What are the consequences if the sale is non-firm? 

A. If the utility does not recall the non-firm sale, the results are identical to a firm sale. 

The Commission should require non-firm wholesale sales to be recalled during a capacity 

shortfall. Without a recall requirement, the Commission should use the incremental cost 

treatment previously described so that retail customers are protected from unreasonable 

costs. 

Q. You have discussed situations where a utility finds itself both selling and buying 

in order to maintain a non-separated wholesale sale. If we change the example so that 

there is no purchased power available to cover the incremental sale during the 

capacity shortfall, what should the Commission require? 

Your example describes the utility making a 100 megawatt firm non-separated 
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A. I would hope that the utility would recall the sale voluntarily. If the sale is firm or 

not recalled, customers will be cycled or interrupted. Some type of credit amount taken 

from the proceeds of the sales should be credited to the affected customers. A credit would 

reflect that retail customers were adversely affected by a sale that was not in their best 

interest. A credit for megawatts interrupted would also be appropriate. The marginal costs 

of third-party purchases or marginal power purchases for firm power should be applied to 

the estimated hourly megawatts and refunded to affected customers. 

Q. 

retail customers? 

What incentive is there for a utility to make sales that would adversely affect 

A. My comments are not meant to assert that utilities would intentionally make 

imprudent wholesale sales from their perspective. I am sure that their various planning 

groups and trading floors look at incremental sales with great diligence. But there can 

always be unforeseen events, such as unit forced outages, higher loads than forecasted etc., 

which may cause "unintended consequences" which result in higher costs which may be 

borne inequitably among the classes of customers. All incremental sales are made from 

reserves or excess capacity. When autility uses non-firm load as part of its reserves and has 

a significant amount of its reserves supplied by non-firm load, aggressive wholesale sales 

activity can lead to higher incidences of "unintended consequences." The risks of 

interruptions or high cost third-party purchases for customers with this purchase provision 

increase when utilities have incentives to make more wholesale sales and are able to lay off 

the risks to retail customers. 

Q. What can be done to limit the risks of higher costs to retail ratepayers from 
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A. The following measures would help mitigate the risk: 

1. Each non-separated sale should be priced at the marginal cost of the sale, as 

discussed earlier; and 

2. A cumulative profit pool should be adopted for all non-separated sales. 

Q. Explain how the cumulative profit pool would work. 

A. When sales are properly costed, there may be instances when a non-separated sale 

is not profitable and incurs a loss. Hopefully, most sales will result in gains. The fuel factor 

is only adjusted annually; therefore, instead of dealing with each sale individually, the net 

revenues or profits should be accumulated for all non-separated sales, whether firm or non- 

firm. To the extent there are losses from some sales and credits from others, these losses 

and credits would be netted against the profit pool. This would ensure that there are truly 

benefits to customers before an incentive is paid to the utility. Total incremental costs of 

sales should be accounted for before any incentive mechanism is applied. 

Q. What is the second aspect of the PAA that concerns FIPUG? 

A. Item 3 of the PAA provides: 

Each IOU shall credit its operating revenues for an amount equal to 
the incremental operating and maintenance (O&M) costs of 
generating the energy for each such sale. 

O&M costs are hard to quantify; it is even more difficult to identify O&M expenses that are 

not already being collected in the utility’s base rates. All O&M expenses charged to a 

wholesale transaction should be credited back 100% to the appropriate clause(s) unless a 
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1 utility supports the charge as a cost which is incremental to any present costs being 

collected by the utility in its base rates. If a cost is truly incremental, it may be appropriate 2 

3 to charge the sales with the cost and credit the utility’s operating revenues. The utility 

4 carries a heavy burden of proof that a cost is incremental before any credit to operating 

revenues should occur. Remember that between rate cases and earnings restrictions, the 5 

utilities keep all revenue. It is appropriate for the utility to keep all revenue if it is an 6 

7 incremental cost recovery, but not appropriate for the utility to keep 100% of the money 

8 without sharing, if retail customers have already paid the cost through retail base rates. 

9 Q. What are the other items covered by the PAA? 

A. The second item in the PAA is: 10 

11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 

Except for FPC, each IOU shall credit its environmental cost recovery 
clause for an amount equal to the incremental SO2 emission 
aIlowance cost of generating the energy for each such sale. FPC, 
because it does not have an environmental cost recovery clause, shall 
credit this cost to its fuel and cost recovery clause. 

17 It is my opinion that this is any appropriate cost that should be credited to the 

environmental cost recovery clause. 18 

19 The last PAA item concems transmission and capacity revenues and says: 

20 
21 
22 
23 
24 

In accordance with Order No. FPSC-99-25 12-FOF-EI, issued 
December 22,1999, in Docket No. 990001 -EI, each IOU shall credit 
its capacity cost recovery clause for an amount equal to any 
transmission revenues or separately identifiable capacity revenues. 

25 Transmission and capacity costs paid to third parties in order to make a non- 

26 separated sale are part of the incremental cost of the sale. It should be clarified that these 

16 



costs should be removed from the revenues before profit on the sale is calculated and will 1 

be removed from the margin. Crediting is appropriate for transmission revenues and 2 

3 separately identifiable capacity revenues but a more accurate method would be to credit the 

4 he1 clause for non-firm transmission transactions and credit the capacity clause for firm 

transmission transactions. In this manner, revenue would track the firmness of assets and 5 

not credit capacity when there is no firm transmission capacity obligation. 6 

7 Q. Mr. Kordecki, please summarize your testimony. 

8 A. My testimony describes protections against some potential "unintended 

consequences" which may occur with aggressive wholesale sales activities among 9 

Commission jurisdictional utilities. If we think of these sales as new incremental sales to 10 

a utility system, then their costs should be treated as incremental. I recommend the 11 

12 following procedures be applied to non-separated wholesale sales: 

13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 

Each utility shall credit its fuel and purchase power recovery clause for an amount 
equal to the incremental fuel cost of generating the energy for each such sale. In the 
event wholesale power is purchased to serve retail load while non-separated sales 
are being made, the highest cost fuel shall be allocated to the wholesale sale not to 
the purchase used to meet retail load. 

If incremental crediting of the higher of either generated or purchased power costs is used 

for incremental non-separated sales, risks of higher cost to retail customers or non-firm 20 

retail customers due to these sales should be negated. The proper costs will be assigned to 21 

22 the cost causer-- the non-separated sales. 

23 
24 
25 
26 

All O&M costs assigned to non-separated sales should be treated as a cost and 
credited back to the he1 andor capacity clause. 

If a utility can prove by clear and convincing evidence that the O&M cost is incremental, 

17 



.i. 8 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 Q. Does this conclude your direct testimony? 

5 A. Yes. 

that is, does not already exist in the retail customers’ base rates and that no costs would exist 

without the sale, then and only then, can the O&M cost be taken from the margin or profit 

of the sale and credited back to the utility’s operating revenues. 
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Do we have an order or - - would you CHAIRMAN JACOBS: 

l i k e  t o  go f i r s t ,  Mr. Beasley? 

MR. BEASLEY: Yes. Thank you, s i r .  I th ink a t  the 

outset i t  might be good t o  address the  two exhibi ts attached t o  

Mr. Kordecki ' s  deposition. I think that the second exhibi t  has 

been now marked as Exhibi t  3, the memorandum o f  the s t a f f  dated 

September 20, 2000. And I believe that has been admitted i n t o  

the record. - he other exhibi t  I w i l l  hand out t o  you i s  a 

document that  I want t o  ask M r .  Kordecki a couple o f  questions 

about. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Oh, they weren't attached t o  the 

t ranscr ipt ,  they are separate? 

MR. BEASLEY: They were attached t o  the t ranscr ipt ,  

so I don't know t h a t  they need t o  be marked as an exhibi t  here 

i f  they are a part o f  t ranscr ipt  i f  you allow i t  in .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I don't show any attachments t o  the 

t ranscr ipt .  Maybe I missed them. 

MR. BEASLEY: I t ' s  attached t o  the or ig inal  the court 

reporter has. I'm sorry,  i t  wasn't attached t o  your 

t ranscr ipt .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. So you w i l l  mark t h i s  as 

Exhibit  7. 

MR. BEASLEY: That sounds good. 

(Exhibit 7 marked f o r  ident i f icat ion.  1 
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BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q Mr. Kordecki, do you recognize the document tha t  has 

been i d e n t i f i e d  as Exhib i t  7? 

A Which one, I was handed two? 

Q A l l  three o f  them. They are marked Roman numeral I, 

11, and III? 

A Yes. 

Q During the course o f  your deposition, d i d  I give you 

cer ta in  assumptions regarding three d i f f e r e n t  po r t fo l  i os  o f  

power resource items? 

A Yes. 

Q And, for example, the f i r s t  one included a combustion 

turbine peaking generation a t  $75 a megawatt hour, the one tha t  

says generation should say base load generation, but tha t  i s  

$25 a megawatt hour, and then the f i r m  purchased power a t  $100 

a megawatt hour, and then the must take purchased power 

agreement a t  $125 a megawatt hour? 

A Yes. 

Q And I asked you t o  arrange those. Those were on 

p o s t - i t  notes, and I asked you t o  arrange those i n  ascending 

order o f  how you would dispatch those un i ts ,  i s  t ha t  correct? 
A 

Q That 's r i g h t .  And these are the resu l ts  o f  your 
For economic dispatch, tha t  i s  correct. 

having put these i n  the order o f  how you would dispatch them 

fo r  economic dispatch, i s  t ha t  correct? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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A That i s  correct, for economic dispatch. 

MR. BEASLEY: I would o f fe r  t h i s  as an exhibi t ,  which 

i s  M r .  Kordecki Is acceptance o f  a hypothetical , and his 

arrangement o f  the order o f  these i n  which he would dispatch i t  

as being an indication o f  what he believes should be the 

dispatch order, and ask that i t  be included as part  o f  the 

deposition t ranscr ipt .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I t e l l  you, since we had already 

marked and we d idn ' t  - - I guess had I known i t we could have 

included it as part  o f  the deposition t ranscr ipt .  But since I 

already marked that and I d idn ' t  have a copy o f  it, why don't  

we jus t  make t h a t  a separate exhibi t .  So the t ranscr ipt  i s  

marked as Exhibit  l? 

MR. BEASLEY: Yes, s i r .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And I th ink we marked t h i s  as 

Exhibit  7 jus t  now. 
MR. BEASLEY: Okay. 

MR. BURGESS: May I ask on c la r i f i ca t i on  now, the  

t ranscr ipt  i s  Exhibit  1, has there been a d is t r ibut ion o f  that  

t ranscr ipt? 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Yes. I thought i t  was distr ibuted. 

I have a copy. 

MR. BURGESS: If you have got an extra copy, I would 

appreciate i t  . 
MR. BEASLEY: You don' t  have a copy, Steve? 
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MR. BURGESS: I don' t  t h ink  so. Thank you, Mr. 

Chai rman. 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q Mr. Kordecki , i s  i t  t rue  tha t  you prepared and 

submitted your testimony i n  t h i s  proceeding so le ly  t o  address 

the size o f  the incent ive pot and nothing else? 

A To s p e c i f i c a l l y  address how incremental cost and 

incremental O&M should be treated f o r  purposes o f  a r r i v i n g  a t  

the gains or the p r o f i t s  from nonseparated wholesale sales. 

Q Would you tu rn  t o  your deposition a t  Page 47, please, 

and read me the statement a t  Lines 19 through 21? 

A "My testimony spec i f i ca l l y  i s  only t o  address the 

s ize o f  the incent ive pot, so t o  speak, or what i s  e l i g i b l e  f o r  

incentive, nothing else. I t  wouldn't matter i f  the Commission 

went t o  a 50/50 sharing or  an 80/20, i f  the u t i l i t i e s  gets," e t  

cetera, e t  cetera. 

Q Is i t  t r u e  tha t  the only di f ference between the 

Commi ssi on ' s proposed method and your proposed method o f  

calculat ing the incremental cost o f  a nonseparated wholesale 

sale i s  tha t  your method shrinks the incent ive pot? 

A No. My f i r s t  comment would be tha t  as stated i n  the 

order, I don' t  bel ieve incremental costs, they seem t o  be 

spec i f i ca l l y  re la ted  only t o  generation and not t o  purchases i n  

terms o f  how you would e f f e c t  the incremental cost, being 

whichever was higher a t  the t ime o f  a separated sa le .  So tha t  
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i s  spec i f i ca l l y  what 1 was addressing i n  terms o f  the fuel cost 

used f o r  determining separated costs 

Q Would you tu rn  t o  Page 39 o f  your deposition, please. 

There were you describing your methodology fo r  ca lcu lat ing the 

gain? 

A Star t ing a t  Line 4, or  I'm sorry, s t a r t i n g  a t  Line 9? 

Where am I star t ing? "Wel l ,  then, would the shrinking o f  t ha t  

incentive pot tend t o  discourage as opposed t o  encourage o r  be 

neutral t o  the u t i l i t i e s  t o  make these off-system sales," i s  

t ha t  what you are saying? 

Q I f  you would j u s t  read f o r  us, please, the paragraph 

tha t  begins on Line 4 and ends on Line 8? 

A "What I'm saying i s  t h a t  the customer should not bear 

it. The u t i l i t y  doesn't bear any losses. A l l  r i g h t ?  The only 

th ing  t h a t  i t  accomplishes i s  t o  shrink the incentive pot. 

They ' l l  see tha t ,  and tha t  i s  the only th ing  i t  does. The 

customers s t i  11 bear the cost. 'I 

Q What i s  the only th ing  tha t  accomplishes, what i s  the 

th ing  you a re  re fe r r i ng  t o  there i n  tha t  sentence where the 

only th ing  tha t  t ha t  accomplishes i s  i t  shrinks the incentive 

pot? 

A By using the incremental cost and applying i t  

probably i n  t h i s  case s p e c i f i c a l l y  t o  f i r m  or  short-term f i r m  

sales i s  t ha t  you would be applying t o  the separated sale i n  

d be appl i e d  a1 1 probabi 7 i t y  higher incremental costs than wou 
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once the sale i s  made, o r  the purchase 

i s  made, I 'm sorry, i t  becomes a zero cost sale. And t o  tha t  

extent, by moving tha t  higher cost sale and applying i t  t o  the 

separated sale cost, you by d e f i n i t i o n  w i l l  lower the amount o f  

gain and therefore you w i l l  shrink the pot .  

Is tha t  the proposal t h a t  you are sponsoring i n  t h i s  Q 

proceeding? 

A Is t o  use incrementa7 cost o f  purchases as the 

surrogate f o r  the cost o f  fuel  as applied t o  nonseparated 

sales, t ha t  i s  correct. 

Q And i s  i t  correct t h a t  the only th ing  tha t  

accomplishes i s  t ha t  i t  shrinks the incentive pot? 

A No, I th ink  i t  accomplishes some other things. I 

th ink i t  - -  

Q Well, what were you r e f e r r i n g  t o  on Page 39, Line 6 

and 7 when you said the only th ing  tha t  accomplishes i s  i t  

pot? 

t h a t ' s  what i t  does. I t h i n k  l a t e r  you 

s h r i  nks the i ncenti ve 

A E f fec t i ve l y  

w i l l  f i n d  tha t  I made 

Q Does shrink, 

some other comments. 

ng the pot mean i t  reduces the t o t a l  

gains tha t  may qua l i f y  for the u t i l i t y  t o  receive an incentive 

on? 

A What i t  does i s  put i n t o  perspective the way the 

u t i l i t y  i s  operating the whole system between serving i t s  
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r e t a i l  customers and serving wholesale customers. And t o  the 

extent the r e t a i l  customers may be absorbing costs because o f  

Y sales, i t  s h i f t s  those costs over t o  the sales. Ultimate 

they w i l l  pay the same cost. 

Q Could you answer the question whether shrinking 

pot means i t  reduces the t o t a l  gain tha t  may q u a l i f y  the 

u t i  1 i t y  t o  receive an incentive? 

A Well, tha t  l i n e  does, yes. 

the 

Q Okay. M r .  Kordecki, i s  what shrinks the pot the fac t  

t h a t  your method on occasion w i l l  subst i tute a higher purchased 

power cost i n  place o f  the t rue  incremental cost o f  a 

nonseparated sale a t  times when a u t i l i t y  happens t o  be buying 

higher pr iced firm power a t  the time o f  the sale? 

I f  the example i s  only f i r m  power, yes. A 

Q Okay. So you r e a l l y  use a surrogate f o r  incremental 

cost, don't you? 

A That's correct, t h a t ' s  what I said. 

Q 

A 

A higher priced purchased power? 

Using the higher purchased cost t ha t  i s  supporting 

the overal l  sale, the overal l  load and sale. 

Q But tha t  i s  r e a l l y  a proxy for the incremental cost 

o f  the sale, r i g h t ?  

A Yes, i t ' s  not the dispatched cost? 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: 

THE WITNESS: I ' m  sorry? 

How you do the matching o f  that? 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I'm a b i t  naive on t h i s ,  but I want 
to make sure I understand what you're saying. A s  I take i t  you 

llrould have i d e n t i f i e d  t h a t  there was - -  t h a t  for a wholesale 

sale there would have been a purchase power transaction t o  

:over that? 

THE WITNESS: No, not necessarily. It would be a 

s i tuat ion where a u t i l i t y  was making a nonseparated sale and it 

Mas also purchasing power a t  the same time. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: 

rJholesale sale? I n  other words - - 
But not necessarily t o  cover tha t  

THE WITNESS: It bas ica l l y  i s  the purchase i s  being 

Jsed t o  cover the whole load and tha t  sale as f a r  as I ' m  

Zoncerned. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. And then you would then take 

the cost o f  tha t  purchased transaction as a surrogate fo r  what 

should have been a gain on the sale? 
THE WITNESS: I t  would be a surrogate f o r  whatever 

the u t i l i t y  was using as i t s  incremental fuel  cost. 

CHAI RMAN JACOBS : 0 kay . 
THE WITNESS: I f  i t ' s  higher. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And so my question then, you 

v~ouldn't  need t o  match i t  t o  any par t i cu la r  sale, then? 

THE WITNESS: No, i t  doesn't match the sales. 

Everything goes t o  the increment . 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. 
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BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q M r .  Kordecki , you would use the  higher pr iced 

purchased power cost even when i t  i s  a zero incremental cost 

must take purchase, would you not? 

A Yes, because o f  the timing issues, yes. 

Q I t ' s  your view, i s  i t  not, t h a t  any higher pr iced 

purchased power should be, quote, used as the incremental cost 

o f  making a sale, even i n  circumstances where i t  doesn't 

r e f l e c t  the t r u e  incremental cost o f  the  sale? 

A No. 

Q What would you use? 

A I would exclude a l l  long-term f i r m  purchases t h a t  

were being used as reserves l i k e  on the  ten-year s i t e  plans. 

I n  other words, i f  a u t i l i t y  was making a f i r m  purchase and 

using i t  as reserves, I would not - - I would exclude those. 

Only short-term. 

Q But you wouldn't look a t  the t r u e  dispatch 

incremental cost  o f  t h a t  sale, would you? You would use 

whatever higher pr iced cost i s  being made dur ing that  time 

frame whether i t  was made f o r  t h a t  sale o r  not? 

A Yes. And I w i l l  explain t o  you why. What i s  

bothersome i s  the a b i l i t y  f o r  the  u t i l i t i e s  t o  make very 

conservative must buy or  firm purchases and then t u r n  around 

and t r e a t  those as zero cost. And a t  t h a t  po in t  s e l l  on t h e i r  

increment which i s  lower than t h a t  the cost o f  t h a t  purchase. 
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Q You th ink  they would 

purposes o f  i ncenti ves? 

A Not t o t a l l y  

tha t  a1 1 the purchases 

purchases are f i r m  and 

incremental cost, yes, 

f i r m .  
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arger gain. 

do tha t  t o  get a gain f o r  

A 

Q 

I j u s t  don' t  th ink i t  should be there. 

Wel l ,  do you th ink the u t i l i t i e s  would do tha t  i n  

order t o  gain i ncenti ves? 

A I have assumed for my testimony t h a t  they a re  a l l  

making prudent decisions. Now, some o f  those prudent decisions 

cost be very conservative. 

Q M r .  Kordecki , i n  your view o f  ca lcu lat ing gains there 

might be no re la t ionship whatsoever between the costs t h a t  you 

are using fo r  incremental costs and the actual incremental cost 

o f  a sale, i s n ' t  t ha t  correct? 

n my testimony, no. You have assumed 

- - i f  you are assuming tha t  a l l  the 

tha t  a t  that po in t  they take a zero 
but some o f  the purchases may not be 

Q Would you look a t  Page 38 o f  your t ranscr ip t .  1 

asked you the question so there might be no re la t ionship 

between tha t  cost t ha t  you are using as the incremental cost 

and the actual incremental cost o f  the sale? 

Yes, there might not be. A 
Q What was your answer t o  tha t?  Line 24. 

A "There are instances where t h a t  i s  true, tha t  i s  
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correct .  " 

Q Okay. Your subst i tu t ion of higher cost purchased 

power i s n ' t  affected by when the purchase commitment was made 

or whether the decision t o  purchase was prudently made, i s  it? 

A It may not have, yes. I mean - - 

Q But your subst i tu t ion o f  the higher purchased power 

cost doesn't depend on those parameters, does it? 

A Well, i t  depends on what time tha t  - - I ' m  sorry, when 

the purchase was made. 

Q How about when the decision t o  make the purchase was 

made? 

A Well, the same th ing.  I n  other words, i f  the u t i l i t y  

already had the nonseparated sale, they might make the f i r m  

purchase a f t e r  they have contracted f o r  the sale. 

Q The use o f  the higher pr iced purchased power cost i n  

l i e u  o f  the t rue  incremental cost o f  the sale i s  what would 

have the e f fec t  o f  shrinking the incent ive pot, i s  i t  not? 
A As a surrogate, i t  w i l l  - - as long as there are 

higher costs i n  tha t  increment, yes. 

Q Well, shrinking the pot would reduce the potent ia l  

f o r  a u t i l i t y  t o  receive an incent ive,  would i t  not? 

A It w i l l  reduce - -  two things. It w - i l l  reduce the 

incentive, the potent ia l  f o r  incent ive,  but i t  a l so  po ten t ia l l y  

may reduce r i s k y  purchases and sales. I ' m  sorry, sales. And 

t o  the extent tha t  those sales will be borne - - o r  purchases 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 
11 
12 

13 

14 
15 

16 
17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

195 

H i l l  be borne by r e t a i l  customers. 

Q M r .  Kordecki , have you looked a t  the item, the i t e m  

that has been marked i n  t h i s  hearing as Exh ib i t  3, which was 

Exhibi t  2 t o  your deposition t ranscr ip t ,  t ha t  being the 

September 20, 2000. s t a f f  recommendation from M r .  Keating and 

Mr. Bohrmann t o  the part ies i n  the fuel  docket? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you accept t h i s  as a reasonable method o f  

implementing what the Commission has decided i n  the way o f  an 

i ncenti ve mechani sm? 

A I th ink  i t  implements what the Commission decided, 

not necessarily the speci f ics o f  the d e f i n i t i o n  o f  gains and - -  
which i s  the subject o f  t h i s  hearing, i t  i s  a method t o  roll it 

i n t o  the fuel  clause, tha t  I would agree with. 

Q Did you say during your deposition t h a t  i t  i s  f i n e  as 

f a r  as a way o f  implementing what the Commission adopted as an 

i ncenti ve mechani sm? 

A Yes. But my in ten t ion  was i n  terms o f  how i t  was 

going t o  be adopting the incent ive mechanism i n  terms o f  how i t  

was going t o  be used i n  the fuel  adjustment. Not the elements 

necessarily o f  each one o f  the items. I bel ieve those a re  the 

subjects o f  the hearing today. 

Q But t h i s  road map f o r  implementation doesn't r e a l l y  

deal i n  those, does it, the de ta i l s  o f  gains and whatnot? 

A No, t h a t ' s  what I ' m  saying. 
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Q So f o r  purposes o f  what i t  i s  w r i t t e n  f o r ,  you have 

no d i f f i c u l t y  w i th  it, do you? 
A 

Q 
A 

Q 
A 

gains. 

Q 
A 

The form, no. 

Substance? 

Yes. 

What d i f f i c u l t y  do you have? 

I'm not sure t h a t  

I 'm sorry? 
I'm not sure i t  i 

it i s appropriate 

appropriate t o  e 

t o  estimate 

t imate gain 

MR. SEASLEY: Thank you. That 's  a l l  we have. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r .  Badders. 

. 

MR. BADDERS: We don ' t  have any questions f o r  t h i s  

vlJ i  tness. 

MR. McGEE: Just a few, M r .  Chairman. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. McGEE: 

Q Mr. Kordecki , do you by any chance have a copy w i t h  

you o f  the protest  t h a t  FIPUG f i l e d  t h a t  was the reason we are 

here f o r  t h i s  hearing today? 

A No. 

Q If I may, I would l i k e  t o  show you the one I have. I 
have shown you a copy o f  the  protest ,  and on Page 10 there i s  a 

recommended rev is ion  t o  I tem Number 1 i n  the PAA po r t i on  o f  the 

order t h a t  we are considering today. And FIPUG there has i n  
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the underlying por t ion indicated the rev is ion t h a t  i t  thinks 

needs t o  be made. On Page 17 o f  your testimony you indicate a 

recommended revis ion t o  t h i s  same I tem Number 1 from P a r t  3 o f  

the PAA order. Yours i s  d i f f e ren t  than the one i n  the protest. 

I f  you need a minute t o  compare those two, I would be happy t o  

give you that .  

A Yes, I see tha t .  

Q Florida Power a t  the time i t  f i l e d  i t s  testimony d i d  

not have your testimony before it, o f  course, and was 

commenting i n  disputing the rev is ion t h a t  was recommended or 

suggested i n  tha t  protest .  Would i t  be f a i r  t o  say tha t  you 

also disagree w i th  tha t  i n  tha t  you have changed in a fa i r l y  

s ign i f i can t  way the por t ion  o f  the modif icat ion in t ha t  

suggestion? 

A Yes. I believe, as stated i n  the protest ,  the 

appl i cab1 e fuel  cost factor  probabl y was i nappropri ate i n terms 

o f  the calculat ion. You a r r i ve  a t  t ha t  ca lcu lat ion by doing - -  

by assigning the incremental cost  and then whatever f a l l s  out 

becomes the appl icable fuel  factor.  

Q And the other element tha t  a t  l eas t  I had i d e n t i f i e d  

as being d i f f e ren t  between the one i n  the protest  and i n  your 

testimony, the recommendation i n  the protest  provided fo r  a 

par t icu lar  treatment tha t  would be given t o  buy-through 

customers, meaning i n t e r r u p t i b l e  customers. You a1 so agree 

tha t  that  i s  not appropriate t o  be included i n  the Item Number 
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A I th ink  the buy-through power when nonseparated sales 

are taking place i s  appropriate. I ' m  not sure i t  i s  

l? 

8 

9 

cost? 

A Right. 

7 

10 
11 

12 

appropriate i n  terms o f  def in ing what the incremental cost i s ,  

no. 

Q That i s  the issue tha t  we are dealing w i th  today, 

r i g h t ,  the i den t i f i ca t i on  o f  the proper amount o f  incremental 

Q Just one other c l a r i f i c a t i o n  point .  On Page 16 you 

have a question and answer tha t  goes t o  the top o f  17 tha t  

deals w i th  the second and four th  item i n  the PAA por t ion o f  the 

13 

14 

15 
16 
17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

order we have been discussing. 

A Right. 

Q The protest  tha t  you have i n  front o f  you i d e n t i f i e s  

Items 1 and 3 as the elements o f  t ha t  PAA por t ion o f  the order 

tha t  are bei ng protested. 

A That i s  correct. 

Q Would you agree tha t  t h i s  question and answer tha t  

begins on Line 9 o f  Page 16 has nothing t o  do w i th  any o f  the 

issues tha t  are before the Commission today? 

A Yes. That was my er ro r  when I wrote my testimony. I 

addressed a l l  the issues and probably should have removed i t  

before it was f i l e d .  

Q Okay. Do you recognize the p o s s i b i l i t y  tha t  a 
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nonseparated who1 esal  e s a l  e by a u t i  1 i t y  coul d be advantageous 

t o  the general body o f  ratepayers and be disadvantageous t o  

i n t e r r u p t i  b l  e customers? 

A A nonseparated sale may be disadvantageous t o  

i n te r rup t i b le  customers. You have t o  explain t o  me i n  what 

way. 

Q Well, maybe we can look a t  tha t  by using your 

example. On Page 12 o f  your testimony you have a two-part 

hypothetical. And in the second par t  you are dealing w i t h  a 

f i r m  sale tha t  a u t i l i t y  has made f o r  100 megawatts. The 

u t i l i t y  also has 100 megawatts o f  nonfirm load. 

A Right. 

Q By the pr ice  figures tha t  you have given, the general 

body o f  ratepayers w i l l  benef i t  from t h a t  sale by the 

dif ference between i t s  costs and the revenues t h a t  i t  receives, 

or $10, and I guess i n  t h i s  case i f  the u t i l i t y  i s  over the 

threshold i t  might be 80 percent o f  tha t .  The incrementa7 

customers suf fer  an increased r i s k  o f  being in ter rupted by tha t  

100-megawatt f i r m  sale, don ' t  they? 

A 

me. This i s  not a subject o f  t h i s  hearing. 

s ign i f i can t  po l i cy  question about u t i l i t i e s  making sales t ha t  

are nonseparated. 

customers are paying the fare, the t o t a l  fare, and in te r rup t ing  

e i ther  1 oad management customers, or  i n t e r r u p t i  b l  e customers, 

Yes. I would l i k e  t o  comment t o  what you are asking 

I th ink  there i s  a 

I n  other words, the ex i s t i ng  r e t a i l  
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or other nonfirm customers i n  order t o  continue t o  make that  

sa le .  

u t i l i t y  t o  do that. 

problem once a f i r m  contract i s  signed. 

problem, but I th ink that  i s  probably a problem the Commission 

might want t o  address i n  another hearing, o r  under another 

venue. 

Q 

I don't believe the t a r i f f s  s t a t e  the a b i l i t y  o f  the 

I believe there i s  a rock and a hard place 

I agree that  that  i s  a 

I f  the u t i l i t y  were t o  enter i n t o  a sale o f  the type 

you have described i n  your hypothetical on Page 12, i t  would be 

clear tha t  that  would produce a benef i t  that  would be received 

by the general body o f  ratepayers, i s  that  correct? 

A Yes, t o  the deference o f  those people who were 

interrupted or had t o  buy t h i r d  party. 

Q Which actual ly that  brings up another point I wanted 

t o  ask you about. You were describing a s i tuat ion on Page 14 

o f  your testimony i n  the answer that  begins on Line 10, and you 

t a l k  about even i f  the u t i l i t y  and i t s  planners and traders are 

making i ncremental s a l  es usi ng great d i  1 i gence, you s t i  1 1 have 

the possibi 1 i t y  o f  unforeseen events that  could resul t  i n  

uni ntended consequences , but you concl ude by saying that  these 

uni ntended consequences may be borne i nequi tab1 y among the 

classes o f  customers. 

inequitably by nonfirm customers? 

I take i t  from that  you mean borne 

A Yes. A l l  t he  nonfirm customers, that  i s  correct. 

Q I ' m  curious as t o  the inequi ty that  i s  involved i n  
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the consequences, those unintended consequences o f  unforeseen 

events being borne by the nonfirm customers when those 

customers are being compensated t o  incur that  r i sk .  

A Well, I don't believe they were. I believe that  they 

signed up f o r  the various nonfirm ra tes  i n  order t o  be part  o f  

the - - I w i l l  ca l l  i t  reserves fo r  the individual u t i 1  i t y  t o  

serve i t s  f i r m  load. The Commission changed that  s l igh t ly ,  o r  

actual ly s l i gh t l y  more than s l igh t ly ,  I believe i n  1993 when i t  

ordered that u t i l i t i e s  would use the i r  - -  interrupt t he i r  

nonfirm load t o  s e l l  t o  f i r m  load o f  other u t i l i t i e s  under 

emergency conditions. 

Commission has stated that the u t i l i t y  should be interrupt ing 

or buying t h i r d  party so that  u t i l i t i e s  could make nonseparated 

wholesale sales. So I th ink you and I are reading possibly the 

t a r i f f  o f  the u t i l i t y  d i f fe ren t ly .  

I have never read anything that  said the 

Q Well ,  i f  we se t  aside the si tuat ion where i t  i s  

possible that  a u t i l i t y  may need t o  interrupt nonfirm load t o  
make sales t o  maintain the f i r m  load o f  other u t i l i t i e s  - -  

A The emergency condition, that  i s  correct. 

Q We have a s i tuat ion i n  the example t h a t  you have used 

where a s a l e  i s  being made that - - i f  I understand what you 

have just  indicated - -  c lear ly  i s  t o  t h e  benefi t  o f  the general 

body o f  ratepayers, i t  allows the assets that  they are 

supporting t o  more e f f i c i e n t l y  and they are credited wi th the 

p r o f i t  from that. Why i s  i t  that you think i t  i s  inappropriate 
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reca l l  them. 

tha t  i n  

Q 
A 

what u t '  
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A 
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tha t  customers who a re  being compensated t o  incur a higher r i s k  

o f  in ter rupt ion should allow tha t  benef ic ia l  sale t o  continue? 

A Because I don' t  th ink  when they signed up fo r  the 

various t a r i f f s  were aware tha t  t h e i r  service would be possibly 

interrupted, or i n  the case o f  buy-through increased prices i n  

order fo r  the u t i l i t y  t o  go out and make incremental sales out 

o f ,  i n  a sense, incremental avai lable capacity. I th ink  they 

signed up t o  be par t  o f  the reserves t o  protect  f i r m  load. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  And i f  tha t  were the case and the 

u t i l i t i e s  were required t o  engage i n  wholesale market 

transactions w i th  tha t  view tha t  you j u s t  expressed i n  mind, 

you would agree tha t  there would be less o f  these nonseparated 

sales made by the u t i l i t y ?  

, from what I heard t h i s  morning, apparently no 

firm sales. Everyone stated t h a t  they are making 

And when they become short o f  capacity they 

So i f  tha t  i s  the condit ion today, I don' t  see 

one sense t h i s  i s  going t o  be af fected a t  a l l .  

So you don ' t  see tha t  there i s  a problem? 

I don' t  see there i s  a problem as long as tha t  i s  

l i t i e s  are doing, but they are not required t o  do that .  

Well - -  
They do tha t  as par t  o f  t h e i r  p o l i c y  or procedure. 

Would you expect tha t  a u t i l i t y  making a sale a t  any 

given time tha t  t ha t  sale may take place would receive more i f  
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they - - i f  tha t  sale was made under f i r m  condi t ions than under 

nonf i rm condi t i ons? 

A 

Q 
1 would t h ink  so, yes. 

And t h a t  would increase the benef 

the general body o f  ratepayers? 

A That would also increase the l i k e  

t o f  t h a t  sale t o  

ihood tha t  these 

nonfirm customers would be e i the r  in te r rup ted  o r  

i nconveni enced. 

Q So it would be your testimony t h a t  t he  u t i l i t y  should 

avoid the s i t ua t i on  where i t  can maximize the  p r o f i t  from i t s  

sale i n  order t o  take greater care t h a t  i n t e r r u p t i b l e  customers 

aren ' t interrupted? 

A Nonfi r m  customers, not i n t e r r u p t i  b l  e customers. In 
other words, you have a l o t  o f  other types o f  nonfirm 

customers. Yes, I bel ieve t h a t  i s  - -  I don ' t  bel ieve t h a t  t h a t  

i s  what those people signed up fo r .  

necessari ly should use one class o f  customers t o  subsidize, i n  

a sense, the other balance o f  classes. I t h i n k  t h a t  i s  l i k e  

the cost o f  service p a r i t y  ru le .  And I t h i n k  what you are 

s tat ing,  I th ink,  i s  what you are advocating. 

I don ' t  bel ieve t h a t  you 

Q Just one more question. You have an ind ica t ion  on 

Page 11 o f  your testimony, Line 18 and 19, t h a t  r e t a i l  

ratepayers should be held harmless from the e f fec ts  o f  the 

u t i l i t y ' s  nonseparated sales. Do you see tha t?  

A Yes. 
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Q I ' m  curious as t o  how you mean tha t .  Going back t o  

your example where a u t i l i t y  i s  making a sale f o r  24 hours, and 

during f i v e  hours o f  tha t  24-hour s a l e  the sale i s  

unprofi table. Should the ratepayers be held harmless from the 

ef fects  o f  t h e  f i v e  hours even though the overal l  sale i s  

p r o f i  tab1 e? 

A Yes. I n  the sense tha t  i f  there are higher 

incremental costs during those f i v e  hours, then they should 

be - -  they should be used as the incremental cost o f  the sale. 

The hold harmless pa r t  i s  t o  the extent t ha t  the u t i l i t y  may be 

above the benchmark tha t ,  i n  fac t ,  the u t i l i t y  customers are 

sharing a greater amount o f  the, quote, p r o f i t  t h a t  was 

s l i g h t l y  i n f l a t e d  by the way the sales may have been managed 

and the purchases were managed. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  I may not have made t h a t  c lear.  Under 

your example, the u t i l i t y  would be receiving a gain o f  $10 each 

hour - - wel l ,  ac tua l l y  $10 times 100-megawatt hours during each 

hour except f o r  the f i v e  hours t h a t  you have i d e n t i f i e d  i n  

which there would be a loss o f  $E? 

A Right. 

Q So w i th  the f ive-hour loss o f  $15 you a r e  looking a t  

75, a 19-hour period w i th  be a gain o f  10, you would be looking 

a t  $190 

A Right. 

Q The net e f f e c t  would be $115 for the overal l  
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$115 net gain, o r  should the loss o f  $75 be excluded i n  the 

u t i  1 i t y  required t o  pass- through a gain o f  $190? 

A I may have misunderstood the way you deal t  w i th  it. 

I d i d n ' t  see tha t  being a loss, I j u s t  saw a smaller gain 

r e l a t i v e  t o  what was going t o  be established for the benchmark. 

Q Well, you t a l k  about making a purchase during the 

f i v e  hours a t  $70. 

A Right. The inclusion o f  those costs w i l l  lower the 

leve l  o f ,  quote, gain. The do l la rs  are s t i l l  going t o  be paid 

i n  the fuel  clause. They are s t i l l  going t o  be paid. 

Q 
A Right. 

A f te r  the ne t t ing  takes place? 

MR. McGEE: Thank you. That 's a l l  I have. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Mr. Childs. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. CHILDS: 

Q M r .  Kordecki , what methodologies t o  determine 

variable O&M f o r  the investor-owned u t i l i t i e s  i n  Flor ida have 

you evaluated? 

A The only th ing I have looked a t  - - and i t  was post my 
testimony was what was f i l e d  i n  the interrogator ies.  

Q So when you c r i t iqued the var iable O&M methodology 

language in the Commission's order, you were not aware o f  what 

the u t i l i t i e s  d i d  t o  quant i fy t h e i r  var iable O&M? 
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A The way I looked a t  tha t  language was tha t  i t  d i d n ' t  

define the boundaries or what should be i n  the ca lcu lat ion o f  

tha t .  

ought t o  be a standard calculat ion assigned methodology fo r  a t  

leas t  assigning the calculat ion o f  that ,  yes. 

I thought t h a t ' s  - -  what my testimony addresses i s  there 

Q 

discussed, even those as t o  which you have become aware a f te r  

your testimony was f i l e d ,  f o r  the investor-owned u t i l i t i e s  

d i f f e r  from the methodologies tha t  they have f i l e d  w i th  t h i s  

Commission i n  connection w i th  purchases o f  power from 

qual i fy i  ng fac i  1 i ti es? 

Do you know how the methodologies t h a t  have been 

A I know tha t  i n  qua l i f y ing  f a c i l i t i e s  there i s  an O&M 

adder given t o  the QFs. To the extent they may be d i f f e ren t  

from u t i l i t y  t o  u t i l i t y ,  I r e a l l y  don ' t  know. 

But there was a concept there tha t  u t i l i t i e s  when Q 
they purchase are avoiding O&M when they purchase from 

qual i fy ing f a c i l i t i e s ,  i s n ' t  t ha t  correct? 1 

A There i s  a concept, yes, theore t ica l l y .  

Q Well, i t ' s  not - -  I mean, i s  i t  theoret ical  

you take exception w i th  what the Commission requires? 

A No. I th ink  i t  bas ica l l y  becomes a mathema 

calculat ion based on theory, yes. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  Then I want t o  go back t o  - - 

because 

i cal 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Could I ask a quick question on 

that? I s  the upshot o f  your pos i t ion  tha t  wholesale customers 
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are paying O&M costs i n  nonseparated sales? 

THE WITNESS: Well ,  I believe the u t i l i t i e s  are 

co l l ec t i ng  O&M costs when they make a nonseparated sale. To 

the extent o f  the level  o f  t ha t  cost and how i t  i s  calculated, 

there are two aspects. One i s  tha t  they should come before the 

Commission and support the calculat ion. 

be anything problematic. Two i s  tha t  they need t o  come i n  and 

support the idea tha t  those dol lars  a ren ' t  already being 

col 1 ected 

I don ' t  f i n d  tha t  t o  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. I s  i t  - -  

THE WITNESS: To the extent tha t  both of those are 

met, f ine,  I have no problem wi th  them co l l ec t i ng  incremental 

O&M 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: 
a l l  O&M costs would be i n  r e t a i l ?  

It i s  a f a i r  assumption t o  assume 

THE WITNESS: No. I th ink  i t  r e a l l y  depends on the 

level  o f  O&M t h a t  has been granted t o  the u t i l i t y  previously, 

expanded f o r  whatever sales or however i t  was expanded, and I 

th ink sales i s  probably the best surrogate f o r  a var iable i n  

terms o f  what was separated i n t o  r e t a i l  r a t e  base. I n  other 

words, if there was $100 m i l  1 i on  o f  O&M and sales are now - - 
f o r  r e t a i l  purposes are 50 percent higher, then they are 

co l lect ing approximately - - a l l  things being equal, 150 percent 

more o f  t ha t  O&M than they were granted. To the extent tha t  

t h e i r  O&M level  now i s  less than tha t  expansion factor,  I don' t  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 
11 
12 

13 
14 

15 

16 
17 

18 
19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

208 

th ink  they should get any, should get the O&M. 

greater than, then t h a t ' s  f ine.  

I f  i t  i s  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Now, a t  a prac t ica l  level  - -  l e t ' s  

I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  th ink  how we would say we accept your posit ion. 

implement it. 

way t o  take out O&M from the  proceeds o f  the - -  
It sounds l i k e  you would have t o  f igure out a 

THE WITNESS: I th ink  you could go back t o  the l a s t  

r a t e  case, and i n  some cases you may have t o  go through the 

archives fo r  a couple o f  these companies and take whatever O&M 

budget they are a1 l o t t e d  and expand it f o r  whatever sales 

increases have taken place since then. 

reasonabl e surrogate. 
I t h ink  i t ' s  a 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: No, I understand tha t  par t .  I ' m  

going forward t o  implementing how we would address your concern 

w i th  regard t o  the wholesale - -  dealing w i t h  the gains, I'm 

than 

prob 

some 

sorry. 

THE WITNESS: 

expenditures today are 

appl icabl  e ra te  schedu 

credited back t o  the c 

then they should 

Well, t o  the extent t ha t  t h e i r  O&M 

less than what would be found i n  the 

es to ta l ized,  I t h ink  i t  should a l l  be 

ause. To the extent i t  may be higher 

keep - -  in other words, then they have a 

em and they should keep - - 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. I was going - -  you would do 

kind o f  formula where you t r y  t o  take i t  out o f  the gains 

before you do the 80/20 or something? 
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THE WITNESS: No, I j u s t  want t o  know - -  i t ' s  where 

you put it. I n  other words, as soon as you a l l  have decided 

what it should be, or how i t  should be calculated uniformly, o r  

reasonably uniformly, then the second step would be t o  

calculate, i n  fact ,  i f  i t  i s  already being co l lected or not 

being col lected i n  base rates. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : Thank you 

BY MR. CHILDS: 

Q I s n ' t  the essence o f  c a l l i n g  i t  var iab le t o  indicate 

tha t  the cost leve l  varies w i th  the leve l  o f  k i lowat t  hour 

output? 

A No argument tha t  it i s  not an addi t ional  cost. 

Q Okay. And i s n ' t  the concept t h a t  t h i s  Commission has 

used as t o  variable O&M i n  connection w i th  purchases from 

qua l i f y ing  f a c i l i t i e s  based on tha t  premise, t h a t  i s ,  t ha t  by 

avoiding the necessity t o  generate i t s e l f  the u t i l i t y  i s  

avoiding an O&M cost? 

A Yes, I don' t  have a problem w i th  tha t .  

Q And the f l i p  side o f  tha t  i s  t h a t  i f  i t  does generate 

t o  make an off-system sale i t  i s  incurr ing a cost, i t ' s  

variable? 

A Yes. 

Q I want t o  tu rn  you t o  your testimony on Page 14. Mr. 

McGee asked you about it. 

i t ' s  a question s ta r t i ng  on Line 8 o f  Page 14. 

I t ' s  a question and answer on - -  

You're t a l k i n g  
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A Yes. 
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that  addresses, I believe, Issue 2, 

culat ion o f  gains, i s  tha t  correct? 

Q And so as I read t h i s  testimony what you are saying 

i s  t h a t  i t  doesn't make any dif ference whether the u t i l i t y ' s  

actions were prudent, you s t i l l  propose t h i s  i s  a proper 

adjustment? 

A No, I th ink  what I'm saying i s  I am assuming tha t  

t h e i r  actions were prudent, but I'm not sure t h a t  they ought t o  

be rewarded - -  

Q For being prudent? 

A - -  f o r  actions tha t  are outside o f  t h e i r  control t ha t  

may, i n  a sense, t u rn  out t o  be mistakes. 

Q They are r e a l l y  not outside o f  t h e i r  control,  are 

they? 

A Well, I th ink they are i n  the sense tha t  they have 

l i k e  a forced outage tha t  requires something t o  take place or 

somet h i  ng 1 i ke t ha t  . 
Q That i s  outside o f  t h e i r  cont ro l .  But they are not 

being rewarded f o r  that .  They are being rewarded fo r  achieving 

a gain on a sale, a ren ' t  they? 

A Well, t o  the extent t ha t  the ratepayers are subject 

t o  higher costs, l e t ' s  say, because they had t h i s  forced 

outage, then they are being rewarded for a sale based on a 

cost, and tha t  t ha t  cost i s  not t rack ing what happened i n  the 
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t o  make a sale because o f  a problem. 

I n  other words, they actua 

Q I want t o  understand, and I want t o  

211 

l y  might be able 

backtrack f o r  a 

minute on variable O&M. To what extent do u t i l i t i e s  include 

variable O&M i n  t h e i r  dispatch costs? 

A I believe they do. 

Q They do. Why do they do that? 

A Because they can br ing  i n  the revenues and they 

bel ieve - - I hope they bel ieve they have a cost and they a 

get the revenues fo r  it. 

Q Well, dispatch cost i s  

purchases off-system, i s n ' t  it? 

A For making sales? 

Q I t ' s  used f o r  dispatch 

A Right. 

Q I s n ' t  t ha t  correct? 

A Yes. 

used fo r  more than making 

ng your system, i s n ' t  it? 

so 

Q So you have a d i f f e r e n t  variable O&M associated w i th  

one u n i t  than you do f o r  another, i s n ' t  t ha t  correct? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q And so the u t i l i t y  i n  attempting t o  achieve lowest 

o v e r a l l  cost factors tha t  i n  t o  i t s  evaluation process? 

A It should, yes. 

Q And, therefore, when i t  makes an o f f  system sale i t  

should attempt t o  recover the incremental O&M i n  the purchase 
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p r i ce  t h a t  i t  receives f o r  the sale, should i t  not? 

A 

Q Okay. Now, l e t ' s  go back t o  t h i s  discussion. You 

I have no disagreement wi th  that .  

said also, I th ink,  i n  discussing t h i s ,  and I may not have your 

comment word-for-word correct, but correct me t o  the extent i t  

i s  wrong. I thought tha t  you said i n  your approach about using 

i f  higher, the 

es s i tuat ions 

Is tha t  i n  

the purchased pr ice,  the fuel cost o f  purchases 

reason t h a t  was proposed was t o  reduce r i s k y  sa 

t o  the extent the r i s k  i s  borne by the customer 

close proximity? 

A 

Q 
Generally t ha t  i s  good enough. 

I want t o  explore w i th  you the extent t o  which tha t  

i s  a r e a l i s t i c  estimate o f  what goes on today in terms o f  

u t i l i t i e s '  decisions. You don ' t  have the view t h a t  u t i l i t i e s  

are s e l l  i n g  - - would be s e l l  i n g  capacity on a f i r m  basis even 
i f  tha t  i s  what they did, and reduce - -  and create a r i s k y  

s i  t ua t  i on woul d you? 

A I ' m  not sure I necessarily agree w i th  tha t ,  but 

generally I would agree w i th  tha t .  

Q Okay. Well, l e t  me show you a document. M r .  

Kordecki, what I have given you i s  a page from the  rules o f  the 

Commission. And what I'm going t o  reference i s  the Rule 

25 - 6.035, adequacy o f  resources. 

MR. CHILDS: And, Mr. Chairman, I would l i k e  t o  have 

tha t  marked for i denti f i cat  i on. 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Show t h a t  marked as Exh ib i t  8. 

(Exhibi t  8 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . )  

BY MR. CHILDS: 

Q Now, as t o  the u t i l i t y ' s  obl igat ion,  the f i r s t  

sentence under Subsection 1 o f  t h a t  r u l e  requires the u t i 1  i t y  

t o  maintain reserves, as I read it, s u f f i c i e n t  t o  meet a l l  

reasonabl e demands for service and provide a reasonabl e reserve 

for emergencies, i sn ' t t h a t  correct? 

A 

Q 
That's what i t  says, yes. 

So when a u t i l i t y  made an off-system sale on a firm 

basis i t  would s t i l l  - - o r  i t  i s  supposed t o  meet the  

requirements o f  t h i s  ru le ,  i s n ' t  t h a t  r i g h t ?  

A It should, yes. 

Q I t  should. And so i f  we had a s i t u a t i o n  where the 

u t i l i t y  ended up incur r ing  a purchase p r i c e  such as you pose, 

it would have had t o  have inadequate generation t o  meet load, 

yl~oul dn ' t you agree? 

A 

Q 

You're t a l k i n g  about operating reserves, correct? 

I ' m  t a l  k ing about whatever reserves are avai 1 able. 

I n  reserves i t  would not have capacity avai lab le t o  it on i t s  

system t o  meet i t s  demand and, therefore, would have t o  make an 

D f  f - system purchase? 

A That i s  correct .  

Q And i t  would do t h a t ,  i t  would make t h a t  purchase 

mly  because the emergency was so s i g n i f i c a n t  t h a t  i t  was 
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beyond the requirement o f  t h i s  ru le ,  wouldn't you agree? 

A Generally, yes. 

Q Generally, yes. Okay. Now, the next question I want 

t o  ask about relates t o  Subparagraph 2, which addresses 

purchased power. And there i t  says only f i r m  purchased power 

agreements may be included as a resource f o r  purposes o f  

cal cul a t i  ng a p l  anned or  operati ng reserve margin. 

So, i f  we had the s i tua t ion  t h a t  you postulate where 

a u t i l i t y  i s  making a purchase, then I would assume it would be 

a purchase tha t  was not firm and not included i n  t h i s  pa r t  o f  

the ru le .  

A Well, I t h ink  where i t  becomes a 1 i t t l e  cloudy t o  me 

i s  the term describing the varying leve ls  o f  firmness. 

Q 
A 

The r u l e  doesn't describe that? 

The r u l e  doesn't, but I th ink  the market has evolved 

tha t  way. And I ' m  not  sure tha t  the r u l e  necessarily conforms 

t o  what people c a l l  f i r m  and nonfirm. 

Would you read the next sentence o f  t h a t  section o f  

e, however. 

based on the very high a v a i l a b i l i t y  o f  spec i f i c  nonfirm 

Doesn't it say the u t i l i t y  may ask f o r  a 

purchases? 

A Yes. 

Q I s n ' t  t ha t  exact ly what the Commission was t a l k i n g  

about as it wasn't r e a l l y  f i r m ,  but i t  had - -  i n  the sense o f  

being absolute, but i t  had some firmness attached t o  it? 
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A Yes. 

Q So here we have a requirement, and I'm t r y i n g  t o  

understand the r iskiness. 

making these sales would - -  i f  i t  v io la ted t h i s  ru le ,  i t  would 

probably be imprudent, woul dn ' t you say? 

It would seem t o  me t h a t  the u t i l i t y  

A Well, i t  may be unintended. I n  other words, i t  may 

end up v io la t i ng  the r u l e  i n  the sense tha t  i t  i s  a f te r  the 

fac t ,  and t h a t ' s  where I have got the - -  where there i s  a 

probl em. 

Q Well, i f  i t  d i d n ' t  maintain adequate plan reserves 

and i t  made off-system sales on an opportunity bas is ,  wouldn't 

i t  be considered imprudent t o  make the off-system sale? 

A Apparently there must be some disagreement about the 
adequacy issue, because I th ink  we sat through about three days 

o f  hearings where no one real l y  pa r t i cu l  ar ly agreed about what 

adequacy was, p a r t i  cul a r l  y i n operating serves reserves. So t o  

tha t  extent I'm not sure because i t  i s  w r i t t e n  here necessarily 

means tha t  everybody agrees tha t  everyone i s  performing t o  the 

same level  

(Simultaneous conversation. ) 

Q Wel l ,  t h i s  t e l l s  you what you do, doesn't it? 

Doesn't t h i s  r u l e  t e l l  you what i s  supposed t o  be done? 

What you are supposed t o  do, t h a t  i s  correct. 

And are you f a m i l i a r  t ha t  u t i l i t i e s  report every day 

A 

Q 
t o  everybody else what t h e i r  planned u n i t s  t o  operate f o r  the 
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next day are? 

A Yes. 

Q They t e l l  everybody what un i ts  they are going t o  

operate , don ' t they? 

A Well, yes, funct ional ly  the same. 

Q And they t e l l  what you un i ts  are down, not going t o  

operate? 

A 

Q And what un i ts  are constrained, r i gh t?  

A Right. 

Q And what t h e i r  expected load i s ,  r i g h t ?  

A Right. 

Q 

For the most part ,  yes. 

And so the whole purpose i s  so there can be a l l  the 

u t i l i t i e s  together t o  plan t o  meet the load for the next day? 

A Right. 

Q 

r i g h t ?  

And the next week and the next month, i s n ' t  t ha t  

A That i s  correct. 

Q Okay. So, i n  order t o  make an off-system sale - -  
excuse me, i n  order t o  make an off-system purchase t o  f i t  your 
c r i t e r i a  i t  would have t o  be a nonfirm purchase, wouldn't it? 

A purchase tha t  you d i d n ' t  ant ic ipate making? 

A No. 

Q I s n ' t  tha t  what you are t a l k i n g  about here i n  your 

testimony on Page 14, unforeseen events? 
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A Right. 

Q So you wouldn't plan t o  make a purchase i f  you 

d i d n ' t  - - i f  you weren't aware tha t  the unforeseen event wou 

occur, would you? 

A 

Q Maybe. 

I th ink  we are s ta r t i ng  t o  t a l k  past each other. 

d 

A My feel ing i s  tha t  you may have made what apparently 

could be a prudent purchase, because l e t ' s  say you have a 

couple o f  un i t s  tha t  are l imping and you're not sure they are 

going t o  make it. 

Q 
A 

Q 
A 

Q 

So you make a purchase? 

And you make a purchase. 

You make a firm purchase? 

Yes, make a f i r m  purchase. 

Okay. And then your pos i t ion  i s  t ha t  ought t o  be 

used as the dispatch, or as the incremental cost i f  a u t i l i t y  

then makes an off-system sale? 

A That's correct. 

Q Okay. And I'm not t a l k i n g  about tha t  circumstance. 

I ' m  t a l k ing  about the circumstance where the purchase comes 

around because o f  an unforeseen event and the u t i l i t y  makes the 

purchase. 

A Yes. 

Q Wouldn't tha t  be e i ther  a nonfirm purchase or one 

that  was entered i n t o  a f te r  the u t i l i t y  had committed t o  the 
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s a l  e? 

A I n  other words, i n  the event - - yes. As you have 

described it, yes. 

Q And i f  the u t i l i t y  knew tha t  i t  was going t o  incur 

tha t  cost, i t  would have used tha t  i n  i t s  dispatch pr ice,  

woul dn ' t it? 

A It should, yes. 

Q It should. Okay. 

MR. CHILDS: That's a l l  I have. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: You d i d n ' t  ha 

I took you out o f  order. 

S t a f f .  

CROSS EXAMINATION 
BY MR. KEATING: 

re an I? Good, beca ise 

Q Just a couple o f  questions. This may cover some o f  

what you j u s t  discussed w i th  M r .  Childs, and i f  I am 

duplicating, I apologize. But i n  the event - -  I want t o  make 

sure I have your pos i t ion c lear.  

I n  the event the u t i l i t y  makes an unanticipated 

purchase due t o  an unforeseen circumstance such as an unplanned 

outage a t  the same time tha t  i t  i s  making a nonseparated f i r m  

wholesale sale, what should be or  how should the incremental 

cost o f  the sale be determined f o r  purposes o f  ca lcu lat ing the 

gain on the sale? 

A I f  the purchase i s  higher than the incremental 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10  

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

219 

generating cost, then i t  should be used, for purposes o f  the 

incent ive used as the incremental cost. 

Q And tha t  would be your pos i t ion even i n  the event 

tha t  the purchase is  made because o f  an unplanned outage? 

A Yes. For purposes o f  der iv ing the incent ive,  yes. 

Q And i f  the purchase was made i n  consideration o f  

making a nonseparated who1 esal e sal e, would your pos i t ion  be 
the incremental cost i s  s t i l l  the purchase p r i c e  o r  the 

purchased cost? 

A Say tha t  again, please. 

Q Yes. I n  the event t ha t  the u t i l i t y  planned a power 

purchase i n  consideration o f  making a nonseparated wholesale 

sale, under tha t  circumstance what i s  the incremental cost? 

A I f  t ha t  i s  the higher cost, then t h a t  should be the 

incremental cost . 
MR. KEATING: Okay. T h a t ' s  a l l  t h a t  I had. Thanks. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Redirect . I ' m  sorry, 

Commissioners, any questions? I have one very quick question. 

You advocate looking a t  the whole idea o f  incentives on a 

system-wide basis more so than a transaction basis, i s  tha t  a 

f a i r  statement? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, because I bel ieve t h a t  the u t i l i t y  

should and does attempt t o  manage the system both for r e t a i l  

and f o r  wholesale purposes, so t o  tha t  extent you should look 

a t  the whole system. 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And the underlying premise o f  t ha t  

i s  t ha t  - - wel l ,  you j u s t  said it, i s  tha t  there has t o  be some 

leve l ,  some view o f  how the system i s  being managed r e l a t i v e  t o  

the in te res t  o f  wholesale and r e t a i l ?  

THE WITNESS: That i s  correct. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: The challenge, o f  course, being how 

do we balance tha t  w i th  regard t o  the incent ive mechanism and 

t h i s  i s  your answer t o  how t o  do that? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. My testimony does not r e f l e c t  

t ha t  people are necessarily imprudent in what they are doing, 

j u s t  t ha t  the incentive gained should not be enlargened o r  be 

greater than the net e f fects  o f  what i s  happening on the 

system. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. Redirect. 

MR. McWHIRTER: No red i rect .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And there was one exhib i t .  I ' m  

sorry, two exhi b i  tse 
MR. McWHIRTER: Those were not  prof fered by me. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: One by TECO. 

MR. BEASLEY: We would move Exh ib i t  1 and 7. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I ' m  sorry, there were three 

exhib i ts ,  you're r i g h t .  

MR. CHILDS: I move Exhib i t  8. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without objection, show Exhibi ts 1, 

7, and 8 are entered i n t o  the record. 
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Thank you. You are excused, M r .  Kordecki . 
(Exhibits 1, 7, and 8 admitted i n t o  the record.) 

MR. BEASLEY: Recall Witness Jordan. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r .  Jordan. I have t o  attend t o  a 

matter upstairs. Absolutely no disrespect t o  you, Ms. Jordan, 

but since we are a t  a c losing out, I w i l l  l i s t e n  t o  the 

remainder o f  the testimony - -  o r ,  I'm sorry, I w i l l  be reading 

the t ranscr ip t  o f  the remainder o f  the testimony before our 

decision. Thank you. 

Commissioner Jaber . 
Thereupon, 

J. DENISE JORDAN 
was recal led as a rebut ta l  witness on beha f o f  Tampa E l e c t r i c  

Company, and having been previously sworn, was examined and 

t e s t i f i e d  as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 
BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q Ms. Jordan, d i d  you prepare and submit i n  t h i s  

proceeding a 12-page document e n t i t l e d  Prepared Rebuttal 

Testimony o f  J .  Denise Jordan? 

A Yes, I did.  

Q If I were t o  ask you the questions contained i n  tha t  

rebuttal  testimony would your answers be the same? 

A Yes, they would be. 

MR. BEASLEY: I ask tha t  her testimony be inserted 
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into the record as though read. 
COMMISSIONER JABER: Ms. Jordan's rebuttal testimony 

;hall  be inserted i n t o  the record as though read. 
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TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 

Q *  

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

DOCKET NO. 010283-E1 
FILED: June 11, 2001 

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

PREPARED REBUTTAL TESTIMONY 

OF 

J. DENISE JORDAN 

Please state your name, address, occupation and employer. 

My name is J. Denise Jordan. My business address is 702 

North Franklin Street, Tampa, Florida 33602. I am 

employed by Tampa Electric Company ("Tampa Electric" or 

"company") in the position of Director, Rates and 

Planning in the Regulatory Affairs Department. 

Are you the same J. Denise Jordan who filed d i rec t  

testimony in this docket? 

Yes. 

What is the purpose of your rebuttal testimony? 

The purpose of my testimony is to address various aspects 

of the direct testimony of Florida Industrial Power U s e r s  

Group's (FIPUG) witness Gerard J. Kordecki. 

Do you believe Mr. Kordecki's testimony addresses the 
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A. 

calculation of gains and appropriate regulatory treatment 

of the revenues and expenses associated with non- 

separated wholesale sales prescribed by the Commission's 

proposed agency action ("PAA") in Part I11 of Order No. 

PSC-00-1744-PAA ("Order No. 00-1744") issued on September 

2 6 ,  2000 in Docket No. 991779-E1? 

No, I do not. Mr. Kordecki' s testimony and FIPUG' s 

proposed changes to the PAA portion of Order No. 00-1744 

claim to address the calculation of gains and the 

regulatory treatment of the revenues and expenses 

associated with non-separated wholesale sales. However, 

in reality what they present is a thinly disguised e f f o r t  

to readdress the already decided issue of whether these 

types of sales should have incentives. FIPUG attempts to 

substitute an economic disincentive for making these 

sales in place of what the Commission decided in t h e  

final agency action portions of Order No. 00-1744 and 

confirmed in the Commission's Order No. PSC-01-0084-FOF- 

E1 denying FIPUG's Motion f o r  Clarification of Final 

Order. This is an inappropriate attempt to once again 

argue the Commission's final decision to provide 

incentives f o r  non-separated wholesale sales and should 

be recognized as such. 

2 
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Q *  

A. 

Q. 

A. 

What economic disincentives were included in Mr. 

Kordecki's testimony? 

Under Mr. Kordecki's approach and FIPUG's proposed change 

to Item 1 of the PAA portion of Order No. 00-1744, retail 

customers would continue to receive gains from non- 

separated wholesale sales, while utility shareholders 

would be saddled with one hundred percent of the risk of 

any capacity shortfall that might coincide with the 

making of such sales. 

Were there other economic disincentives included in Mr. 

Kordecki's testimony? 

Yes. In addition to the above, Mr. Kordecki and FIPUG 

have erroneously assumed that for any given time that 

Tampa Electric is purchasing power and making a wholesale 

sa le ,  the purchase is being made specifically to 

"replace" power for the wholesale sale. There is no such 

direct linkage between a decision to purchase power and 

the fact that the company may be making a wholesale sa l e  

at the same time. The company purchases power to meet 

its forecasted needs to serve retail customers or because 

there may be purchased power available that is priced 

lower than the company's system incremental cost of 
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A. 

generation. The goal of the purchase is to meet the 

company's system requirements in the most economical way 

possible. The decision to purchase is for the system - 

not to replace power for a wholesale sa l e .  The creation 

of any artificial link between a particular power 

purchase and a short-term wholesale sale would establish 

an economic disincentive to entering into potentially 

beneficial short-term sales. 

Does the proposal of Mr. Kordecki and FIPUG regarding 

economic disincentives constitute inappropriate re- 

argument of issues in direct opposition of decisions 

previously decided by the Commission? 

Absolutely. The intent of the Commission was made 

perfectly clear as evidenced by their statements in Order 

NO. PSC-00-1744-PAA-EI: 

In summary, we find that to encouraqe [emphasis 

added] the types of wholesale sales that are 

currently providing the greatest cost reduction 

benefit to Florida s retail ratepayers I a 

properly structured shareholder incentive should 

apply to all non-separated wholesale sales ,  firm 

and non-firm, excluding emergency sales, made 

under current and future FERC-approved schedules. 
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A.  

and 

We reject FIPUG and OPC's contention that any 

shareholder incentive structure should include a 

penalty for substandard performance, because 

imposing such a penalty would potentially 

counteract the incentive. 

What would be the effect of adopting Mr. Kordecki's 

approach and the modification to PAA Item 1 that FIPUG 

has proposed? 

If FIPUG's approach were adopted, no utility would make 

short-term firm wholesale sales unless they could 

guarantee against unit outages or abnormal weather 

conditions or other uncontrollable factors f o r  the 

duration of the sale, which they cannot. FIPUG' s 

approach, therefore, would discourage utilities from 

making any short-term firm wholesale sales, even in 

circumstances when beneficial to the general body of 

retail customers, by making the utility shareholders 

guarantors of firm and non-firm sales. By discouraging 

the utilities from making wholesale sales, FIPUG would 

conveniently enhance its prospects of receiving firm 

service at deeply discounted interruptible prices. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

Does Mr. Kordecki's assessment of the benefits of non- 

separated wholesale sales to a utility's retail customers 

have any merit? 

Yes. Mr. Kordecki's statement that retail customers can 

and do benefit from off-system wholesale sales is 

correct. Customers do indeed benefit from off-system 

wholesale sales any time the sales revenues exceed 

incremental sales costs. I also agree with Mr. 

Kordecki s view that sales of unneeded capacity should be 

encouraged. 

However, I disagree with the implication in his direct 

testimony (page 9, lines 1-3) that a utility somehow 

benefits from making "risky" and "aggressive" wholesale 

sales, especially in the case of non-separated wholesale 

sales. One hundred percent of the benefits from these 

sales are flowed through to retail customers until such 

time that the utility exceeds the wholesale incentive 

benchmark. For most utilities, this benchmark will not 

be exceeded until late in any year, if at all. 

Does Mr. Kordecki's testimony make any direct or indirect 

reference to a determination of the prudence of short- 

term or non-separated sales? 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yes. While Mr. Kordecki and FIPUG concede that o f f -  

system sales are beneficial to all retail customers, 

these sales suddenly become retroactively imprudent if, 

for any reason, a capacity shortfall occurs that would 

require an interruptible customer to be interrupted or to 

pay the incremental cost of optional provision buy- 

through power. If a utility prudently enters into a 

beneficial non-separated wholesale sale while abiding by 

its planning reserve criteria, any interruptions or 

optional buy-through that may later be required due to a 

capacity shortfall are not the "fault" of or attributable 

to the non-separated sale, any more than a capacity 

shortfall would necessarily be anyone's "fault" when it 

occurs at a time when no wholesale sales  are being made. 

A capacity shortfall can occur f o r  any number of 

uncontrollable reasons, whether o r  not a wholesale sale 

is being made at the time of the shortfall. 

A r e  any procedures currently in place for the Commission 

to determine prudence of short-term wholesale sales? 

Yes. The Commission always has the ability to review a 

company's approach and prudence in making wholesale 

sales. A wholesale sales disincentive as proposed by Mr. 

Kordecki is neither appropriate nor necessary. The  more 

7 



2 3 0  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

1 4  

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

2 0  

21 

2 2  

23  

24  

25  

Q 9  

A. 

appropriate way to assess the prudence of a sale is not 

with hindsight but through a consideration of the facts 

and circumstances that existed when t h e  commitment to 

make the sale was made. 

Has Mr. Kordecki demonstrated any need for the 

modification FIPUG proposes to Item 1 of the PAA portion 

of Order No. 0 0 - 1 7 4 4 ?  

No, he has not. Indeed, interruptible customers have 

faired quite well without FIPUG's proposed unfair 

retroactive prudence determination and economic 

disincentive. As Tampa Electric's witness Lynn Brown has 

testified, Tampa Electric is not interrupting any of its 

interruptible customers to make new firm separated or 

non-separated wholesale sales. Moreover, witness Brown 

testified that the company terminates non-firm wholesale 

power sales before it interrupts its non-firm retail 

buy-through purchases f o r  customers or makes optional 

them. 

The company's interruptible customers are receiving 

approximately a 22 percent discount below the otherwise 

applicable firm service rate even taking into account the 

additional cost of buy-through purchases. At the same 
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Q. 

A. 

time, they are receiving a minimum of 99.5 percent 

electric service availability. They are also receiving 

the same benefits from non-separated wholesale sales as 

firm retail customers even though their contribution to 

plant carrying costs is significantly less. Neither 

FIPUG nor Mr. Kordecki has submitted any facts 

demonstrating the need f o r  FIPUG's modification to Item 1 

of the regulatory treatment proposed in the PAA portion 

of Commission Order No. 00-1744. 

On page 9 of his testimony beginning at line 20, Mr. 

Kordecki urges the Commission to require utilities to 

recall non-firm sales in order to meet retail load 

demand. Please respond to this. 

Mr. Kordecki is suggesting that investor-owned utilities 

be prohibited from making non-separated wholesale sales 

in certain circumstances. As the Commission noted in 

Order No. PSC-01-0084-FOF-E1 denying FIPUG's Motion for 

Clarification in Docket No. 991779-E1, t h e  proceeding did 

not concern, nor was it intended to concern, a 

prohibition on making certain non-separated wholesale 

sa les .  That order stated: 

None of the issues identified for hearing by any 

party addressed the question of whether any types 
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of non-separated wholesale sales should be 

prohibited; rather, the issues simply addressed 

the question of what type of shareholder 

incentive program, if any, was appropriate for 

non-separated wholesale sales. Thus FIPUG's 

requested prohibitions go beyond the scope of 

this docket . . .  

Mr. Kordecki's approach in this regard is likewise beyond 

the scope of the PAA portion of Order No. 0 0 - 1 7 4 4  and 

should not be considered in this proceeding. As I 

mentioned above, the Commission always has the ability to 

review a company's approach and prudence in making 

wholesale sales. A wholesale sales disincentive as 

proposed by Mr. Kordecki is neither appropriate nor 

necessary. 

Mr. Kordecki reiterates his request that the Commission 

disallow non-firm wholesale sales during certain 

circumstances (page 13 , lines 14-18) . Again , t hi s 

prohibition was rejected in the order denying FIPUG's 

Motion for Clarification and is beyond the scope of the 

issues to be considered in this proceeding. FIPUG' s 

multiple attempts to readdress the appropriateness of 

incentives, including these portions of Mr. Kordecki's 

10 
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Q m  

A. 

Q. 

direct testimony, should be rejected. 

Please address Mr. Kordecki's testimony as it relates to 

the treatment of incremental O&M expense associated with 

a non-separated wholesale sale? 

First, Mr. Kordecki states that incremental O&M costs are 

hard to identify. He then states, however, all O&M 

expenses attributable to a sa le  should be flowed back 

through the "appropriate clause ( s )  . Finally, he 

acknowledges if O&M costs are truly incremental it may be 

appropriate to credit the utility's operating revenues 

with these costs, which is exactly what Tampa Electric 

supported in direct testimony and which the Commission 

proposed in Order No. 0 0 - 1 7 4 4 .  Incremental O&M costs 

associated with a sale should be credited to the 

utility's operating revenues since Tampa Electric does 

not charge associated fuel-related O&M expenses to the 

fuel clause. 

In conclusion, do you believe the comments contained in 

Mr. Kordecki's direct testimony warrant any deviation or 

modification of the regulatory treatment of revenues and 

expenses associated with non-separated wholesale power 

sales addressed in Part I11 of Order No. 0 0 - 1 7 4 4 ?  

11 
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Q. 

A. 

No, I do not. Tampa Electric continues to support the 

regulatory treatment set forth in Part I11 of Order No. 

00-1744. Mr. Kordecki's comments evidence the desire of 

interruptible customers to continue receiving deeply 

discounted electric service without interruptions and 

without ever having to pay the cost of optional provision 

buy-through power. His testimony fails to state any 

justification for departing from the regulatory treatment 

set forth in Part I11 of Order No. 00-1744. Instead, as 

I have described, t he  main focus of Mr. Kordecki's 

testimony simply reargues the merits of incenting 

utilities to pursue non-separated wholesale transactions 

- something the Commission has clearly decided and 

reaffirmed in denying FIPUG's Motion for Clarification. 

FIPUG's efforts in this direction should once again be 

denied. 

Does that conclude your testimony? 

Yes, it does. 
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BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q 
A 

Woul d you pl ease summarize your rebuttal testimony? 
My rebuttal testimony addresses various aspects o f  

the prepared testimony sponsored by FIPUG' s witness, Mr. 
Kordecki . FIPUG opposed the Commission's approval for an 
incentive mechanism in the incentives docket and even 
petitioned for reconsideration seeking to preclude appl ication 
o f  an incentive in certain situations. 
efforts, FIPUG through Witness Kordecki ' s testimony now appears 
to be suggesting changes to the Commission's proposed 
regul atory treatment o f  the incremental cost of nonseparated 
wholesale sales t o  create a disincentive f o r  utilities to make 
those sales. 

Having lost in those 

FIPUG's proposed modification t o  the regulatory 
treatment o f  incremental costs associ ated with nonseparated 
sales is somewhat confusing. M r .  Kordecki and FIPUG have 

erroneously assumed that for any given time that a utility i s  

purchasing power and making a wholesale sale the purchase i s  

bei ng made speci f i call y to rep1 ace power for the who1 esal e 
sale. 

Uti 1 i ties purchase power to meet needs t o  serve 
retail customers or because at given times there may be 

purchase price available that is priced lower than the 
uti 1 i ty' s system incremental cost o f  generati on. A deci sion to 
purchase power is for the system, not to replace power f o r  a 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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e sale. 
We f i n d  i t  odd t h a t  M r .  Kordecki would go on record 

i n  favor o f  util i t ies making nonseparated sales for the benefit 
o f  their retail customers and then suggest changes t o  t h e  PAA 

portion o f  the Commission order regarding the incremental cost 
calculation i n  a way t h a t  discourages uti l i t ies from making 

those sales. 
I t  i s  apparent t h a t  FIPUG's real goal here is t o  

discourage nonseparated sales and thereby free up generation 
t h a t  would enhance the prospect o f  interruptible customers 
receiving essenti a1 1 y f i  rm service a t  deeply discounted 
interruptible rates. While t h a t  may be t o  FIPUG's l i k i n g ,  i t  

certainly would be contrary t o  the best interests of the 
general body o f  ratepayers 

In summary, we believe t h a t  the Commission's 
regulatory treatment proposed i n  the PAA portion o f  i ts  f ina l  

order i n  the incentives docket is  appropriate and t h a t  the 
suggested changes proposed by FIPUG and Mr. Kordecki are 
i nappropri ate and shoul d be rejected. 

Tha t  concludes my testimony. 
MR. BEASLEY: Thank you. We tender the witness. 
COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr . Badders. 
MR. BADDERS: No  questions. 
COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr . McGee. 
MR. McGEE: No questions. 
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COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr . Chi 1 ds. 

Mr . McWhirter . I was going get t o  you. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q Ms. Jordan, on Page 3 a t  Line 4 through 8, you t a l k  

about shareholders being saddled w i th  addit ional r i s k  i f  the 

Kordecki proposal i s  developed. What i s  the r i s k  tha t  you t a l k  

about? Is i t  the r i s k  o f  los ing  an incentive? 

A No, s i r .  Since the time tha t  I read M r .  Kordecki's 

d i rec t  testimony, he has cleared up the fac t  t h a t  he i s  not 

actua l ly  u t i l i z i n g  the incremental sale, t ha t  he wants t o  use a 

proxy which i s  the highest. So a t  tha t  po int ,  based upon h i s  

deposition he i s  saying t h a t  the shareholders would not be a t  

r i s k  because the ratepayers would make the clause whole. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  So even though you repeated tha t  comment 

i n  your summary, you conclude tha t  - -  
A Right, t ha t  was my understanding a t  the t ime.  

Q You should have s t r icken tha t  from your summary, i s  

tha t  the deal?  

A No. My understanding a t  the time t h a t  I read h i s  

d-irect testimony, t h a t  was correct .  Since h i s  deposition I now 
understand tha t  he i s  u t i l i z i n g  a proxy. 

Q And so there i s  no addit ional r i s k  on the 

shareholders? 

A Correct. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q And then you t a l k  about replacement power. As I 

understand what you and M r .  Brown have said, i t ' s  r e a l l y  not 

replacement power so much as tha t  i t  i s  asking the customers t o  

pay f o r  power tha t  you bought tha t  you d i d n ' t  need, would t h a t  

be a more apt description? 

A I don't t h ink  tha t  would be an apt description. I 

would respect fu l ly  disagree w i th  you on tha t .  We forecast what 

the needs are. You would have t o  be clai rvoyant t o  buy the 

exact amount tha t  you need t o  cover your load. So a t  the time 

the decision tha t  we make, tha t  i s  the best known information 

tha t  we have. And we make a purchase i n  order t o  serve, t o  

meet our ob1 i gat i  on t o  serve. 

Q 
A If  the ra ins come i n ,  I ' m  not i n  control o f  that .  O r  

Well, you have the - - 

no one i s  i n  control o f  that .  And t h a t  may create excess 

capacity. 

4 And so what has happened i s  you have made a high 

priced must take purchase because o f  an anticipated weather 

condit ion tha t  d i d n ' t  transpire, and now you have got excess 

power tha t  you can s e l l ,  but  the customers are going t o  take a 

h i t  because they are paying the higher cost. And the money 

tha t  comes i n  from the sale tha t  you make doesn't cover tha t  

cost . 
MR. BEASLEY: Commi ssi  oners, M r  . McWhi r t e r  has gone 

t o  t es t i f y i ng  again. I would object t o  the question and the 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 
4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 
14 

15 
16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

239 

form o f  the question and the various facts tha t  are woven i n t o  

it. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr . McWhi r t e r ,  why don ' t  you 

j u s t  restate your question. There has been an objection as t o  

the form. 

MR. McWHIRTER: I can eas i l y  do that ,  Ms. Chairman. 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q There are circumstances, are there not, 

are buying must take power and s e l l  i ng  incrementa 

who1 esal e market , i s tha t  correct? 

A That i s  correct. 

i n  which you 

power on the 

Q And some o f  the time tha t  you are making those 

simultaneous transactions the cost o f  the purchased power 

substant ia l ly  exceeds the pr ice  tha t  you receive from s e l l i n g  

your surplus power, i s  t ha t  correct? 

A That i s  correct. But you should also keep i n  mind 

tha t  i f  we don ' t  make tha t  sale, the ratepayer w i l l  s t i l l  see 

the en t i re  amount o f  t ha t  higher cost purchased power. 

therefore, by making the sale you are ac tua l l y  mi t igat ing some 

o f  the impact o f  tha t  purchased power cost t o  the ratepayer. 

And also keep i n  mind t h a t  it i s  f lowing back 100 percent u n t i l  

you get t o  the benchmark. 

So, 

4 Now, my question i s  does Tampa E lec t r i c  require being 

paid a reward f o r  trying t o  protect  i t s  customers from having 

t o  face such a s i tua t ion  as tha t  where they are paying more f o r  
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purchased power than you are ge t t ing  f o r  the power you s e l l ?  

A The issue o f  incentives I th ink  has already been 

addressed by 

appropriate, 

an incentive 

Q We 

the Commission and has been ru led upon as being 

so i t ' s  not a question o f  Tampa E l e c t r i c  requi r ing 

1, Ms. Jordan, the Commission i s  studying the way 

you calculate the gain against which the incentive - -  and you 

understand we are here ta l k ing  about those transactions tha t  

are simultaneous and how you calculate the gain i n  t h a t  

circumstance, i s  tha t  not correct? 

A 

Q 

A 

I t h ink  i t  i s  not correct. I disagree w i th  that .  

We1 1 , what do you th ink  we are doing here today? 

In terms o f  there i s  - -  when you say simultaneous, 

there i s  not always a one-for-one s i tuat ion.  You may have 

entered i n t o  the purchased power agreement a month ago, s i x  

months ago, a week ago. And as mentioned e a r l i e r ,  there may 

have been unforeseen circumstances. And a t  t h a t  po int  i n  time 

you had t o  go out i n t o  the market. So, I don' t  see i t  as 

one - f o r  - one. 

Q It may not be one-for-one, the t iming o f  the things, 

you don' t  make the transaction f o r  the sale and the purchase 

simultaneously, the transactions are made but the customers pay 

the f u l l  p r i ce  o f  the purchased power. And a l o t  o f  times i f  

you hadn't made tha t  purchase tha t  power would be available for 

the customers a t  a much lower pr ice,  i s  tha t  not correct? 
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A But tha t  may not be the case. I f  we d i d n ' t  make the 

purchase then we may not have been able t o  serve our nat ive 

load, which i s  obviously not something we would want t o  do, 

number one. Number two, had we not made the purchase and we 

came - - depending on i f  i t  was during the peak hours and we had 

something happen and we had t o  go t o  the market, it could be 

more expensive. So t o  look a t  i t as iso la ted as tha t ,  I 

couldn' t  agree w i th  your statement 

4 I ' m  not - -  you don' t  t h ink  tha t  I ' m  questioning the 

prudency o f  your purchase, do you? 

A No. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  What I ' m  questioning i s  w i th  hindsight we 

see a circumstance i n  which you have got power tha t  you are 

purchasing a t  a high pr ice  and you have power tha t  could have 

been used t o  serve the customers i f  you weren't purchasing tha t  

power? 

A I understand - -  
Q So you want t o  do something w i th  it, i s n ' t  t ha t  what 

the s i tua t ion  i s  tha t  we are t a l k i n g  about? 

A Correct. I understand what you're saying, but when 

you made the decision t o  make the purchase, you had the 

information a t  hand. So, hindsight r e a l l y  doesn't apply. I f  

t h i s  i s  Monday and you are looking a t  what your forecasted load 

i s  and what your need requirements are, you are covering 

yourself on Monday fo r  Tuesday. If i t  storms on Tuesday, or i f  
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people don ' t  run t h e i r  A/C because they don ' t  need t o ,  and your 

demand i s n ' t  where you thought i t  would be, then it, would 

behoove you t o  go ahead and make a sa le  so tha t  you can 

mit igate some o f  the impact t o  the ratepayers. 

Q Now, tha t  i s  my question. I t ' s  Tuesday, the sale has 

already been made. The purchase has already - -  I mean, the 

purchase has already been made, and you f i n d  that you have got 

some power, and you f i n d  you have got somebody t h a t  w i l l  buy 

it. Would you refuse t o  s e l l  t h a t  unless you got an incentive 

t o  s e l l  it, even though i t  would help your customers reduce 

t h e i r  1 oss? 

A No. But the way I understood Mr. Kordecki ' s  

testimony, what he was saying was tha t  the incremental cost 

would be the highest p r i ce  i n  t h a t  dispatch stack. Therefore, 

you probably wouldn't even be able t o  make the sale because you 

are using an a r t i f i c i a l  high number as opposed t o  what may have 

been on the increment a t  the actual time o f  the sale. 

Q You could s t i l l  make the sale and bring the 

i n  t o  o f f se t  the loss? 
A Now you a re  s t a r t i n g  t o  disconnect and put 

revenue 

n proxies 
and a r t i f i c i a l  as opposed t o  doing a simple ca lcu lat ion o f  

looking a t  what i s  ac tua l l y  on the increment. 

Q Well, a l l  I ' m  t r y i n g  t o  ask you i s  t h a t  i f  you can 
reduce the loss t o  the customers would you reduce i t  i f  you 

d i d n ' t  get paid t o  do it? 
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A We are doing that  every day, s i r .  Every day that  we 

have the opportunity that  we have excess capacity we are 

entering i n to  sa les i n  an e f f o r t  t o  reduce that  impact. 

Q And you would continue t o  do that  even i f  you weren't 

paid a reward t o  do it, wouldn't you? 

A Right. 

Q And so i f  the customers were able t o  get the reward, 

t h a t  would reduce the i r  loss, wouldn't it? 

M r .  McWhirter, they are gett ing the reward up u n t i l  A 

the point  that  we reach the benchmark. We are flowing back 100 

percent o f  a l l  o f  those gains up u n t i l  the time we reach the 

benchmark . 
Q And we are not ta lk ing  about what happens for  the 

whole year, we are ta lk ing about on t h i s  par t icu lar  transaction 

you would make the transaction anyway. The customers would be 

be t te r  o f f  i f  they d idn ' t  have t o  pay you t o  do it, wouldn't 

they? 

A 

I have. 

Yes . 
MR. McWHIRTER: A l l  r i gh t .  That's a l l  the questions 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr . Burgess. 

MR. BURGESS: No questions. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: S t a f f .  

MR. KEATING: No questions. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Commissioner Baez? Redi rect . 
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MR. BEASLEY: One red i rec t .  

RED1 RECT EXAM1 NATION 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q Ms. Jordan, when the Commission adopted an incent ive 

mechanism t o  encourage a l l  nonseparated sales, d i d  i t  say t h a t  

some o f  those sales should be encouraged and others shouldn't? 

A No. 

MR. BEASLEY: Thank you. That 's a l l  I have. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Thank you, Ms. Jordan . Those 

are a l l  the witnesses l i s t e d  i n  the prehearing order. 

S t a f f ,  are there matters t h a t  we need t o  take up 

before we adjourn? 

MR. KEATING: The only  other t h i n g  t h a t  I would l i k e  

t o  make sure I have done i s  t o  have the s t a f f  composite 

exh ib i t ,  which i s  marked as Exh ib i t  2, moved i n t o  the record. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: It was. But j u s t  t o  be c lear ,  

Exhib i ts  1 through 8 have been admitted i n t o  the record. 

MR. KEATING: Other than tha t ,  I'm not  aware o f  any 

Pursuant t o  the procedural order, b r i e f s ,  other matters. 

post - hearing b r i e f s  woul d be due September 24th. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: When? 

MR. KEATING: September 24th. And the proposed dates 

f o r  s t a f f  recommendation would be October 25th f o r  the 

November 6 t  h agenda. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. Part ies,  are there items 
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which you would 1 i ke t o  discuss before we adjourn? 
MR. BEASLEY: No, thank you. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: This  hearing i s adjourned. 

Thank you. 

(The hearing concluded a t  2 : 2 9  p.m. ) 
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GERARD KORDECKI, 

the witness herein, being first duly sworn on oath, was 

examined and deposed as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q. Mr. Kordecki, would you please state your name and 

your address? 

A. Gerard J. Kordecki. The address is 10301 Orange 

Grove Drive, Tampa, Florida 33618. 

Q. Your testimony indicates that you have testified 

in a number of proceedings. Have you had your deposition 

taken before? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Approximately how many times? 

A. Probably between 15 and 2 0  times. 

Q. S o  you're familiar -- 

A. Yes, sir. 

Q. -- with how the procedures operate in a 

deposition? 

What materials did you review, Mr. Kordecki, in 

preparing your direct testimony in this docket? 

A. The past two orders that emanated -- began this 

docket, and I believe I had a rough copy of FIPUG's protest 

of Section 3 of the previous PAA. 

Q. Okay. That would be the order protesting the 
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proposal agency action -- 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

docket ? 

A. 

Q. 

Yes, sir. 

-- in the incentives docket? 
Yes. 

Docket Number 991779? 

I believe that's right. 

Have you reviewed the pre-hearing order in this 

Yes, sir. 

Is it your understanding that the issues in this 

docket are limited to those set forth in that pre-hearing 

order? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Mr. Kordecki, will you agree with the general 

proposition that the prudence of a particular decision 

should be judged based on the facts and circumstances that 

the decision-maker knew or should have known at the time he 

made his decision? 

A. I'm not sure I agree with that. 

Q. What else would you rely upon in judging the 

prudence of that decision? 

A. All right. I'm sorry, I'll take that back. The 

prudence of it, yes. Not necessarily the circumstances or 

what might be the final actions because of it. 

Q. We're just talking about the prudence of the 
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decision. 

A. The prudence, yes. 

Q. Do you agree me with that the prudence of a 

particular decision should not be viewed and judged with the 

2 0 / 2 0  perspective of hindsight? 

MR. McWHIRTER: Are you asking for a legal opinion 

as to -- 
MR. BEASLEY: I'm just asking for his view as to 

what he thinks is fair to look at in judging the prudence of 

a decision. 

THE WITNESS: Well, I think you have to look back 

to judge whether it's prudent or not. 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q. Have to go back and look at what? 

A. At the decision-making process. 

MR. McWHIRTER: Can you folks in Tallahassee hear 

Mr. Kordecki? 

MR. KEATING: This is Cochran Keating. I can hear 

him most of the time, but it's a little faint. 

MR. McWHIRTER: Mr. Kordecki, you need to speak 

louder. I can't hear you, and I'm sitting next to you. 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q. Well, I guess what I'm getting at is do you 

believe that someone, in an effort to decide whether someone 

acted prudently, should engage in Monday-morning 
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quarterbacking? 

A. You're going to have to give me an example. I'm 

not sure that -- in other words, you know, whether Bobby 

Eowden starts Joe Blow at quarterback or not, the prudence 

of that decision -- I don't know -- you always will do on 

Monday morning. 

Q. My example is -- and let me just coin one -- a 
utility company makes a decision to build a particular unit 

because all of the facts and circumstances and knowledge 

they have available at their disposal when they decide to 

build that unit suggest that is the kind of unit to build. 

And then some unforeseen thing later takes place and that 

unit is not as efficient, for example, as some different 

type of unit. 

Do you think that they were imprudent in building 

that unit? 

A. Not if whatever the regulatory and legal 

authorities are approved the unit, no. 

Q. Mr. Kordecki, have you reviewed the overall 

position of Tampa Electric on the matters that are at issue 

in this proceeding? 

In other words, have you reviewed Tampa Electric's 

testimony, for example? 

A. Yes, but I only sketched it. I just ran through 

it in April. I guess it was filed in April. I couldn't 
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tell you the specifics in any of the testimony. 

Q. Well, can you tell me or describe for me your take 

of how Tampa Electric's position on the issues in this case 

differs from your own? 

A. As I remember reading, I think Witness Brown's 

testimony, I thought he and I were almost -- had identical 
testimony. I think the other witness' testimony was 

different, but I wasn't totally sure what the -- why it was 

different. In fact, I thought it was in conflict with their 

other witness, their own testimony. 

Q. How is your testimony similar to that of 

Mr. Brown's testimony? 

A. In the use of incremental costs to cost t..? 

transactions. 

Q. We may come back to that. 

A. Like I said, I just read it one time going 

through, I didn't -- haven't studied it. 

Q. On your testimony, on page 3 at lines 5 through 

10, you mention that many of the FERC-defined utilities can 

sell at market-based rates, in other words, whatever the 

market will bear. 

To your knowledge do any of FIPUG's members sell 

energy in the wholesale market at market-based rates? 

A. In Florida? 

Q. Yes. 
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A. I don't know. 

Q. How about outside of that Florida? 

A. The numbers, I don't know. 

Q. So, you don't know if there are any FIPUG members 

supporting your testimony in this proceeding who sell at 

market-based rates? 

A. No, I don't. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I don't know who their regulatory authority would 

be, either. 

Q. Okay. In your testimony on page 4, lines 7 

through 9, you state, "However, the concern in this volatile 

trading market is that retail customers not assume risks or 

higher costs because wholesale sales are not adequately or 

properly priced at the true price of these discretionary 

sales. " 

And my question is: What do you mean by the 

statement "...wholesale sales are not adequately or properly 

placed at the true cost of these discretionary sales"? 

A. Though the response there looks somewhat global, 

it's actual meant to be to be very specific to instances 

where there are transactions, probably simultaneous 

transactions, and sales are being made and purchases are 

being made. The purchase may be at prices higher than 

sales, so it's really more specific to that issue. 
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Q. Do you believe that retail customers who receive 

service under an interruptible rate tariff should be served 

prior to a firm non-separated wholesale sale? 

A. As opposed to interrupted? 

Q. Yes. 

A. Yes, I think they should be served. I'm sorry, 

say it again, please. 

Q. Do you believe that retail customers who receive 

service under an interruptible rate tariff should be served 

prior to a firm non-separated wholesale sale? 

A. All right. Does that -- you need to elaborate a 

little bit. In other words, the situation is only whether 

the utility will serve the non-firm customers or the 

interruptibles or make the wholesale sale, which is firm? 

Is that either/or? 

In other words, there's no other part there could 

be to that transaction? In other words, they could make a 

purchase, too, while they were making the sale, as opposed 

to interrupting them. 

Q. Well, should the interruptible customers be served 

prior to the making of any firm non-separated wholesale 

sale? 

A. Well, I would think the utility -- it would be 
incumbent on the utility in its planning process that that 

ought to be the order of interest. In other words, serving 
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your customers first and then making sales in addition out 

of reserves or excess capacity. 

Q. Okay. How about this, do you believe that retail 

customers who receive service under an interruptible rate 

tariff should be served prior to a non-firm non-separated 

wholesale sale? 

A. Non-firm, non-separated? 

Q. Right. That would just be an opportunity -- 

A. Long-term separated non-firm sale? 

Q. No, it's a non-firm, in other words, it's not 

long-term -- excuse me. It's not firm and it's not 

separated, which means it's not long-term. 

A. Yes, I do believe they should be served first. 

Q. Okay. To your knowledge, are there any utilities 

in Florida who have any restrictions in their interruptible 

rate tariffs precluding them from making firm or non-firm 

opportunity sales while they're interrupting their 

interruptible customers? 

A. Seems to me the language of the tariffs I was 

familiar with talked about emergency conditions for purposes 

of interruptions to those customers, including low 

management rates. Whether it is precluded, I don't think 

so, but I don't believe there's any addition that says that 

it is there. In other words, I don't see how the tariffs, 

as I remember them, meet that purpose, to make wholesale 
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sales. 

Q. But you're not aware of any specific restrictions 

in any utility's tariff saying that they can't make these 

Dpportunity sales while they're interrupting their 

interruptible customers? 

A. No, I don't think there's an exclusion, but I 

don't think -- this has got to be memory serving me -- that 

that was the purpose stated in the tariff. 

Q. Do you, Mr. Kordecki, believe that a Florida 

utility should be allowed to make firm separated wholesale 

sales as long as they maintain their 15 percent reserve 

nargin? 

A. Do that again. Firm separated sales? 

Q. Right. Firm separated wholesale sales. As long 

as -- and they should be allowed to do that as long as they 

maintain their 15 percent reserve margin? 

A. Well, I thought they were supposed to be reaching 

2 0  percent, but whatever their reserve margin is that's been 

allotted to them. 

Q. That should be allowed to? 

A. Anything in excess -- 

Q. Anything in excess of that they should be allowed 

to make as a firm separated wholesale sale? 

A. In the general frame, yes, not necessarily -- 

doesn't mean necessarily -- if their whole reserve margin, 
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let's say, was made up of non-firm load, then I might not 

have the same answer. 

In other words, if their reserve margin level was 

15 percent or 20 percent and they want to sell five percent, 

but all 20 percent of it is non-firm load, no, I'm not sure 

that's necessarily appropriate. 

Q. On page 5 of your testimony at lines 13 through 

16, it's stated "The assumption is the Commission wants 

vrholesale sales to be made when and only when captive 

customers who bear the cost of the plant in rate base 

benefit from the wholesale sale." 

Do interruptible service customers bear the cost 

of generating plant in their rates? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you know to what extent the various 

interruptible customers around the state bear the cost of 

generating plant in their rates? 

A. Depending on the system. I think in TECO's case, 

TECO uses a 12CP and one-thirteenth, so whatever 

one-thirteenth works out to be as a proportion. 

As I remember, the other two that have 

interruptible rates, Florida Power Corp. and Florida Power 

and Light, actually have customers on firm rates with 

discounts. The discount is to interrupt. So, as far as 

vrhat do they pay, I guess if you net the discount, in a 

~ 
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sense they get a discounted rate; they pay less. What that 

proportion is, I don't know. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I have no idea. 

Q. Well, the portion they bear is not equal to the 

same share as other classes of retail customers, is it? 

A. No. No, it's not. 

Q. Is it less? 

A. Oh, yes. 

Q. Okay. On page 8 of your testimony, lines 2 and 3, 

the statement is "There are an infinite number of ways to 

structure transactions which may have some level of 

firmness." Could you tell us what your definition of a firm 

wholesale sale is? 

A. From which side of the sale? A sale could be firm 

on one side and non-firm on another. 

Q. Well, why don't you explain both of them those, 

then, from both vantage points. 

A. Well, a firm sale would be that I have -- that the 

sale -- let's say I'm making a purchase, and I've notified 

the seller that I'm going to -- let's say it's a day-ahead 

sale, and I've notified that I'm going to take it. And it's 

a take-or-pay at that point, so at that point if they don't 

take it, they still pay for it. 

The other side of that may be that I'm the selling 
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utility and I've been notified, but my contract says if I 

can't serve my native load, I don't serve. I don't have to 

serve. In that sense, that's non-firm. So the same sale is 

non-firm and firm depending on which side of the coin you're 

on. 

Q. Okay. If you're making a firm sale, should you 

serve your interruptible customers first, or is there any 

priority there that you would assign? 

A. Well, if you have a contractual firm sale, you're 

probably going to make the sale. But my testimony, to my 

knowledge, doesn't say you ought not make the sale. 

Q. Okay. On the bottom of that page, page 8, line 

21,  continuing over to page 9, line 2, it says, "Sales of 

unneeded capacity should be encouraged, but care needs to be 

taken in today's active wholesale market that the incentive 

to make wholesale sales does not backfire and encourage 

off-system sales when capacity is needed to serve retail 

customers. " 

Is this true for firm -- is this true for firm 

non-separated wholesale sales? 

A. That is for both firm non-separated and for 

non-firm sales that are not recalled -- that might not be 

recalled. 

Q. Okay. Are you familiar with the concept of 

economic dispatch as it relates to the operation of an 

MICHAEL MUSETTA & ASSOCIATES, INC. (813) 221-3171 
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electric utility? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What is your understanding of that concept? 

A. Within reason, the most economical units are 

dispatched in order of their dispatch cost. 

Q. Okay. What is a dispatch stack? 

A. That would be the economical stack of units 

relative to their dispatch cost. 

Q. Okay. Are the power resources in a dispatch stack 

generally called upon in an ascending order starting at the 

bottom of the stack and going up the stack as needed until 

you have enough power resources to meet the load that you‘ve 

experienced? 

A. Generally. 

Q. And as load subsides, do you shut down or curtail 

your power resources in a descending order, working your way 

down the stack as far as needed to match the load? 

A. Yes. 

Q. As you go up the dispatch stack to call on a 

higher power resource block to serve a higher load level, is 

it fair to say that the cost of the higher load block is the 

incremental cost of serving the higher increment of load 

that caused you to turn to that load block? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. All right. HOW do you define “incremental energy 
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cost" for an electric utility? 

A. For purposes of a non-separated wholesale sale? 

Q. Well, let's say for purposes of any non-separated 

sale, whether it be firm or non-firm. 

A. It would be -- in my mind, the causation cost 

would be whatever is in that increment to make that sale at 

that hour, within each one of those hours, whether it's 

purchased power or on the generator -- with the generator. 

Because if the sale wasn't to be made, it would be back 

down, according to what you asked me in a previous in 

response. 

Q. Is that different than the incremental cost of 

serving retail load? 

A. Yes. 

Q. How? Could you describe how it differs? 

A. There is no incremental cost to serve retail load. 

Everything is done on average cost. 

Q. Okay. Would you consider it fair to say that the 

incremental cost of any particular action is the cost of 

whatever it takes you to do to get that action to occur? 

A. I think a better definition is what cost would not 

be incurred if the transaction did not take place. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Or the action, whatever it be. 

Q. Okay. You familiar with what -- are you familiar 
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with what a "must take" power purchase agreement is? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What would you define that to be? 

A. Well, without knowing the structure of whatever 

the contract is, in terms of fuel costs, variable costs, and 

fixed costs, my initial reaction would be that the 

take-or-pay is you pay whatever the fixed amount is that's 

been agreed to. You'll pay it whether you take it or not. 

Q. So if you have like a must-take contract for a 

certain number of megawatts of power at X dollars per 

megawatt hour, you've got to pay that amount whether you use 

that electricity or not? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. Okay. Can you give me an example of what you 

would consider to be a must-take power purchase agreement? 

A. I think the one I mentioned earlier where you have 

an agreement on a day-ahead basis and you've called at 

whatever hour is stated that you have to notify the seller 

and you say, "I'm going to take it." And at that point, 

you've got the commitment. 

Q. Okay. What about a multi-year co-generation or 

small power purchase agreement that's priced under 

FERC-prescribed avoided costs for the utility that's 

required to make that purchase, is that a must-take power 

purchase agreement? Would that fit within that category? 

MICHAEL MUSETTA & ASSOCIATES, INC. (813) 221-3171 



19 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

f i  

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

2 2  

2 3  

2 4  

2 5  r-. 

A. Well, I didn't think they were FERC costs, I 

believe there are Florida Public Service Commission costs. 

Q. Okay. 

A. But beyond that -- 

Q. Implemented by the Florida Public Service? 

A. Right. Yes, you pay -- in other words, it's the 

same as owning the generator unit. 

Q. Okay. If a utility must take power under a 

purchased power agreement over a period of time without 

regard to what the utility's load requirements are for the 

duration of that obligation, would this influence where you 

placed the must-take power supply on your dispatch stack? 

A. I can't answer that question, because you haven't 

given me enough information. It depends. In other words, 

if I have a variable cost involved and the variable cost is 

higher than the incremental cost on my system, no, I 

wouldn't -- it would rise up on the system. It really 

depends contractually how it's been put together. I really 

can't answer that question based on that information. 

Q. Well, just generally, wouldn't you dispatch a 

must-take obligation first, since you're going to have to 

pay for it whether you use it or not? 

A. If you're paying the full cost for the must-take, 

yes. 

Q. So you would dispatch it first, in other words, at 
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the bottom of the stack, if you're going to have to pay for 

it come what may; is that correct? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. If you place any other power supply resource below 

the must-take supply and dispatch the other power supply 

resource ahead of the must-take, wouldn't this possibly 

create a risk that the utility might have to pay more for 

its total power requirements than it would have if the 

must-take had been put on the bottom of the stack? 

A. The way you phrased it, yes. But, again, without 

contractually describing what the must-take is, I don't know 

what the cost is. 

Q. Well, just assuming that there's some cost for the 

must-take that's fixed and ignoring any kind of variable 

costs or other costs that might influence it, let's just 

assume there are none, just looking at the block cost of the 

must-take, would you put that on the bottom of the stack and 

then go up from there with your other obligations that 

aren't take-or-pay? 

A. Yes, that's correct. 

Q. Okay. We've found another ingenious use for 

Post-It Notes. And I know the folks on the phone can't see 

this, but I'll try to get you a copy later. 

But let me show you this scenario of -- these are 

Post-It Notes with different things written on them, and 
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there are three different scenarios. This is the first one. 

In this scenario, the utility has committed ahead of time on 

a must-take basis the purchase of firm power at $100 per 

megawatt hour to serve its retail load. 

A. That's its whole retail load? 

Q. No, just a portion of its retail load. And it has 

other power supply resources that are shown on those various 

Post-It Notes. And I wonder if you could, Mr. Kordecki, 

align those notes in a vertical fashion in the order in 

which you would dispatch them as you go up the dispatch 

stack. 

A. Now, none of these -- all of these are considered 

variable costs? Which ones are variable and which ones are 

fixed? 

Q. These are all just resources, power resources that 

the utility has available. It has base load generating 

capacity, it has combustion turbines. That incremental 

purchased power -- excuse me. That purchased power that I 

mentioned is $100 per megawatt hour. The CTs are priced at 

$75 per megawatt hour, the base load intermediate generation 

is priced at $25 a megawatt hour, and then the utility has a 

purchased power agreement must-take at $125 per megawatt 

hour. 

So those are the generating resource options that 

the utility can draw on as it needs to as it goes up its 
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qenerating stack. And I'm just asking you if you could 

arrange those in an ascending way on that sheet of paper in 

the way that you would call upon them to meet load as your 

load increases. 

A. What is "firm purchased power"? Is that already 

contractually obligated? 

Q. The which? I'm sorry. 

A. Is that already contractual? In other words, 

that's just another must-take? 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

not? 

Q. 

Which one? 

"Firm purchased power. " 

Yes. 

So you have two must-takes? 

Right. 

Or two that you pay for whether you use them or 

Right. And for purposes of this analysis, if you 

gould assume that all firm purchases are fixed, there's no 

variable costs involved, then you can ramp up or down your 

qeneration as the case -- as your needs require. 

A. Wait a minute. Two of these are basically firm. 

Q. That's right, must take. 

A. And there's no variable cost, they're just fixed? 

They're a fixed purchase cost? 

Q. Right. 
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A. And the other two have variable costs, correct? 

Two are variable costs? 

Q. That's right. We're only talking about these two 

firm. And you've aligned this where -- okay. You've got 

the must-take on the bottom, the firm purchased -- 

A. The two, both must-takes. 

Q. Both must-takes, and then the base load 

generation, and then at the top you've got your combustion 

turbine peaking generation. 

Okay. Let's assume that that stays the way it is, 

and on the next morning or the next day, it gets cloudy and 

the utility has some extra generation from its total 

resources that it can sell, and it sells 10 megawatts of 

power on the wholesale market on a non-separated basis. 

What would be, in your view, the incremental cost 

of that sale coming out of those resources? 

A. Specific to no other circumstances? 

Q. Right. 

A. If you still had combustion turbines running, then 

that would be the incremental cost. If you dropped down to 

intermediate or base, whatever the pricing is on the other, 

that would be the cost. 

Q. Okay. And that would be the incremental cost of 

that 10 megawatt sale? 

A. Right. 
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Q. Okay. The second scenario I'm going to show you 

nas -- let's say the purchased power agreement, the 

nust-take, is only $20 a megawatt hour, the firm purchased 

power is -- you buy 70 megawatts of firm purchased power to 

avoid what would be your combustion turbine peaking 

Teneration, and then you've got your base load intermediate 

the same at $25 a megawatt hour as we discussed in the first 

example. 

A. Wait a minute now. All right. Now, the 

nust-take -- well, the firm is -- I'm just doing an 

incremental stack, and this is not what -- this is different 

than what you just asked me. 

Q. Right. Exactly. That's not in any order, though. 

Those haven't been put down in that paper in any order. I'm 

just asking if you could stack them the way you would call 

upon them if you were dispatching to meet your load. 

Okay. And under that one, Mr. Kordecki, if we did 

the same cloudy-day scenario where you could sell 10 

megawatts at wholesale on a non-separated basis, which of 

those blocks -- 

A. I'm sorry. I got this one backwards. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Your statement about displacing it, I was trying 

to -- I was going to put it under it. 

Q. Okay. 
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MR. McWHIRTER: Let me see that. 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q. Okay. The next day, it's cloudy, and you can sell 

10 megawatts off-system. Which of those blocks would your 

incremental cost come out of? 

A. The top block, $15 combustion turbine, if it's 

running. 

Q. And if it's not running? 

A. Then you drop down to the intermediate generation 

at $25. 

Q. Okay. The third scenario is very much like the 

first, only it's eleven o'clock at night. 

A. I would put one caveat. The firm purchase that 

you've made to replace the peaking or intermediate really 

depends somewhat on the timing on how you did that also. 

Q. Okay. But the incremental cost of the wholesale 

sale would come in -- would that influence that? Which one 

did you say? 

A. Yes, the incremental cost should always be the 

influence on the sale, the influence of the sale. 

Q. And which would the incremental cost come out of 

f o r  that 10 megawatt sale? 

A. Well, since your load was dropping down, if you 

iiere still running combustion turbines, then it'd be out of 

the combustion turbines. If you drop down below the 
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intermediate, it would be the cost of the intermediate. 

Q. This third one is really the same as the first, 

only it's eleven o'clock at night and all you've got is base 

load running. And the must-take, this time it's $125  per 

megawatt hour and the base load is $ 2 5  per megawatt hour. 

You don't have any combustion turbine peaking generation in 

operation, nor do you have any firm purchased power. 

So you've really got only two blocks to stack 

there, don't you? 

A. Repeat it, would you, please? 

Q. Okay. This one, you don't have any of those two 

that have the hatch mark on them. 

A. Okay. 

Q. So you've only the must-take and the base load 

intermediate at $25 a megawatt hour. So how would you stack 

those two? 

A. I don't have a firm purchase? 

Q. No. 

A. And all I have is the base load and the 

intermediate? 

Q. Right. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Okay. And if by some stroke of luck you're able 

to sell 10 megawatts, which would that come out of as far as 

incremental cost of the 10 megawatt sale? 

MICHAEL MUSETTA & ASSOCIATES, INC. (813) 221-3171 



27 

1 
P 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 
P 

14 

15 

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25  
P 

A. It would be at the base load, $25. 

Q. Okay. What I would like to do -- 

A. The question I would phrase -- I haven't given you 

a response whether the sale you were making is firm or 

non-firm, either. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I'm guessing that it's a non-firm sale since you 

were out buying power to cover yourself. 

Q. Right. So it's a non-firm, that's your 

assumption? 

A. Yes. 

Q. How would it differ in your answer if it were a 

firm sale? 

A. Then you would be buying firm to sell firm, and I 

have a little problem with that. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Depending on when things were contracted for. But 

the way you laid it out to me, they would be -- I suspect 
you'd be paying more than what you were selling for, all 

things being equal. 

Q. What I would like to do, Mr. Kordecki, is get 

copies made of these three items. I want to make sure that 

they're in the same order that you did them. I'm just going 

to put Roman Numeral 2 here since that's covered up, Roman 

Numeral 1 on that one, and you can see the "111" on that 
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one. I don't know if you want to make any notes to make 

sure that those are the same order when we get them back 

after being copied as they are there. 

A. Yeah, I believe they're correct. 

Q. Okay. On page 12 of your testimony, lines 11 and 

12, you state that "When purchased power is the highest cost 

power on the utility system, it is the incremental cost." 

What if -- 

MR. McWHIRTER: What page are you on? 

MR. BEASLEY: This is on page 12, Mr. McWhirter, 

lines 11 and 12, middle of the page. 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q. What if at any given point in time there are 

purchased power costs that are higher than the utility's 

marginal generating cost of its units, but there are no 

non-separated sales at that point in time? What would the 

higher purchase power cost be the cost of? I mean, what 

would it be associated with if there are no non-separated 

sales? 

A. It would be the highest cost. 

Q. Okay. Would it just -- 
A. Whatever's the highest cost is the highest cost. 

Q. It would just figure in as part of the average 

cost of system sales to retail customers? 

A. Probably, yes. 
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Q. Okay. Is it your position -- hold on a second. 

A. I probably would better phrase that in terms of 

whether it was firm or non-firm and short-term or long-term, 

but my testimony is directed primarily at purchases, 

short-term purchases. 

Q. Okay. What do you mean by "short-term purchases,'' 

Mr. Kordecki? 

A. Something less than a year, as defined by the 

separation factors. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Firm or non-firm. 

Q. In your statement there on page 12, line 11 and 

12, the one I just read you, "When purchased power is the 

highest priced power on the utility system, it is the 

incremental cost," what if that highest cost power that's 

purchased happens to be a must-take power purchase 

agreement? 

A. Then it's firm, and it's not what I was driving at 

as far as purchased power -- 
Q .  SO -- 
A. -- as far as cost on the system. 
Q. So then the must-take would not be the incremental 

cost of -- 

A. A must-take is the same as the firm power 

purchase, so it makes no difference. 
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Q. So it would be at the bottom of the stack? 

A. Its incremental cost is -- incremental cost, 

remember, drives -- that's the cost for one more input. It 

does not cover fixed cost. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Incremental cost is only variable cost. In other 

words, it's the cost to make the next sale or whatever it 

would be. So all those things are basic things that will 

be -- even though you had them in dispatch order, they're 
basically in the base fuel adjustment and everybody pays 

them, because they're not incremental. They're the highest 

cost, but not incremental. It may be the highest cost. 

Q. Thank you. Okay. Just for the record, going back 

to these dispatch stack charts, Mr. Kordecki, on the Roman 

Numeral 1, could you mark the block that the incremental 

would come from, as you testified earlier? 

A. Incremental will come out of the $25 and $75 

units. 

Q. Okay. And then in Roman Numeral 2, that stack, 

which would your incremental cost come out of? 

A. $25 and $ 1 5 .  

Q. I'm sorry? 

A. $25 and $ 1 5 .  

Q. And how about Roman Numeral 3? 

A. $25. 
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MR. BEASLEY: I'd like to have these charts marked 

3s a deposition exhibit, Composite Exhibit 1. 

(Deposition Exhibit No. 1 was marked for 

identification.) 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q. Okay. Going over to page 15 of your testimony, 

line 13. Excuse me, lines 5 through 14. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Hold on one second. Let me get a confirmation 

here. 

There you discussed the cumulative profit pool 

that your testimony addresses? 

A. Right. 

Q. Could you tell me how your proposal would differ 

from the Commission Order? And it's the final order in the 

incentives docket, it's Order No. 001744. It was issued in 

September of 2000 in Docket No. 991779. 

A. I don't think, in essence, they're different. I 

think what I was portraying here was the instance that sales 

normally are accumulated, or the profit from sales, on a 

me-to-one basis, and then they're added up. You end up 

dith a -- if all sales were profitable, you end up with the 

same answer. 

Q. Okay. 

A. What I'm saying here is there may be some sales 
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that are not profitable, that may actually happen to lose 

money on the sale. 

Q. Okay. 

A. So that if there was a loss, the loss wouldn't be 

incumbent to the utility, the loss will be incumbent to the 

profits. 

Q. So it would be a net effect, is that -- 

A. It would be a net effect. 

Q. On page 17 of your testimony, you say "If a 

utility can prove by clear and convincing evidence that the 

O&M cost is incremental, that is, does not already exist in 

the retail customers' base rates and that no cost would 

exist without the sale, then and only then can the O&M cost 

be taken from the margin or profit of the sale and credited 

back to the utility's operating revenues." 

What would you consider to be something that would 

meet the threshold of clear and convincing? 

A. I'm not totally sure. There's two parts to what 

I've said here. The first part is that it's an incremental 

cost. The incremental cost would be that if the transaction 

didn't take place, the cost didn't take place. It's not a 

reallocated cost. In other words, there'd be no cost. 

That's number one. 

Number two is what's in base rates. That's 

totally different than incremental costs in the sense that, 
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if, for instance, there was a cost which the utility 

thought -- I'll use -- seems at least in the case of three 

utilities, and not one, that the O&M levels that were in 

their last rate cases were done on an overall basis, not on 

account basis. Florida Power and Light may have been an 

account basis, where they lump accounts, like 900 accounts, 

and used inflation or whatever they used. 

So to the extent, let's say, there's one mill in a 

rate -- in the rate the customers pay, and let's say that 

one mill is for dispatch costs, just to use a number, and 

that since their last rate case, the amount of energy has 

gone up 200 percent, they also have to pay us that 

threshold. 

In other words, there may be dollars, it may be an 

incremental cost, but it may already be, in a sense, 

recovered in base rates, because the O&M amount that's in 

base rates would more than overcome that. I think by giving 

you the example, I'm telling you what I think the threshold 

is. Not only is it a cost that would not have occurred, but 

also it has to be outside the O&M. In other words, that the 

utility, in fact, is spending all of the O&M, or as in this 

particular case, that it is embedded in the rate. 

Q. Okay. Mr. Kordecki, I want to show you a document 

that says "Staff Memorandum" dated September 20, 2000, ask 

you if you have reviewed that. 
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A. No, I haven't. 

Q. You haven't? 

A. No. 

Q. So you wouldn't be able to draw any conclusions 

from that as to whether you agree with it or not? 

A. I just know there's a benchmark. That's all I 

know. 

Q. Okay. Why don't we take just a few minutes and 

let you read this staff memorandum and go off the record. 

(A brief recess was taken.) 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q. All right. Mr. Kordecki, I've asked you and you 

have reviewed what purports to be a September 20, 2000, 

memorandum from Cochran Keating and Todd Bohrmann of the 

Commission Staff to all parties of record in the fuel 

adjustment proceeding. Have you had a chance to look at 

this? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Is it a proposed method of implementing what the 

Commission voted in the incentives docket? 

A. Yes. That's my impression. 

Q. Do you have any difficulty with what's set out in 

this document, or would you change anything in it from what 

the staff has proposed? 

A. If I was instituting an incentive mechanism, or 
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just do I have a problem with what they've written there, 

specifically? 

Q. Right. 

A. No. 

Q. You don't. 

MR. BEASLEY: I'd like to ask that this be marked 

as a deposition exhibit. 

(Deposition Exhibit No. 2 was marked for 

identification.) 

THE WITNESS: That's not to be construed that I 

think it's right or wrong. 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q. Okay. But you don't -- 

A. Or proper or improper. 

Q. You think it's a reasonable way to implement what 

the Commission decided in the incentives docket? 

A. No. No. I mean, based on the findings of the 

docket or instituting an incentive? 

Q. No, based -- given what the Commission decided -- 

A. That's fine. Yeah. 

Q. -- then it's appropriate to use this to implement 
dhat the Commission -- 

A. As best I can tell from what I heard, that's about 

dhat the Commission found, so -- 

Q. All right. 
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M R .  BEASLEY: Okay. We're going to step out for a 

minute. Go off the record. 

(A brief recess was taken.) 

BY MR. BEASLEY: 

Q. Just a few clarifying questions, Mr. Kordecki. 

What is the incremental cost of making a firm purchase for 

more than a year? 

A. I don't know with that statement, but basically if 

it's just a set number of dollars per megawatt hour or 

something like that, then it's the total cost. If there's a 

fuel or an energy charge that's associated with how much you 

use, then that will become the incremental cost. 

Q. Is there any difference in making the incremental 

cost determination if it's less than a year? 

A. For purposes of what we've been discussing here, 

no. 

Q. Okay. 

A. With the exception of, I guess, the planning 

sequence in terms of why you made the purchase may be quite 

different if it's long-term versus something you had to do 

short-term. 

Q .  Would the cost of -- incremental cost of a sale be 
different for a non-firm versus a firm sale? 

A. The cost? 

Q. Incremental cost. 
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A. Yeah. 

Q. How would it be different? 

A. Well, if you're making the sale and it's firm, the 

cost is the cost. If it's incremental, then it's whenever 

they take it or whenever it is. It depends contractually. 

What you -- I think we're talking past each other right now. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I don't think you'd compare those. 

Q. Well, with respect to a firm sale, is there any 

difference in what the incremental cost is depending on 

whether it's more than a year or less than a year in 

duration? 

A. For purposes of the cost, no. For purposes of the 

planning and what you have to do, yes. 

Q. When calculating the incremental cost of making a 

sale, when do you take into account the must-take, the cost 

of the must-take purchased power? Is that -- 

A. According to my testimony or according to the 

examples you gave? I think I might as well clarify it now. 

My stacking of units for incremental cost is based on the 

fact that there's no transaction problem. In short-term, 

non-separated sales, the utility is making decisions on 

purchases and sales that are somewhat volatile. 

My testimony doesn't say that some of the 

purchased power that may be the highest that may be firm is 
I 
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the incremental cost, it says it should be used as the 

incremental cost, because it is the utility's decision on 

how they manage the system. 

For instance, I'll give you an extreme example. 

The utility might go out and make a couple of hundred 

megawatts of firm sales, firm non-separated sales, and be, 

you know, somewhat on the margin as far as the ability to 

serve it. If they can't serve it and they can't recall it, 

then they buy purchased power, or let's say purchased power 

is available, or they interrupt if they have interruptible 

customers. 

And what my testimony is aimed at is that in the 

situations -- the short-term situations, less than a year, 

that those purchases should be substituted as the 

incremental cost because it's not the customer's fault that 

the sale was made. 

Q. So you're saying, then -- and I think you just 

did -- that it might not be the incremental cost, it should 

just be used as the incremental cost? 

A. I said "used." That's right. 

Q. So there might be no relationship between that 

cost that you're using as the incremental cost and the 

actual incremental cost of the sale? 

A. There are instances where that's true, that's 

correct, because they occurred at different times. In other 
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words, a utility may have made a large sale and it was a 

mistake and they had to buy power, basically, in my 

testimony, to cover the sale because they couldn't make it. 

And what I'm saying is that the customer should 

not bear it. The utility doesn't bear any losses. All 

right? The only thing that accomplishes is it shrinks the 

incentive pot. They'll see that, and that's the only thing 

it does. The customers still bear the cost. 

Q. You've testified, haven't you, that utility 

customers benefit from utilities making off-system sales 

when they have generation available; is that correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Well, then, would the shrinking of that incentive 

pot tend to discourage, as opposed to encourage or be 

neutral to, utilities to make those off-system sales? 

A. I think it would encourage the utilities to be 

sure when they make specifically firm sales. I think 

non-firm sales, most of them are recalled anyway. To be 

sure when they made firm sales that, in fact, they didn't 

put themselves and, in essence, the customers at risk of 

having to purchase. That's all. 

Q. They should underwrite anything that occurs 

between the commit time on the firm sale and the conclusion 

of that sale? 

A. No, they don't underwrite anything. Customers 
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underwrite the whole thing. The only thing that's 

underwritten or that's dealt with is the incentive, the 

affect on the incentive, the pot of incentive. 

In other words, if they never get to the 

benchmark, it makes absolutely no difference whatsoever. 

None. Doesn't change anything. Unless the way money is 

dealt with in the fuel adjustment is different between these 

types of sales versus anything else that might go into the 

fuel adjustment. I don't think there are, but let's say 

that for our purposes. 

So the only thing this is doing is saying if the 

utility makes a sale that's not in the best interest of the 

customer -- it may have been prudent when they made it -- 

that the utility doesn't bear any losses. The customers 

still see the same cost. The only thing the utility bears 

is that there might be some shrinkage in the incentive pot. 

Q. And would that discourage them from pursuing the 

sales as much as they would if there were not a shrinkage? 

A. I don't think so ,  unless they're badly managed or 

they're making a lot of high-risk sales. If they're making 

a lot of high-risk sales, I'd say, yeah, it's discouraging 

them from making high-risk sales. 

Q. All of the benefits of these sales go to the 

retail rate payers until the benchmark is reached; is that 

your understanding? 
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A. That's my understanding, yes. 

Q. Okay. Mr. Kordecki, one more example. You 

purchased -- on a next-day sale, you committed to buy, for 
16 hours, power at $100 per megawatt hour. And then later 

on, during the shoulder hours, you realize that you didn't 

need all of that, you can sell some of it at, say, $50 a 

megawatt hours and mitigate your overall cost to your 

customers. Should you make that sale? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What would be your incremental cost for making 

that sale? 

A. Actually or commitment cost? Commitment cost, I 

guess, is $50. Now, the reason you would make that sale is 

the utility is there to maximize the revenues from these 

sales. It's also there to minimize the cost of these sales. 

And to that extent, the utility has done what it should do 

and that was minimize the cost. But they don't make an 

incentive for it. 

Q. No, I didn't ask you whether it should get an 

incentive, I just asked you what the -- 

A. Or to be eligible for an incentive for that. Now, 

I didn't say it was their fault, but it was their planning, 

it was their analysis that said "I need this 100 megawatts." 

It's not the customers' analysis, so the customers ought 

not, in the long run, potentially, in a sense, pay for the 
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difference. They pay for the difference anyway, but the 

utility ought not build in a larger incentive potential 

because of it. 

Q. And that aside, what is the incremental cost of 

that sale at $50 a megawatt hour during the shoulder period? 

A. The incremental cost? 

Q. The incremental cost of making that sale. 

A. I think it's zero. If that's a fixed cost, then 

it's a fixed cost. There is no -- the incremental cost is 

the cost to make one more sale. So to that extent, it's 

zero. 

Q. If you had a CT that you would ramp up and down at 

a cost of $30 per megawatt hour, would that be the 

incremental cost? 

A. If you were using that CT it would be, yes. 

MR. BEASLEY: Okay. That's all we have. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q. Mr. Kordecki, just because a utility takes an 

action does not necessarily make that action prudent; is 

that correct? 

A. That's correct. 

MR. BEASLEY: Wait. Form of the question. 

MR. McWHIRTER: You object to the form? 

MR. BEASLEY: Right. 
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BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q. Is an action prudent because the utility takes it 

3r can it become -- is it prudent after a determination is 

made on the prudency? 

A. After the determination. 

Q. When is the determination made? 

A. Normally after the fact -- 
Q. And who -- 

A. -- if it's something like a purchase. If it's 

something like a unit being built, obviously, it's in 

advance. 

Q. Well, in this situation, let's say the 

determination of prudency deals with a must-take acquisition 

of power. Who makes that determination of prudency? 

A. I believe it would arise only at the fuel hearings 

if the Commission would make it an issue. I don't believe 

utilities are required to file any kind of rationalization 

or support for the purchases that they've made. 

Q. All right. 

A. Not to my knowledge, anyway. 

Q. All right. If the issue is raised as to whether 

or not a transaction is prudent, who has the burden to 

determine the prudency, the Commission or the utility? 

A. The utility. 

Q. Do the utilities presently file concurrent fuel 
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information with respect to specific purchases and sales, or 

does it file gross information dealing with all of the sales 

with n a time period? 

A. I think it's some of both. There are certain -- 
Q. Elaborate a little bit further on that. 

A. I think there are certain contracts that are dealt 

with specifically, or have been historically, for purchases, 

firm purchases. But short-term transactions, I don't 

believe are forecasted, but I think they're dealt with after 

the fact. 

Q. For instance, a 10-year contract with Hardy Power 

Partners that's submitted to the Commission, that would -- 

the information on that would be disclosed; is that correct 

A. In advance of approval? 

Q. In advance of an approval, yes. 

A. I can't -- I don't know that for a fact. 

Q. All right. In the typical daily transactions in 

the wholesale market, what, if any, information is given to 

the Public Service Commission concerning the transactions in 

the last 24 hours? 

A. None that I know of until after the fact. 

Q. So if you had a situation as delineated in page 1 

of Tampa Electric's Exhibit 1 in which you had a price of 

$75 for combustion turbine and $125 for purchased power 

agreement must-take, would the Commission have any way of 
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knowing that those were, the prices involved, at the time 

period that the transaction was made? 

A. No. On that page there, they may or may not know 

the must-take, depends on when it was done relative to the 

fuel adjustments. 

The firm purchased power, probably if it was 

long-term, they would know, but it could be made during the 

year when they would not know. Their own generation would 

be -- they would know what ballpark they were in in terms of 

CTs, but they wouldn't necessarily know the cost in terms of 

generation or combustion turbine. 

Q. Would it then be fair to say under the current 

circumstances the Commission might know about long-term 

transactions, but might not know about short-term 

transactions? 

MR. McWHIRTER: If you want me to change the form 

of the question, I'll do it. 

MR. BEASLEY: I started to say something, but -- 

MR. McWHIRTER: Huh? 

MR. BEASLEY: That's all right. Go ahead. 

THE WITNESS: Generally, yes. Yes, I would agree. 

They may not know. 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q. They may not know. What is the typical duration 

of a "must-take" contract? 
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A. That they can vary to -- the longest ones that 

I've ever had any familiarity with were five 16s over five 

months. In other words, somebody was contracting power to 

buy 16 hours a day during the peak hours, five weekdays 

across basically the summer months. 

In a sense, they're all must-take. Any firm 

contract is a must-take in the sense you pay whether you 

take it or not. So in that sense, a must-take contract is 

no different from a regular firm contract. You pay it 

whether you take it or not. 

Q. What is the typical duration of a must-take 

contract, would it be a matter of years, a matter of days, 

or a matter of months, or a matter of hours? 

A. I don't think it would be hours. Mostly I would 

think you'd be looking at weeks and maybe months. 

Q. Okay. 

A. But I'm not totally familiar with all types of 

transactions that can be -- like I said, I think there's an 

infinite variety of ways you can structure contracts and the 

variables that go with them. 

Q. Is there any minimum pre-notice period on a 

must-take contract? 

A. Most of them have some type of notice the day 

before, whether they're going to take it, or the morning of, 

you know, in terms of the day before that the utility wants 
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the power. But that's the same with a firm -- that can be 

the same with a firm contract. That's really no difference. 

Q. Is there distinction in your testimony between 

separated and non-separated sales? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Which does your testimony address, separated or 

non-separated? 

A. The specifics of my testimony are non-separated. 

There's some description of separated, but it's not germane 

to the points of my testimony. 

Q. And your testimony deals with methodology for 

calculating the incentive, or does it deal with something 

else? 

A. No, my testimony deals with what I consider the 

principles of determining what the net benefit of the 

sales -- of non-separated sales are, as long as there is an 
incentive base on net or profit from sales. If it was based 

on frequency, then it would be different. 

But this is -- my testimony specifically is only 

to address the size of the incentive pot, so to speak, or 

what's eligible for the incentive. Nothing else. It 

wouldn't matter if the Commission went to a 50 /50  sharing or 

80/20. If the utility gets 80, the principles don't change 

in terms of how I think you should calculate the net profit. 

Q. You were asked to do some ranking with respect to 
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Tampa Electric Exhibit 1. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Does that relate to separated or non-separated 

sales? 

A. NO, I think I was asked what was the incremental 

cost of the system. That's what they -- and the reason you 

would derive the incremental cost, I'm assuming, was that 

you were going to make a sale. That was my assumption when 

I said that was the incremental cost. Or there was going -- 
and I believe it was phrased that way, if I'm not mistaken. 

MR. BEASLEY: If I may clarify, I recall asking 

what was the incremental cost of making a 10 megawatt 

sale -- 

THE WITNESS 

MR. BEASLEY 

made. 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Sale, yeah. 

-- the day after the commitment was 

Q. And did it relate to separated or non-separated? 

And your answer is what? 

A. My answers were in terms of non-separated sales, 

yeah. 

MR. BEASLEY: I think the record will reflect that 

the question coincides with the answer. 

BY MR. McWHIRTER: 

Q. On page 3 of this exhibit, you have a dispatch 

MICHAEL MUSETTA & ASSOCIATES, INC. (813) 221-3171 



49 

1 
r 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 
P 

14 

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

2 0  

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 
P. 

order. And I presume that in the dispatch order, the $125 

sale -- 

A. Purchase. 

Q. -- is dispatched first, and then the $25 sale 

would be dispatched later, is that correct, under that 

transaction? 

A. Yes, because the incremental cost of the purchased 

power agreement for incremental purposes is zero. 

Q. And on page 3, if you had simultaneous sales to 

the retail customers and then wholesale sales to the 

wholesale customers, under page 3, what would the wholesale 

customer be charged for this 10 megawatt sale? 

A. I have no idea. But you would hope that they're 

being priced to make the sale off the $25 since the 

incremental is zero. But, again, my testimony is not how 

you establish the pricing, it's how you establish the net 

benefits. 

Q. I see. 

MR. McWHIRTER: That's all the questions I have. 

MR. BEASLEY: Read and sign? 

MR. McWHIRTER: I'm done, yes. 

MR. BEASLEY: Okay. Great. Anyone on the phone 

have any questions? 

MR. BURGESS: I have no questions. This is 

Burgess. 
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MR. KEATING: This is Cochran Keating. I think 

you covered the one question I was going to ask, so I have 

no questions. 

MR. BEASLEY: Okay. Very well. 

(Deposition concluded at 1:52 p.m.) 

CERTIFICATE OF OATH 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGH 

I, the undersigned authority, certify that 

GERARD KORDECKI personally appeared before me and was duly 

sworn. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this&* day of 

August, 2001. 

/ 
&ful/LvM. 

Dawn M. Dantschisch, RMR, CRR 

Notary Public - State of Florida 
My Commission Expires: 11/4/03 

Commission No.: CC871116 
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State ofFlorida 

SuUu @erbh Commission 
-M-E-M-0-R- A-N-D-U-M- 

DATE: September 20, 2000 
TO: All Parties of Record 
FROM: Cochran Keating, Senior Attorney 

RE: 000001-E1 - Fuel and purchased power cost recovery clause 
Todd Bohrmann, Regulatory Analyst IV &%' 

and generating performance incentive factor. 

Via Facsimile 

This memorandum is to confirm and delineate the Commission 
Staff's proposed methodology, as presented at our September 12, 
2000, meeting with the parties, to implement the Commission'$ 
recent decision in Docket No. 991779-E1 concerning the appropriate 
application of incentives to wholesale power sales. As stated at 
the meeting, although the Commission has not yet issued its final 
order in this docket, Staff believes that implementation of the 
Commission's decision remains an open issue which should be 
resolved at this November's fuel hearing. 

To implement the Commission's decision in Docket No. 991779- 
EI, Staff believes that the following issues are appropriate for 
resolution at this November's fuel hearing: 

1. How should the Commission's decision in Docket No. 
991779-E1, concerning the application of incentives to 
wholesale power sales, be implemented? 

2 .  What is the appropriate estimated benchmark level for 
calendar year 2001 for gains on non-separated wholesale 
energy sales eligible for a shareholder incentive 
pursuant to the Commission's decision in Docket No. 
991779-E1? 

As discussed at the meeting, Staff proposes the following 
methodology to address the first issue: 

1. In its Actual/Estimated True-Up filing and 
testimony, each utility shall include an estimated 
value of gains on eligible non-separated wholesale 
energy sales for the current calendar year (2000) 
based on actual and estimated data; 

, _  
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2. In its Projection filing, each utility shall 
include a forecasted value of gains on eligible 
non-separated wholesale energy sales for the next 
calendar year (2001) ; 

3. Each utility shall compare its forecasted value of 
gains from eligible sales for the, next, calendar 
year (2001) to an estimated three-year .moving 
average of such gains. This estimated three-year 
moving average, or estimated benchmark, will be 
based on actual gains from eligible sales for each 
of the previous two calendar years (1998 and 1999) 
and the estimated gains from eligible sales for the 
current calendar year (2000). This comparison will 
be one of numerous inputs that each utility will 
use to calculate its levelized fuel cost recovery 
factor for the next calendar year (2001); 

4. In its April True-Up filing in the next calendar 
year (ZOOl), each utility shall indicate its actual 
gains on eligible non-separated wholesale energy 
sales for the previous calendar year ( 2 0 0 0 ) .  Each 
utility will then re-calculate its three-year 
moving average based on the actual gains from 
eligible sales for each of the previous three years 
(1998, 1999, and 2000) to establish an actual 
benchmark. 

5. Each utility shall record its actual gains from 
eligible non-separated wholesale energy sales on 
its Schedule A-6 filed monthly with the Commission. 
When these actual gains are equal to or less than 
the utility's actual benchmark, the utility shall 
credit 100 percent of these gains to its ratepayers 
through its fuel and purchased power cost recovery 
clause (fuel clause). When these actual gains are 
greater than the utility's actual benchmark, the 
utility shall credit 80 percent of the gains above 
the benchmark to its ratepayers through its fuel 
clause. The utility shall credit the remaining 20 
percent to its shareholders; 

6. Each utility shall reflect any differences between 
its actual and forecasted gains from eligible sales 
through its monthly true-up calculations in 
Schedule A-2: 
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1. The first estimated benchmark €or gains on eligible 
non-separated wholesale energy sales shall be 
established at the November 2000 fuel hearing for 
purposes of calculating a levelized fuel cost 
recovery factor for 2001. The shareholder 
incentive shall apply to actual gains on eligible 
sales made over the actual benchmark for 2001. On 
a going-forward basis, the difference between 
actual and forecasted gains on eligible sales shall 
be "trued-up'' at each fuel hearing. 

For illustrative purposes, this methodology, using hypothetical 
data, is presented in table form in the attached document. 

If have any questions or comments concerning Staff's proposal, 
please contact Todd Bohrmann at (850) 413-6445 or Cochran Keating 
at (850) 413-6193. 

WCR 
Attachment 
cc: Division of Regulatory Oversight 

Division of Economic Regulation #- i: 000001m6.wck 
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Proposed Shareholder Incentive Implementation Methodology 
Hypothetical Example 

Part I A 1998 Actual Gains $100.00 
Nov ' 0 0  B 1999 Actual Gains * $110.00 

C 2000 Actual/Estimated $120.00 
Gains 

D 2001 Forecasted Benchmark $110.00 (A+B+C) /3 
E 2001 Forecasted Gains * $130.00 
F 2001 Forecasted Ratepayer $126.00 D+((E-D)*.8) 

Credit 

Part I1 G 2000 Actual Gains * $75.00 
Apr ' 0 1  H 2001 Actual Benchmark $95.00 (A+B+G) /3 

Part I11 I 2001 Actual/Estimated $128.00 
Nov '01 Gains * 

J 2001 Actual/Estimated ($4.60) L-F 
True-Up 

K 2002 Forecasted Benchmark $104.33 (B+G+I) /3 
L 2001 Estimated Ratepayer $121.40 H+( (I-H)*.8) 

Credit 

Part IV M 2001 Actual Gains $140.00 
Apr '02 N 2001 Final True-up . $9.60 0-L 

0 2001 Actual Ratepayer $131.00 H+( (M-H)*.8) 
Credit 

P 2002 Actual Benchmark $108.33 (B+G+M) /3 

Note: Items marked with an asterisk ( * )  are values that 
would be found in a utility filing, but are hypothetical for 
this example. 
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I) 

4. For each year from 1998 to 2000, please provide the amount of operation and 

maintenance (OBM) expense that FPL incurred to sell its non-separated 

wholesale energy that was recorded as part of its operating expenses. 

a 
1998 None 

1999 None 

2000 None 

a 

5. For each year from 1998 to 2000, please provide the amount of OBM expense 

that FPL Incurred to sell its non-separated wholesale energy that was charged 

to its fuel cost recovery clause. 

1998 None 

1999 $2,220,056 

2000 $951,765 



,- ’ BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In re: Calculation of gains and appropriate 
regulatory treatment for non-separated 1 Docket No. 010283-El 
wholesale energy sales by investor-owned 
electric utilities ) Dated: August 13, 2001 

) 

) 

) 

FLORIDA POWER 8 LIGHT COMPANY’S ANSWERS 
TO PUBLIC COUNSEL’S FIRST SET OF INTERROGATORIES 

Florida Power & Light Company (“FPL“) hereby provides its Answers to 

Public Counsel’s First Set of Interrogatories. 

(2.1. Please give a clear definition of incremental fuel costs and detail how 
the utility determines incremental fuel c o s t  Provide a detailed 
example of such calculation. If there are numerous methodologies 
used by the utility, detail each methodology and explain the 
circumstance under which such methodology would be used. 

Incremental fuel cost is the increase in dollars per hour associated with an 
increase in power output in megawatts. In other words, it is the cost to 
produce the next MWh. Incremental fuel cost is calculated by using the 
incremental heat rate curve for a given generating unit. The incremental 
heat rate curve shows the amount of additional fuel that must be added to 
a generating unit, at a given loading level, to produce an additional unit of 
output. The incremental heat rate curve is determined through periodic 
testing of each generating unit. These heat rate curves provide the basis 
of the data that is filed with the Commission and reviewed in conjunction 
with the Fuel and GPlF processes. The additional fuel required is 
multiplied by the fuel cost to give the incremental cost of raising the unit by 
1 MW. The cost of the fuel is based on current market price. 

A. 

Example 
Assume that the incremental heat rate for a sDecific unit loaded at 100 
MW is 8.25 mmBtu/MWh and the cost of ihe fuel for that unit is 
$3.20/mmBtu. The incremental cost to raise the unit 1 MW, from its 
current loading level, would equal: 

8.25 mmBtu/MWh $3.20/mmBtu = $24.75/MWh 

This incremental cost will change at different loading levels because the 
incremental heat rate changes through the operating range of the unit. 

2 



Q.3, Please give a clear definition of incremental 0 & M costs and detail 
the type of  expenses included in incremental 0 & M costs. Detail 
how the utility determines and calculates incremental 0 8 M for each 
type of incremental 0 & M expense. Provide a detailed example of 
such calculation. If there are numerous methodologies used by the 
utility, detail each methodology and explain the circumstance under 
which such methodology would be used. Identify each type of 
incremental 0 & M expense that is included for recovery in the fuel 
clause. 

A. When FPL makes off system sales from its gas turbine (GT's) peaking 
units, the incremental 0 & M cost incurred specifically due to operating 
these units for such off system sales is included as a component of the 
incremental generation cost. GT's are intended to operate for a limited 
period of time. However, when these facilities are used to make off system 
sales, the price of the sale reflects the added cost for the use of these 

Exa m ple 
> A log is kept for each transaction, noting when GT's are used to make 

a sale. 

> A rate of approximately $15.00 per MWH is used to calculate the 

incremental costs. 

GT's. I 

k The $15.00 rate is based on historical costing data for variable 

operating costs primarily composed of component aging and increased 

maintenance cycles. 

> The MWHs sold from the GT's are multiplied by the $15.00 rate to 

produce the total amount of incremental 0 8. M. 
k For 2000, this amount was approximately $950,000. The cost and 

revenue associated with this incremental 0 & M (GT maintenance) is 

included in the fuel clause. 

3 . I  



4. For each year fiom 1998 to 2000, please provide the amount of operation and 

maintenance (O&M) expense that FPC incurred to sell its non-separated 

wholesale energy that was recorded as part of its operating expenses. 

Response: FPC does not track operation and maintenance expenses incurred 

to sell its non-separated wholesale energy. However, beginning in 2000, FPC 

does estimate the cost of O&M incurred to make non-separated wholesale 

sales and includes this estimate in the price charged to the wholesale 

customer. For the year 2000, this O&M price component produced revenues 

of $2,25 1,905. 

- 5 -  
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5 .  For each year f+om 1998 to 2000, please provide the amount of O&M expense 

that FPC incurred to sell its non-separated wholesale energy that was charged 

to its fuel cost recovery clause. 

Response: None. These expenses were and continue to be charged to and 

recovered through FPC’s base rates. 

5 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In Re: Calculation of Gains and Docket No. 010283-E1 
Appropriate Regulatory Treatment 
For Non-Separated Wholesale Energy 
Sales by Investor-Owned Electric 
Utilities 

Submitted for Filing: 
August 21,2001 

FLORIDA POWER CORPORATIONS RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COUNSEL'S 
FIRST SET OF INTERROGATORIES PROPOUNDED TO FPC 

Florida Power Corporation hereby files answers to Public Counsel's First 
Set of Interrogatories Propounded to Florida Power Corporation as follows: 

1. Please give a clear defiition of incremental fuel costs and detail how the 
utility determines incremental fuel cost. Provide a detailed example of such 
calculation. If there are numerous methodologies used by the utility, detail 
each methodology and explain the circumstance under which such 
methodology would be used. 

I 

Response: 
A. Incremental Fuel Cost. 
Coal: Each month incremental spot coal purchases that are being 
purchased for the following month plus the cost of transportation to 
transport the spot purchases are averaged to derive an inuwnental cost of 
coal for Crystal River 1&2 and 4&5. If there are no spot purchases for the 
month, quotes for spot coal, or published spot market indicators are 
evaluated and the incremental cost is based on the cost which would be 
incurred if the spot purchases were made. 

Oil: For each plant that bums fuel oil an estimate is made of the cost to 
purchase additional oil. Each site has a nonnal supply source, fuel type, 
sulfur grade and a contract pricing mechanism that is used to calculate the 
incremental costs. If significant supply is being purchased or is planned to 
be purchased from somewhere other than the normal supply source, the 
alternative source pricing would be used. In most cases the price is 
updated daily based on the prior day's (most current available) price index 
using the contract pricing formula For some sites the price changes 
weekly or monthly depending on how the supply contract pricing works. 
In all cases, the delivered cost is calculated including transportation and 



. -  
applicable taxes. A typical value for BTU content is used to convert the 
per barrel or per gallon price to $/mmbtu. 

The following is an illustrative example of this methodology (not actual 
contract prices); 
For Anclote Plant - buming 1.5% Sulfur #6 fuel oil - 
Prior days market index (interpolated from the 1% & 3% sulfur published 
prices) plus transportation & taxes = $20.00/bbl. 
BTU content = 6.4 million btdbbl. 
$/mmbtu = $3.1251mmbtu ($20.001 6.4) 

Natural Gas: 
For each plant that bums natural gas, the gas must be delivered to the plant 
site via an interstate pipeline. The cost of incremental supply to each plant 
consists of the cost of the gas supply (wellhead I supply-area price) plus 
the cost of interstate pipeline transportation. This formula would hold true 
for eachof FPC’s natural gas-fired plants except FPC’s-Intercession City 
plant. For the Intercession City plant, ?additional transportation charge 
of $0.10 per MMBtu (in addition to the interstate transportation costs 
stated above) would be incurred for transportation across Florida Gas 
Utility’s pipeline. 

Firm Transportation Demand Charges. FPC subscribes to f m  
transportation (FT) capacity on Florida Gas Transmission pipeline (FGT). 
For each MMBtu of firm capacity for which FPC subscribes, FPC must 
pay a monthly demand charge to FGT. FPC pays this demand charge to 
FGT each month regardless of whether gas is actually transported using 
the FT capacity. For this reason, FT demand charges are considered by 
FPC to be sunk costs. Demand charges would not be included in any 
calculation of the incremental cost of natural gas. 

Wellhead I Supply Area Gas Cost. FPC buys a majority of its supply area 
natural gas based on a published index such as Inside FERC’s Gas Marlcet 
Report. This index is published at the beginning of each month. The index 
price represents an average price, as reported by industry participants, for 
baseload gas that is bought arid sold at a particular pipeline location for 
particular month of gas flow. 

FPC also buys a portion of its gas supply area natural gas requirements on 
a day-ahead or intra-day basis. This gas price is based on overall market 
conditions as determined by the overall supply and demand situation 
applicable to the day of gas flow. 

Determination of Delivery Method. FPC utilizes three different methods 
to effectuate delivery of natural gas to its power plants: 1) Utilization of 
FPC’s firm transportation, 2) Utilization of interruptible transportation (if 
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available), and 3) the purchase of natural gas delivered to the plant by 
independent third parties. When natural gas is required at FPC’s plants, 
FPC looks at each of the above three costs to determine the lowest cost 
method of delivery. Each of the three methods is described below:. 

(1) If FCP holds unutilized FT capacity, FPC could use this 
unutilized transportation capacity to deliver the required incrbental gas 
supply to the applicable plant. The total cost of delivered gas utilizing FT 
would include the Wellhead / Supply Area Cost (see above section), plus 
applicable variable transportation costs charged by the interstate pipeline 
(per interstate tariff). Variable charges include variable commodity 
(usage) costs plus fuel retention. Cumently FGT’s fuel rate is 2.4%. An 
example of total incremental cost using FT on FGT would be as follows: 

Assume wellhead cost of $3.00 per MMBtu 
FT commodity (usage) charge per tariff = $0.0178 per MMBtu 
Fuel rate = 2.4% 

Total cost = $3.00 + $0.0178 + [(3.00/ (1-.024)) - 3.001 
Total cost = $3.09157 per MMBtu 

(2) If interruptible transportation (IT) is available on the pipeline, 
FPC could utilize IT to make deliveries to the plant. The total cost of 
delivered gas utilizing IT would include the Wellhead / Supply Area Cost 
(see above description), plus applicable IT charges under the pipeline’s IT 
rate schedule (tariff). An example of total cost using an IT on FGT would 
be as follows: 

Assume wellhead cost of $3.00 per MMBtu 
IT charge per tariff = $0.3298 per MMBtu 
Fuel rage = 2.4% 

Total cost = $3.00 + $0.3298 + [(3.00/(1-.024)) - 3.001 
Total cost = $3.4036 per MMBtu 

(3) FPC could purchase natural gas at the plant site (delivered) 
from independent third parties. To determine the cost of buying delivered 
gas, FPC calls its suppliers to obtain price offers for gas delivered to the 
plant site. In many cases, no third parties will offer delivered gas, as all 
interstate transportation into the state of Florida is being utilized. . 



B Incremental Energy Cost. 
Incremental Fuel Cost (see above). 
Purchased Power: In addition to fuel, SO2 and O&M expenses, purchased 
power transactions are also incorporated into FPC’s incremental energy 
cost calculation. As an example, pre-arranged energy transactions are 
included in the incremental energy cost calculations used in the hourly 
market quotes. These pre-arranged transactions become a part of the total 
portfolio modeled in trading management applications. 

2. Please give a clear defdtion of incremental SO2 and detail how the utility 
determines and calculates incremental S 0 2 .  Provide a detailed example of 
such calculation. If there are numerous methodologies used by the utility, 
detail each methodology and explain the circumstance under which such 
methodology would be used. 

Response: 
For each plant that is covered under the SO2 Allowance program an 
emmision rate (Ibs SO2/mmbtu) is estimated based on the sulfur content 
of the fuel being used at that plant A mihket price in $/ton for SO2 
Allowances is estimated from the most recent market publications 
available. The $/ton price for SO2 is then converted to $Ab. A $/mmbtu 
value is then calculated. 

The following is an illustrative example of this methodology (not actual 
prices); For Anclote Plant - burning 1.5% Sulfur #6 fie1 oil, the 
emmision rate is approximately 1.7lbs S02/mmbtu. 
Most recent Allowance price = S2OOlton or S. IOAb. 
Incremental SO2 costs = $.17/mmbtu (S.10 x 1.7). 

3. Please give a clear definition of incremental O&M costs and detail the 
type of expenses included in incremental O&M costs. Detail how the utility 
determines and calculates incremental O&M for each type of incremental 
O&M expense. Provide a detailed example of such calculation. If there are 
numerous methodologies used by the utility, detail each methodology and 
explain the circumstance under which such methodology would be used. 
Identify each type of incremental O&M expense that is included for recovery 
in the fuel clause. 

Response: 
Florida Power Corp. does not include incremental O&M costs in the Fuel 
Adjustment Clause. 

9 



TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 

STAFF'S IST SET OF INTERROGATORIES 
INTERROGATORY NO. 4 
PAGE 1 OF 1 
FILED: JUNE 28,2001 

DOCKET NO. 010283-El 

4. For each year from 1998 to 2000, please provide the amount of operation and 
maintenance (O&M) expense that TECO incurred to sell its non-separated 
wholesale energy that was recorded as part of its operating expenses. 

A. 1998 .............................. $1,344,921 
1999 .............................. $ 587,681 
2000 .............................. $3,390,763 

10 
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TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 

STAFF'S 1'' SET OF INTERROGATORIES 
INTERROGATORY NO. 5 
PAGE 1 OF 1 
FILED: JUNE 28,2001 

DOCKET NO. 010283-El 

5. ' For each year from 1998 to 2000, please provide the amount of O&M expense that 
TECO incurred to sell its non-separated wholesale energy that was charged to its 
fuel cost recovery clause. 

A. Tampa Electric does not charge fuel-related 0&M expenses to its fuel cost recovery 
clause. 

11 

S 



TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 

OPC'S IST SET OF INTERROGATORIES 
INTERROGATORY NO. 1 
PAGE 1 OF 1 
FILED: AUGUST 13,2001 

DOCKET NO. 010283-El 

1. Please give a clear definition of incremental fuel costs and detail how the utility 
determines incremental fuel cost. Provide a detailed example of such calculation. If 
there are numerous methodologies used by the utility, detail each methodology and 
explain the circumstance under which such methodology would be used. 

Incremental fuel costs are the costs of the last megawatt@) of power from the 
system. These costs may be comprised of native generation and purchased power. 

The incremental fuel costs for a given power sale are calculated by first dispatching 
the available generation and power purchases for all load of greater priority. Then 
the generation resources and power purchases are dispatched for the same load 
plus the power sale. The difference in fuel costs of the two cases is the incremental 
fuel costs. 

A. 

I 

Detailed Example: I 

AssumDtions 
Native Load = 2,000 MW 
Power Sale = 100 MW 
Native Generation' = 2,050 MW 
Incremental Cost of Last 50 MW of Native Generation = $50/MWh 
Hourly Purchases = 50 MW @ $GO/MWh 

Calculation 
Incremental Fuel Cost of 100 MW Sale = (50 MW $50/MWh) + 
(50 MW $GO/MWh)= $5,500 per hour 

Includes generation and firm, "must take" block purchases 

. 



TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 

OPC'S ISTSET OF INTERROGATORIES 
INTERROGATORY NO. 3 
PAGE 1 OF 2 
FILED: AUGUST 13,2001 

DOCKET NO. 010283-El 

3. Please give a clear definition of incremental O&M costs and detail the type of 
expenses included in incremental O&M costs. Detail how the utility determines and 
calculates incremental O&M for each type of incremental O&M expense. Provide a 
detailed example of such calculation. If there are numerous methodologies used by 
the utility, detail each methodology and explain the circumstance under which such 
methodology would be used. Identify each type of incremental O&M expense that is 
included for recovery in the fuel clause. 

A. Incremental O&M costs are the change in O&M costs when the output of a 
generating unit is increased or decreased. 

Incremental O&M expenses are calculated annually based upon the prior year's 
actual O&M expenses. Fixed and vqriable components of O&M expense are 
calculated using a procedure develope'd by the Electric Power Research Institute 
(EPRI). The procedure was published in their Technical Assessment Guide (TAG) 
Special Report, dated May 1982 (EPRI P-2410-SR). Incremental O&M costs equal 
variable O&M expenses since variable O&M is the portion of O&M costs that- 
depends on generation output. The fixed component of O&M costs represents costs 
the utility will incur regardless of whether or not generation output varies. 

The EPRI procedure sets fixed O&M costs equal to the capacity factor ("A) times 
total annual O&M expenses. The capacity factor is based on total period hours less 
hours the units are off line due to economic dispatch during low load periods. The 
variable component is calculated by multiplying [I - the capacity factor (%)I by the 
total annual O&M cost. 

No incremental O&M expense is included for recovery in the fuel clause. The O&M 
expense that is included is not related to Tampa Electric's generating assets. It is 
solely expense associated with purchased power contracts with cogenerators and 
Hardee Power Partners. 
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BIG BEND COAL GWH 

GANNON COAL GWH 

POLK COAL GWH 

TOTAL COAL GWH , 

Detailed Example: 
2001 VARIABLE COAL O&M CALCULATION 

BASED UPON 2000 COAL O&M INFORMATION 

ADJUSTED ACTUAL 

MAX NET NET GEN. 

GWH GWH 

15.148.0 10,713.1 

9,942.3 4,355.2 

2,196.0 1,691 .O 

27,286.3 16,759.3 
i 

ANNUAL - 
AVERAGE ADJUSTED COAL CAPACITY FACTOR 61.42% 

BIG BEND 0 8 M  EXPENSE 

GANNON08MEXPENSE 

POLK OBM EXPENSE 

TOTAL OBM EXPENSE 

$40.552,341 

$39,494,449 

$22,631,219 

$110,678,009 

VARIABLE COMPONENT TOTAL OBM 

ESTIMATED COAL VARIABLE OBM COSTS (UMWH) 

$42,699,344 

$2.55 



State ofFlorida 

-M-E-M-0-R- A-N-D-U-M- 

DATE: September 20, 2000 
TO : All Parties of Record 
FROM: 

RE: 000001-E1 - Fuel and purchased power cost recovery clause 

Cochran Keating, Senior Attorney $& 
Todd Bohrmann, Regulatory Analyst IV &ZX 

and generating performance incentive factor. 

Via Facsimile 

This memorandum is to confirm and delineate the 'Commission 
Staff's proposed methodology, as presented at our September 12, 
2000, meeting with the parties, to implement the Commission's 
recent decision in Docket No. 991779-E1 concerning the appropriate 
application of incentives to wholesale power sales. As stated at 
the meeting, although the Commission has not yet issued its final 
order in this docket, Staff believes that implementation of the 

I Commission's decision remains an open issue which should be 
resolved at this November's fuel hearing. 

To implement the Commission's decision in Docket No. 991779- 
EI, Staff believes that the following issues are appropriate for 
resolution at this November's fuel hearing: 

1. How should the Commission's decision in Docket .No. 
991779-E1, concerning the application of incentives to 
wholesale power sales, be implemented? 

2. What is the appropriate estimated benchmark level for 
calendar year 2001 for gains on non-separated wholesale 
energy sales eligible for a shareholder incentive 
pursuant to the Commission's decision in Docket No. 
991779-E1? 

As discussed at the meeting, Staff proposes the following 
. methodology to address the first issue: 

1. In its Actual/Estimated True-Up filing and 
testimony, each utility shall include an estimated 
value of gains on eligible non-separated wholesale 
energy sales for the current calendar year (2000) 
based on actual and estimated 

X%%kPUSUC SERVlCE COMMISSION 
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2. In its Projection filing, each utility shall 
include a forecasted value of gains on eligible 
non-separated wholesale energy sales for the next 
calendar year (2001)  ; 

3 .  Each utility shall compare its forecasted value of 
gains from eligible sales for the. next, calendar 
year (2001) to an estimated three-year .moving 
average of such gains. This estimated three-year 
moving average, or estimated benchmark, will be 
based on actual gains from eligible sales for each 
of the previous two calendar years (1998 and 1999) 
and the estimated gains from eligible sales for the 
current calendar year (2000). This comparison will 
be one of numerous inputs that each utility will 
use to calculate its levelized fuel cost recovery 
factor for the next calendar year (2001); 

4 .  In its April True-Up filing in the next calendar 
year (2001), each utility shall indicate its actual 
gains on eligible non-separated wholesale energy 
sales for the previous calendar year (2000). Each 
utility will then re-calculate its three-year 
moving average based on the actual gains from 
eligible sales for each of the previous three years 
(1998, 1999, and 2 0 0 0 )  to establish an actual 
benchmark. 

5. Each utility shall record its actual gains from 
eligible non-separated wholesale energy sales on 
its Schedule A-6 filed monthly with the Commission. 
When these actual gains are equal to or less than 
the utility's actual benchmark, the utility shall 
credit 100 percent of these gains to its ratepayers 
through its fuel and purchased power cost recovery 
clause (fuel clause). When these actual gains are 
greater than the utility's actual benchmark, the 
utility shall credit 80 percent of the gains above 
the benchmark to its ratepayers through its fuel 
clause. The utility shall credit the remaining 20 
percent to its shareholders; 

6. Each utility shall reflect any differences between 
its actual and forecasted gains from eligible sales 
through its monthly true-up calculations in 
Schedule A-2; 
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7 .  The first estimated benchmark for gains on eligible 
non-separated wholesale energy sales shall be 
established at the November 2000 fuel hearing for 
purposes of calculating a levelized fuel cost 
recovery factor for 2001. The shareholder 
incentive shall apply to actual gains on eligible 
sales made over the actual benchmark for 2001. On 
a going-forward basis, the difference between 
actual and forecasted gains on eligible sales shall 
be "trued-up'' at each fuel hearing. 

For illustrative purposes, this methodology, using hypothetical 
data, is presented in table form in the attached document. 

If have any questions or comments concerning Staff's proposal, 
please contact Todd Bohrmann at (850) 413-6445 or Cochran Keating 
at (850) 413-6193. 

WCR 
Attachment 
cc: Division of Regulatory Oversight 

i: 000001m6.wck 
Division of Economic Regulation 
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Proposed Shareholder Incentive Implementation Methodology 
Hypothetical Example 

Part I 
NOV ' 0 0  

Part I1 
Apr '01 

Part I11 
Nov '01 

Part IV 
Apr '02 

A 1998 Actual Gains 
B 1999 Actual Gains * 
C 2000 Actual/Estimated 

Gains 
D 2001 Forecasted Benchmark 
E 2001 Forecasted Gains * 
F 2001 Forecasted Ratepayer 
Credit 

G 2000 Actual Gains 
H 2001 Actual Benchmark 

I 2001 Actual/Estimated 
Gains * 

J 2001 Actual/Estimated 
True-Up 

K 2002 Forecasted Benchmark 
L 2001. Estimated Ratepayer 

Credit 

M 2001 Actual Gains 
N 2001 Final True-up 
0 2001 Actual Ratepayer 

P ,2002 Actual Benchmark 
Credit 

$100.00 
$110.00 
$120.00 

$110.00 (A+B+C) /3 
$130.00 
$126.00 D+ ( (E-D) *.a) 

$75.00 
$95.00 (A+B+G) /3 

$128.00 

($4.60) L- F 

$104.33 (B+G+I) /3 
$121.40 H+( (I-H)*.8) 

$140.00 
- $9.60 0-1 

$131.00 H+( (M-H)*.8) 

$108.33 (B+G+M) /3 

Note: Items marked with an asterisk ( * )  are values that 
would be found in a utility filing, but are hypothetical f o r  
this example. 



BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERV~CE COMMISSION 

I n  re: Fuel and purchased power DOCKET NO. 000001-E1 

generating performance incentive ISSUED: November 15, 2000 
factor. 

cost recovery clause and ORDER NO. PSC-00-2169-PHO-E1 

Pursuant to Notice and in accordance with Rule 2E-106 .209 ,  
Florida Administrative Code, a Prehearing Conference was held on 
November 3 ,  2000, in Tallahassee, Florida, before Commissioner Lila 
A. Jaber, as Prehearing Officer. 

APPEARANCES : 

JAMES A. MCGEE, ESQUIRE, Post Office BOX 14042,  St. 
Petersburg, Florida 33733-4042  

Power Corooration (FPCl.. 

MATTHEW M. CHILDS, ESQUIRE, Steel Hector & Davis LLP, 215 
South Monroe Street, Suite 601, Tallahassee, FL 3 2 3 0 1  
On behalf of ElpTida Power & Li- (FPL1.. 

NORMAN H. HORTON, JR., ESQUIRE, Messer, Caparello & Self, 
P.A., Post Office Box 1876,  Tallahassee, Florida 3 2 3 0 2 -  

of Flor-- (FPUC). 
1 8 7 6  

JEFFREY A. STONE, ESQUIRE, AND RUSSELL A. BADDERS, 
ESQUIRE, aeggs & Lane, 700  Blount Building, 3 West Garden 
Street, Post Office Box 12950,  Pensacola, Florida 32576-  
2950  
Dn behsllf of Gulf Power Co-. 

JAMES D. BEASLEY, ESQUIRE, Ausley & McMullen, Post Office 
Aox 391 ,  Tallahassee, Florida 32302 . 
VICKI GORDON K A U F W ,  ESQUIRE, McWhirter, Reeves, 
McGlothlin, Davidson, Decker, Kaufman, Arnold & Steen, 
P.A., 1 1 7  South Gadsden Street, Tallahassee, Florida 

Ln behalf of Florida Induetrial Power Users Grow 
0. FLORIDA PUBLIC SERvlCE COMMlSSlOf# 

3 2 3 0 1  

, 
- . - _  

_-  
- 
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i STEPHEN C. BURGESS, ESQUIRE, Deputy Publlc Counsel, $ 

Office of Public Counsel (OPC), c/o The F l o r i d a  
Legislature, 111 West Madison Street, Room A 1 2 .  
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1400 

f of the ULhcu~ of the %&e of Florid?. 

WM. COCHRAN KEATING I V ,  ESQUIRE, Florida Public Service 
Commission, 2540 shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, 
Florida 32399-0850 

f ( s m .  

I. 

Pursuant to Rule 28-106.211, Florida Administrative Code, this 
Order is issued to prevent delay and to promote the just, speedy, 
and inexpensive determination of all aspects of this case. 

statements, if any, shall not exceed ten minutes. 

11. 

The parties may make opening statements if they wish. Opening 

A s  part of the Commission's :continuing fuel and purchased 
power cost recovery clause and generating performance incentive 
factor proceedings, an administrative hearing is set for November 
20-22, 2000, to address the issues set forth in the body of this 
Prehearing Order. The parties have stipulated to several issues as 
shown in Section VI11 of this Order. Staff is prepared to present 
the panel with a recommendation at hearing for approval o€ the 
stipulated positions set forth herein and will be prepared to make 
a recommendation at hearing on all other issues. The Commission 
has the option to render a bench decision on any or all of the 
issues set forth herein. 

111. 3 

A .  Any information provided.pursuant to a discovery request 
for which proprietary confidential business infomation status is 
requested shall be treated by the Commission and the parties as 
confidential. The information shall be exempt from Section 
119.07(11, Florida Statutes, pending a formal ruling on such 
request by the Commiesion, or upon the return of the information to 
the person providing the information. If no determination of 

, I  
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confidentiality has been made and the information has not been used 
in the proceedinq, it shall be returned expeditiously to the person 
providing the information. If a determination of confidentiality 
has been made and the information was not entered into the record 
of the proceeding, it shall be returned to the pereon providing the 
information within the time periods set forth in Section 366.093. 
Florida Statutes. 

E. It is the policy of the Florida Public Service Commission 
that all Commission hearings be open to the public at all times. 
The Commission also recognizes its obligation pursuant to Section 
366.093, Florida Statutes, to protect proprietary confidential 
business information from disclosure outside the proceeding. 

1. Any party intending to utilize confidential documents at 
hearing for which no ruling has been made, must be prepared to 
present their justifications at hearing, so that a ruling can be 
made at hearing. 

2. In the event it becomes necessary to use confidential 
information during the hearing, the following procedures will be 
observed : 

a) Any party wishing to use any proprietary 
confidential business information, as that term is 
defined in Section 366.093, Florida Statutes, shall 
notify the Prehearing Officer and all parcies of 
record by the time of the Prehearing Conference, or 
if not known at that time, no later than seven (7) 
days prior to the beginning of the hearing. The 
notice shall include a procedure to assure that the 
confidential nature of the information is preserved 
as required by statute. 

b) Failure of any party to comply with 1) above shall 
be grounds to deny the party the opportunity to 
present evidence which ie proprietary confidential 
business information. 

c; When confidential infondition is used in the 
hearing, parties must have copies for  the 
Commissioners, necessary staff, and the Court 
Reporter, in envelopes clearly. marked with the 
nature of the contents. Any party wishing to 
examine the confidential material that is not 
subject to an order granting,contidentiality shall 

. 
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d) 

e) 

be provided a copy in the same fashion as provided 
to the Commissioners, subject to execution of any 
appropriate protective agreement with the owner of 
the material. 

Counsel and witnesses are cautioned to avoid 
verbalizing confidential information in such a way 
that would compromise the confidential information. 
Therefore, confidential information should be 
presented by written exhibit when reasonably 
possible to do so. 

At the conclusion of that.'portion of the hearing 
that involves confidential information, all copies 
of confidential exhibits shall be returned to the 
proffering party. If a confidential exhibit has 
been admitted into evidence, the copy provided to 
the Court Reporter shall be retained in the 
Division of Recorda and Reporting's confidential 
files. 

IV. 

Each party shall file a post-hearing statement of issues and 
positions. A summary of each position of no more than 50 words, 
set off with asterisks, shall L P  included in that statement. If a 
party's position has not changed since the issuance of the 
prehearing order, the post-hearing statement may simply restate the 
prehearing position; however, if the prehearing position is longer 
than 50 words, it must be reduced to no more than 50  words. If a 
party fails to file a post-hearing statement, that party shall have 
waived all issues and may be dismissed from the proceeding. 

Pursuant to Rule 28-106.215, Florida Administrative Code, a 
party's proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law, if any, 
statement of issues and positions, and brief, shall together total 
no more than 40 pages and shall be filed at the same time. 

V. 

Testimony of all witnesses to be 'sponsored by the parties has 
been prefiled. All testimony which haw been prefiled in this case 
will be inserted into the record as though read after the witness 
has taken the stand and affirmed the ,correctness of the testimony 
and associated exhibits. All testimony remains subject to 
appropriate objections. Each witnese will have the opportunity to 
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orally summarize his or her testimony at the time he or she takes 
the stand. Summaries of testimony, if any, will be limited to five 
minutes. Upon insertion of a witness' testimony, exhibits appended 
thereto may be marked. for identification. After all parties and 
Staff have had the opportunity to object and cross-examine, the 
exhibit may be moved into the record. All other exhibits may be 
similarly identified and entered into the record at the appropriate 
time during the hearing. 

witnesses are reminded that, on cross-examination, responses 
to questions calling for a simple yes or no answer shall be so 
answered first, after which the witness may explain his or her 
answer. 

The Commission frequently administers the testimonial oath to 
more than one witness at a time. Therefore, when a witness takes 
the stand to testify, the attorney calling the witness is directed 
to ask the witness to affirm whether he or she has been sworn. 

VI. QBPEB OF WITNESSES 

As a result of discussions at the prehearing conference, each 
witness whose name i s  preceded by an asterisk ( * )  has been excused 
from this hearing if no Commissioner assigned to this case seeks to 
cross-examine the particular witness. Parties shall be notified by 
Monday, November 13, 2000, as to whether any such witness shall be 
required to be present at hearing. The testimony of excused 
witnesses will be inserted into the record as though read, and all 
exhibits submitted with those witnesses' testimony shall be 

admitted into the record. - uUe2L.k 

airrcf 
*John Scardino, Jr. FPC 1, 3 ,  1 6 ,  18 

Karl H. Wieland 2-10, 12A-l2F, 17- 

*Rebecca J. McClintock FPC 14, 15 

*G. Yupp FPL 1, 2, 3 ,  4 ,  5, 6 ,  
7 ,  8 



. , .  
.,!. . 

; I .  

ORDER NO. PSC-00-2169-PHO-E1 
DOCKET NO. 000001-E1 
PAGE 6 

*R. L. Wade 

K. M. Dubin 

*R. Silva 

*George M. Bachman 

*M. F. Oaks 
T. A .  Davis 

*J. R. Douglas 
*M. W. Howell 

J. Denise Jordan 

FPL 

FPL 

FPL 

FPUC 

GULF 
GULF 

GULF 
GULF 

TECO 

TECO 
TECO 
TECO 

1, 2 ,  3, 4 ,  5. 6 ,  
7, 8, Ild 

1, 2 ,  3, 4 ,  5. 6, 
7 ,  8, 9, 10, 11.3- 
IlC, 16, 17, 18. 
19, 20, 21 
14, 15 

1, 2 ,  3, 4 ,  5, 6, 
7, 8 

1, 2 ,  4 

1, 2 ,  3, 4 ,  5, 6, 
7, 8, 9, 10, 16, 
17, 18, 19, 20. 21 
14, 15 
1, 2, 4, 9, 10, 16 ,  
17, 19 
1, 2 ,  3, 4 ,  5, 6, 
7, 8, 9, io, 13e, 
13f, 16, 17, 18, 
19, 20, 21 
4, 14, 15 

2 ,  4, 10 

13a, 13b, 13c, 13d 

*Brian S. Buckley 
*W. L. Brown 
*Rod Burkhardt 

VII. W I C  P O S I ~  

FPC: None necessary. 

F E L L  None necessary. 

P m  Florida Public Utilities Company has properly projected 
its costs and calculated its true-up amounts and 
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purchased power cost recovery factors. 
factors should be approved by the Commission. 

Those amounts ana  

GYUL It is the basic position of Gulf Power Company that the 
proposed fuel factors present the best estimate of Gulf's 
fuel expense for the period January 2001 through December 
2001 including the true-up calculations, GPIF and other 
adjustments allowed by the Commission. 

m The Commission should approve Tampa Electric's 
calculation of its fuel adjustment, capacity cost 
recovery and GPIF true-up and projection calculations, 
including the proposed fuel adjustment factor of 2.500 
cents per KWH before application of factors which adjust 
for variations in line~.losses; , ' I .  <..; the proposed capacity cost 
recovery factor of:'031'99 'cents per KWH before applyi,ig 
the l2CP and 1/13'th-''application methodology; a GPIF 
penalty of $1,151,236 and approval of the company's 
proposed GPIF targets and ranges for the forthcoming 
period. Tampa Electric..also requests approval of its 
proposed seasonal fuel factor program and the company's 
proposed implementation of the wholesale incentive 
benchmark mechanism and the calculated benchmark of 
$ 4 , 6 4 8 , 4 9 0  for calendar year 2001. 

FIPUG: None. 

QSi None. 

STBEe: Staff's positions are preliminary and based on materials 
filed by the parties and on discovery. The preliminary 
positions are offered to assist the parties in preparing 
for the hearing. Staff's final positions will be based 
upon all the evidence in the record and may differ from 
the preliminary positions. 
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VIII. LSSI JES AND POSIT= 

GENERIC F 

STIPULATED 
ISSUE 1 : What are the appropriate final fuel adjustment true-up 

amounts fo r  the period January, 1999 through December 
19997 

POSITION; 
FPC: $6.442.734 overrecovery 
FPL : $96,356,314 underrecovery 
FPUC-Fernandina Beach: $302,631 overrecovery 
FPUC-Marianna: $43,609 overrecovery 
GULF : $4,015,661 overrecovery 
TECO : $8,662,661 underrecovery 

f?zJUum 
USUE 2; What are the estinutod/actual fuol adjustment true-up 

amounts €or the period January through December 2000 
based upon seven months actual m d  five months revised 
est ima tea? 

POSITION: 
FPC: $61,660,541 underrecovery 
FPL: $518,005,376 underrecovery 
FPUC-Fernandina Beach: $314,792 overrecovery 
FPUC-Marianna: $104,942 overrecovery 
GULF : $8,668,391 underrecovery 
TECO : $34,058,660 underrecovery 

S T I P U L A W  
ISSUE 3; What are the appropriate total fuel adjustment true-up 

amounts to be collectod/rofunded during the period 
January, 2001 through Docamber, 20017 

POSITIONS: 
FPC : $55,217,807 underrecovery. If the Commission 

approvea the stigulatsd position in Issue 12D, 
Florida Power should collect $27,608,904 
during calendar year 2001. 

FPL : $518,005,376 underrecovery. If the Commission 
approves the stipulated position in Issue 11A, 
FPL should collect $259,002,688 during 
calendar year 2001. 
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FPUC-Fernandina Beach: $617,423. overrecovery to 5e 

FPUC-Marianna: $148,551 overrecovery to be 

GULF : $4,652,730 underrecovery to be collected. 
TECO : $42.721.321 underrecovery to be collected. 

*This issue was stipulated at the prehearing conference. 
A s  noted in the Section XI, "Pending Motions", FIPUG 
subsequently filed a Motion to Amend Prehearing Position 
on Issue 11A. The resolution of Issue liA, if different 
than the position shown as Stipulated for Issue 11A, will 
have a fall-out effect on the amounts in this issue. 
This issue remains shown as stipulated pending resoliltion 
of FIPUG's motion. 

refunded. 

refunded. 

E@Yg.& What are the appropriata lavalirad fuel cost recovery 
factore for the period J.nu8ry. 2001 through December, 
20011 

POSITIONS i 

I?.P.!L 

E&i 

mL?.€i 

.@&EL 

x.E!x?i 

FIPUG: 

QE%; 

STAFF: 

2.521 cents per kWh (adjusted for jurisdictional losses), 
based on FPC's 50% true-up recovery proposal under Issue 
3 above. (Wieland) 

2.925 cents/kwh is the levelized recovery charge to be 
collected during the period January, 2001 through 
December, 2001. (Dubin) 

Marianna: 2.204 cente/kwh 
Fernandina Beach: 1.875 cente/kwh 

1.820t/KWH. (Oaks, Howell, Davis) 

The appropriate factor is 2.500 cents per KWH before the 
normal application of factors that adjust for variations 
in line losses. (Brown, Buckley, Burkhardt, and Jordan) 

No position. 

Accept staff's position. 

FPC : 2.520 cents per kwh 
FPL: 2.925 cents per kWh 
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FPUC-Marianna: 2.204 cents per kwh. 
FPUC-Fernandina Beach: 1.875 cents per kWh. 
GULF : 1.820 cents per kWh. 
TECO : 2.500 cents,per kWh. 

. .  

*This issue is not disputed. However, the resolution of 
Issue 10 may have a fallout effect on the factors set 
forth in this issue. Therefore, this issue is not shown 
as stipulated. 

STIPULATED 
ISSUE 5; What ehould be the effective date of the new fuel 

adjustment charge and capacity cost recovery charge for 
billing purpoaea? 

POSITIQKi 
The new factors should be effective beginning with the 
first billing cycle for January, 2001, and thereafter 
through the last billing cycle for December, 2001. The 
first billing cycle may start before January 1, 2001, and 
the last billing cycle may end after December 31, 2001, 
so long as each customer is billed for twelve months 
regardless of when the factors became effective. 

STIPVLATEI) 
B S U E  6: What are the appropriate fuel recovery line loee 

multipliers to be uaed in calculating the fuel cost 
recovery factors charged to each rate claes? 

POSITIONi 
FPC : 

Delivery Line Loss 
GL-1 M u l w  

A .  Transmission 0,9800 
B. Distribution Primary 0.9900 
C. Distribution Secondary 1.0000 
D. Lighting Service 1 . o o o o  

FPL: See Issue 7. 

FPUC: v 
All Rate Schedules 

Marianna 
All Rate Schedules 

1.0000 

1.0000 
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GULF : See table below: 

Line Loee 

*The multiplier applicable to customeri 
taking service under Rate Schedule SBS 
is determined as follows: customers 
with a Contract Demand in the range of 
100 to 499 KW will use the recovery 
factor applicable to Rate Schedule GSD, 
customers with a Contract Demand in the 
range of 500 to 7,499 KW will use the 
recovery factor applicable to Rate 
Schedule LP; and customers with a 
Contract Demand over 7,499 KW will use 
the recovery factor applicable to Rate 
Schedule PX.  

TECO : Graslp 
Group A 1.0035 
Group A 1  n/a* 
Group B 1.0009 
Group C 0.9792 

*Group A 1  is based on Group A, 152 of On-Peak and 8 5 %  of 
Off -Peak. 
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ISSUE 7 i What are the apprgpriate Fuel Cost Recovery Factors f o r  
each rate class adjusted f o r  line losses? 

POSIT IONS: 

Factors (cents/km 
Delivery - 

iaQul2- - ! 2 IeS& - Qff-PQak 

A. Transmission 2.475 3.388 2.064 
B. Distribution Primary 2.500 3.423 2.085 
C. Distribution Secondary 2.525 3.451 2.106 
D. Lighting Service 2.358 
(Wieland) 

FPL: 
Rate 
Class 

A 

A - l *  

B 

C 

D 

E 
A 

B 

Rate Schedule 

RS-l,GS-l,SL-2 

SL- 1, OL- 1, PL-1 

GSD-1 

GSLD-1 & CS-1 

GSLD-Z,CS-2,OS-Z 
& MET 

GSLD-3 & CS-3 
RST-1,GST-1 
On-Peak 
Off -Peak 

GSDT- 1, CILC- 
1 (G) 
On-Peak 
Off-peak 

Average 
Bactor 

2.925 

2.864 

2.925 

2.925 

2.925 

2.925 

3.213 
2.798 

3.213 
2.798 

FUel 
Recovery 
LOSS 

Kultiplier 

1.00198 

1.00198 

1.00191 

1.00077 

0.99503 

0.95800 

1.00198 
1.00198 

1.00191 
1,00191 

Fuel 
Recovery 
Factor 

2.931 

2.870 

2.930 

2.927 

2.910 

2.802 

3.219 
2.803 

3.219 
2.803 
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C 

D 

E 

F 

GSLDT-,l & CST-1 
On- Peak 
Off -Peak 

GSLDT-2 & CST-2 
On-Peak 
Off-peak 

GSLDT-3, CST- 

ISST-1 (T) 
3/CILC-1 (T) & 

On-Peak 
Off - Peak 

CILC-1 ( D  
ISST-1 (D) 
On-Peak 
Off -Peak 

3.213 1.00077 . 
2.798 1 ..00077 

3.213 0.99503 
2.798 0.99503 

3.213 0.95800 
2.798 ’ 0.95800 

& 

3.213 0.99431 
2.798 0.99431 

3.215 
2.800 

3.19’1 
2.784 

3.078 
2.680 

3.195 
2.702 

*WEIGHTED AVERAGE 16% ON-PEAK AND 84% OFF-PEAK 
( Dubi n) 

E!Xi  
Marianna: 

RS 
GS 
GSD 
GSLD 
OL, OL-2 
SL-1, SL-2 

Fernandina Beach: 
Rate 

- 
R S  
GS 
GSD 
OL 
SL, CSL 

3.859 cents/kWh 
3.845 cents/kWh 
3.472 cents/kWh 
3.317 cents/kWh 
2.413 cents/kWh 
2.421 cents/kWh 

lwu”L 
3.464 cents/kWh 
3.357 cents/kWh 
3.192 cente/kWh 
2.476 centa/kWh 
2.476 cente/kWh 
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GYI4F.l See table below: (Davis) 

Fuel Cost Factors C/Kunr 

Standard Time of Use 

R a t e  
Schedules* 

Group 
On-Peak Off-peak 

A RS, RSVP, GS, 1.842 2.361 1.622 
GSD, SBS, 

OSIII, OSIV 

B LP, SBS 1.786 2.289 1.572 

C PX, RTP, SBS 1.751 2.245 1.542 

D OSI, os11 1.808 N/A N/A 

'The recovery factor applicable to customers taking 
;ervice under Rate Schedule SBS is determined as 
iollows: customers with a Contract Demand in the range 
)f 100 to 499 KW will use the recovery factor applicable 
o Rate Schedule GSD; customers with a Contract Demand 
n the range of 500 to 7,499 KW will use the recovery 
actor applicable to Rate Schedule LP; and customers 
rith a Contract Demand over 7,499 KW will use the 
'ecovery factor applicable to Rate Schedule PX. 

Group A 

Group B 
Group C 
(Jordan) 

Group A 1  

Standard Qff-Peak 
2.509 3.494 2.080 
2.292 N/A N/A 
2.502 3.485 2.075 
2.448 , 3.410 2.030 

FIPUO: No position. 

PPLLr No position. 
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STAFF t 
FPC : (cent s/kWh) 

GrouD Voltaae Level S w r d  On-Peak Off -Peak 
Del i v e b  

A. 
B. 
C. 
3 . 

FPL: 
GTpldB 

A 

A- 1 

B 

C 

D 

E 

A 

D 

E 

Transmission 
Distribution Primary 
Distribution Secondary 
Lighting Service 

E a k  
Schedule 
RS-1, GS-1, 
s1-2 

SL-1, OL-1, 
PL1 

GSD- 1 

GSLD-1, CS-1 

GSLD-2, CS-2, 
OS-2, MET 

GSLD-3, CS-3 

RST-1, GST-1 
ON- PEAK 
OFF- PEAK 

Averaae 
Factor 

2.925 

2.864 

2.925 

2.925 

2.925 

2.925 

3 
2 

GSDT-1, CILC-l(G 
ON-PEAK 3 
OFF-PEAK 2 

213 
798 

213 
790 

GSLDT-1, CST-1 
ON-PEAK 3.213 
OFF-PEAK 2.798 

GSLDT-2, CST-2 
ON-PEAK 3.213 
OFF-PEAK 2.798 

GSLDT-3, CST-3, 

2.474 3.387 2.063 
2.499 3.421 2.084 
2.524 3.455 2.105 
2.358 

1.00198 

1.00198 

1.00191 

1.00077 

0.99503 

0.95800 

1.00198 
1.00198 

1.00191 
1.00191 

1.00077 
1.00077 

0.99503 
0.99503 

2.931 

2.870 

2.930 

2.921 

2.910 

2.802 

3.219 
2.803 

3.219 
2.803 

3.215 
2.800 

3.:97 
2.784 
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C I L C -  1 (T)  , ISST-1 (T) 
ON-PEAK 3 . 2 1 3  0.95800" 
OFF-PEAK 2 . 7 9 8  0 .95800 

F C I L C - 1  (D) , ISST-1 ( D )  
ON-PEAK 3 . 2 1 3  0 .99431  
OFF-PEAK 2 .798  0 .99431  

FPUC- Fernamdina Beach: 
I33Lc- 
RS 
GS 
GSD 
OL 
SL, CSL 

FPUC-Marianna : 
Pate :Sche&& 
RS 
GS 
GSD 
GSLD 
OL,  012-2 
S L l ,  S L - 2  

GULF : See t a b l e  below: 

Adiustment 
3.464 cents/kWh 
3.357 cente/kWh 
3 .192  cents/kWh 
2.476 centelkwh 
2 . 4 7 6  cents/kWh 

Adiustment 
3 . 8 5 9  cents/kWh 
3 .845  cents/kwh 
3.472 cents/kWh 
3.317 cente/kWh 
2 . 4 1 3  cents/kwh 
2 . 4 2 1  cente/kWh 

3 .078  
2 .680  

3 . 1 9 5  
2 .782  

Fual Cost Factor. C / m  

Rats Standard T h e  of Use 

On-P.rk Off -Peak  roup Schedules 

R S ,  GS, 1 .842  2 . 3 6 1  1 .622  
GSD, 

GSDT, SBS 
OSIII, OSIV 

LP, LPT, 1 .786  2 .289  1.572 
SBS 

PX, PXT, 1 . 7 5 1  2 .245  1 .542  
SBS, RTP 
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N/A 

*The recovery factor applicable to customers taking 
service under Rate Schedule+SBS is determined as 
follows: customers with a Contract Eemand in the 
range of 100 to 499 KW will use the recovery factor 
applicable to Rate Schedule,GSD/.,,customers with a 
Contract Demand in the range-of 500 to 7,499 KW will 
use the recovery factor applicable to Rate Schedule 
LP; and customers with a Contract Demand over 7 , 4 9 9  KW 
will use the recovery factor applicable to Rate 

TECO : Standard 
Group A 2.509 3.494 2.080 

Group B 2.502 3.485 2.075 
Group C 2.448 3.410 2.030 

Group A1 2.292 n/a n/a 

*This issue is not disputed. However, the resolution of Issue 
10 may have a fallout effect on the factors set forth in this 
issue. Therefore, this issue is not shown as stipulated. 

s x L E n u m  
W V E  E L  What is the appropriate rovonue tax factor to be applied 

in calculating each company’m lovolirod fuel factor for 
the projection period of January, 2001 through December, 
20017 

* 
PoSIT19K; 

FPC : 1.00072 
FPL: 1.01597 
FPUC-Fernandina Beach: 1.01597 
FPUC-Marianna: 1.00072 
GULF : 1.01597 
TECO : 1.00072 

=SUE 91 How ahould thm Coda8ion’8 d0CidOn as set forth by 
Order No. PSC-O0-1744-PM-PI, in Dockot No. 991779-EI. 
issued Saptamber 26, 2000, concoming tho application of 
incentivos to wholosalo powor 8al08, be hplomonted? 

EQszmaIS; 



ORDER NO. PSC-00-2169-PHO-E1 
DOCKET NO. 000001-E1 
PAGE 18 

Agree with staff position. (Wieland) 

FPL believes that the methodology for  implementing the 
application of incentives to wholesale power sales as 
proposed by Staff and described in Staff’s memorandum 
dated September 20, 2000 is appropriate. (Dubin) 

Gulf agrees with the method proposed by Commission Staff 
in its letter dated September 20, 2000. (Davis, Howell) 

Agree with staff memorandum. (Jordan) 

FIPUG filed a motion for reconsideration and protest on 
October 11, 2000. The order should not be implemented 
until these matters are resolved. 

Any incentive mechanism which creates the potential for 
a protected monopoly to generate additional earnings 
above the established ROE should also create the 
symmetrical potential that the monopoly could suffer an 
earnings reduction, in the event of subpar performance. 

The methodology set forth in Staff’s September 20, 2000, 
memorandum to the parties is an appropriate method for  
implementing Order No. PSC-00-1744-PAA-EI. The 
memorandum is attached hereto as Attachment A .  

USSUE 10r What is the appropriate estimated benchmark level f o r  
calendar year 2001 for gains on non-saparated wholesale 
energy sales eligible For a sharoholder incentive as set 
forth by Order No. PSC-00-1744-PM-Efr in Docket No. 
991779-E1 i8sued September 26, 2000, for each investor- 
owned electric utility? 

P O S I T I m  I 

EEI;L; For FPC, the estimated benchmark level is $11,061,127, 
which is the three-year rolling average annual gain on 
non-separated wholesale energy sales based on actual data 
for 1998 and 1999 and estimated data for 2000, subject to 
true-up in future proceedinge. (Wieland) 

$47,377,541, subject to adjustments in the April, 2001 
filing. (Dubin) I 

EELr 
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SiSHEr $830,000. (Davis, Howell) 

TECO: $4 , 6 4  8 , 4  9 0. (Jordan) 

FIPUar FIPUG filed a mot r reconsideration and protest on 
October 11, 2000. order should not be implemented 
until these matte 

QE€i Agree with FIPUG 

STAFFI Based on the methodology set forth in Staff‘s September 
20, 2000, memorandum to the parties, the appropriate 
estimated benchmark levels for calendar year 2001 are as 
follows : 

FPC: $11,061,127 

GULF : $830,000 
FPL: $ 4 7 , 3 7 7 , 5 4 1  

TECO : $4,648,490 

COMPANY-SPECIFIC 

Florida Power & Light Company 

STIPULATED 
xsmLuAL Wow should the C d m m i o a  authorize Florida Power & 

Light to collect its emtimated underrecovery 
balance projectad for December 31, 20007  

The Commission should authorize Florida Power & 
Light to collect its estimated underrecovery 
balance of $518,005,376 projected for December 31, 
2000, over a two-year period commencing calendar 
year 2001. 

‘This issue was stipulated at the prehearing 
conference. As noted in the Section XI, “Pending 
Motions”, FIPUG subsequently filed a Motion to 
Amend Prehearing ,Position on Issue 11A. This issue 
remains shown as stipulated pending resolution of 
FIPUG’s motion. 
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ISSUE llB: What is the approp latory treatment for 
Florida Power G imated underrecovery 
balance projected. 31, 2 0 0 0 1  

POSITIONS L 

FPL proposes to e remainder of the 
estimated/actual t ecovery in the fuel 
factor for the Ja through December 2002 
period. Additio poses to treat the 
unrecovered portion of. the. $518,005,376 as a base 
rate regulatory asset .in.,2001 end 2002, rather than 
the current practice. of Secovering the commercial 
paper rate of retunvthrouah the fuel clause. FPL 
beiieves that this':: ,.. , ( . , . . _ .  . treatment is appropriate. 
(Dubin) 4 * , , - . ,  . 

FIPUO: 

Q K i  

STAFF: 

Agr,?e with FPL position. 

Florida Power &' :.Light ; 'should classify the 
unrecovered portion,of,.its.estimated underrecovery 
balance of $518,005',376 ,'proj'ected for December 31, 
2000, as a regulatok,..aekiet.'for the two-year period 
commencing calendar.,.year :2001. 

. ,  , :. 
. ',,, , , ,  

ZSSUE 1l.G What is the appropriate regulatory treatment for 
the $212.5 million payment to aettla litigation 
between FPL m d  Okeelmta Cogen and Osceola Cogen 
as approved by the C d 8 8 i o n  in Order No. PSC-OO- 
1913-PM-E1, in Docket No. 000982-EI, issued 
October 19, 2 0 0 0 1  

. I  . 
The appropriate r  to'^ treatment was approved 
by the Commlssion.:in.,Order'No. PSC-00-1913-PAA-EI. 
Consistent with the $222.5 million 
payment should d as a base rate 
regulatory ass ember 31, 2001. 
Additionally, th ved that commencing 
January 1, 2002, nt payment would be 
recovered over ears a follows: 79% 
through the capa ; and 21% through the 
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during the five-year, term would earn interest at 
the commerci te rather than the overall 
rate of retur 

PIPUar No position. 

QEGL Accept staff pa 

STAFFi If Order No. PS , 913LPAA-E1 becomes final, this 
issue should be"withdram. If only the portion of 
Order No. PSC-,00-1913-PAA-EI addressing recovery of 
the settlement. 'a otested, this issue 
should be res ary, in this docket. 
If the issue r Power & Light should 
reflect the ' $  payment to settle 
litigation aa egulatory asset from 
January 1, 200 31, 2001. Further, 
Florida Power, :& begin collection of 
the settlement' pa n January 1, 2002 over a 
term of five years' as Tollows: 7 9  percent through 
the capacity clause; and 21 percent through the 
fuel clause. Ar&,.:unamortized amounts during the 
f ive-year term would. earn interest at the 
commercial pape ~,rat,e. rather than the higher 
overall rate of return. 

. . .  
, , .  , ,  
. .  Florida Power Corporation 
- ,  

STIPULATEO - Has Florida Powex' Corporation confirmed the 
validity of the ,mktZpdolopy u8.d to determine the 
equity component o ~ioctric mels Corporation's 
capital structur.'. calendar , .  year 1 9 9 8 1  

requirements 
treatment co 

equity component a' capital structure. 

€!QsLz= it of EFC's revenue 
utility-type regulatory 

,appropriateness of the 
used to determine the 

STIPULATED 
ILSSUE 128: Has Florida POW. ation properly calculated 

the market prico r coal purcha8.s from 
Pow011 Mountain? 
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POSITIONr 

STIPULATED - 
POSITIONI 

POSITIONI 

STIPULATED 

Yes. The, ion has been made in accordance 
with the markef':'pricing methodology approved by the 
Commission in Docket No. 860001-EI-G. 

Ham Florida' orporatior properly calculated 
the 1990 prico ..,:for W8terbOrne transportation 
service8 prov ,010ctric Fuels Corporation? 

Yes. The" ha5 been made in accordance . , .,,, . . 
with the mar)cet@ri:cing' methodology approved by the 
Commission in'Docket No. 930001-EI. 

. . .  
j 

I:, ' . , . . . I . '  . '  
'..? 4 I :  I , .  ,.,,, L i ,  ,Y!, :*;,:,,:, 

How ahould tha , Co"l8aion authorize Flctida Power 
Corporation to colloct ita estimated underrecovery 
balance projootod for Dacamber 31, 2 0 0 0 1  

The Commissi ld authorize Florlda Power 
Corporation to collect its estimated underrecovery 
balance projected for December 31, 2000, over a 
two-year period commencing calendar year 2001. The 
remainder of the estimated/actual true-up 
underrecovery ehoqld be included in the ongoing 
true-up balance. 

Should the 88ion approve Florida Power 
Corpor.tion'8 propo8.d regulatory treatment for its 
5 0  megawatt (MW) whole88le power  sale, commencing 
April I, 2OOlP 

Yes. This SO' wholesale power sale is a firm 
sale of whole capacity and energy with a 
duration longer than one year. The Commission 
stated in Orde . 97-0262-F0F-EII issued March 
11, 1997, in. 0 .  970001-E1, that firm 
wholesale sal ar or longer should be 
separated on erage basis. Consistent 
with Commission policy, Florida Power should 
separate the capital and O&M costs associated with 
this 50 MW from tho retail rate base on a system 
average basis. However, because Florida Power wlll 
generate this SO MW at a higher than system average 
fuel cost, Florida Power should credit the fuel 
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clause an amount -equal to the incremental fuel 
costs of m 50  MW wholesale sale. 

Tampa Electric Company . ,  

STIPULATED 
xsszaah What i8 th at. 1999 benchmark price for 

coal Tampa "Company purchased from ita 

POSITIONl 

STIPULATED 
223aLum 

POSITIONr 

Has Tampa El 

Q8tliff C0.l 
price? 

Yes. Tampa Electric Company's actual costs are 
below the benchmark as calculated by both Staff and 
the company; t ore, this issue is moot. 

any adequately justified MY 
with tho purchase of coal from 

m y  t h t  excood tho 1999 benchmark 

What is the appropriato 1999 waterborne coal 
transportation bonchmrrk price for  transportation 
services providod by affiliate. of Tampa Electric 
Company? 

$zs.as/ton 

Has Tampa Electric Company adequately justified any 
costs as8ociated with tran8portation services 
provided by aftiliatom of Tampa Electric Company 
that oxcoed tho 1999 ratarborno tranmportation 
benchmark ~rico? - 
Yes. Tampa Ele. actual costs are 
below the be by both Staff and 
the company; there ssue is moot. 

Should tho vo Tampa Electric's 
request to imploion ental pilot program 
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that offers optiona -differentiated fuel 
factors for cust interruptible rate 
schedules? 

, 
:,. . .:,.. . ,.. 

Yes, for the reasons.: stated and in the manner 
described in the prepared direct testimony of Tampa 
Electric witness J. Denise Jordan. (Jordan) 

i ".A, . , . .  ,. . 

No position at this time. 
. .  
.,,4. 
,C""! Yes. . ... 
.... . 

If the Commimmion a a Electric's request 
to i m p l a n t  an .xp lot program in Issue 
13E, what are t meamonal fuel and 
purchamed power factors by rate 
schedule for JMU rough December, 2 0 0 1 1  

IS-1, IS-3, SBI-1, SBI-3 

€ s s m i u h  
to inplament an urpar$kuxtal .., ,,_* ,.,, <.,... 1,, , 

pilot program in ~ s s u e  
13E, what im the 8ppropri~te regulatory treatment 
of any revenue di n t h l  'that may occur during 
the pilot p r o g r i l  

POSITIONSr 
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normal true-up process. (Jordan) 

STAFF: The Commission should, not allow Tampa Electric at 

up process. 

2002 fuel hearing, r the general body of 
the pilot program and 

ratepayers commencing January 1, 2003. Any amounts 
accrued aa a result of a revenue shortfall during 
the two-year pilot would earn interest at the 
commercial paper rate .  

. .  

STIPULATED 
=SUE What ita the appropriate Glumration Performance Incentive 

Factor (QPIF) reward or prP.lty tor performance achieved 
during the period of January, 1999 through December, 
19991 

POSITION; 
FPC : $2,183,063 reward 
FPL: $6,973,751 reward 
GULF : $183,842 reward 

STI  PULATD 
ISSUE 1 5 :  What should the QPIF targat / rmgo~  be for the period of 

January 2001 through December 20011 

POSITIONr See Attachment B. 



c 

ORDER NO. PSC-00-2169-PHO-E1 
DOCKET NO. 000001-E1 
PAGE 2 6  

GENERIC CAPACITY COST RECO 

STIPULATm 
ISSUE 16: What are the appropriate pacity cost recovery 

true-up amount for the uary, 1999 through 
December, 1 9 9 9 7  

POSITLPKr 
FPC : $4,419,766 underrecovery 
FPL : $16,458,284 overrecovery 
GULF : $884,622 overrecovery ' ' 

TECO : $94,943 underrecovery 

STIPULATEQ 
ISSUE 17 i What are the appropriate id/ac tual capacity cos t 

recovery true-up amoun IiO poriod January, 2000 
through December, 2000, ba8ed upon sevnn months 
actual costa and five month8 reviaad estimates? 

, .  

POSITION; .. 

FPC : $4,336,561 overrecovery 
FPL: $42,411,275 overrecovery 
GULF: $331,059 underrecovery 
TECO : $2,072,182 overrecovery 

STIPULATED 
ISSUE 18 : What are the appropriate total capacity cost recovery 

true-up amounts to be collected/tefunded during the 
period January, 2001 through Docombor, 20017 

POSITIONI 
FPC: $143,205 underrecovery 
FPL : $58,869,559 overrecovery 
GULF : $553,563 overrecovery 
TECO : $1,977,239 overrecovery 

=What I are the appropriat.,.,projected net purchased power 
capacity cost rscovery ?iino&its :'to be included in the 
recovery factor for tho': . Reriod , .  January, 2001 through 
December, 2 0 0 1 1  .: ;, ,.,.?, ., ,i. 

>l . ..,', . . 
,' 
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POSITION: 
FPC: . $325,662,492 
FPL : $427,597,309 . . ~  

GULF : $17,867,016 
TECO : $34,032,212 

STIPULATED 
" 20 ictional separati n : What are the appropri 

factors to be applied to ne' the capacity cost8 to 
be recovered during tho ary, 2001 through 
December, 20017 

POSITIONI 
FPC: Base - 97.2 

FPL: 99.01014% 
GULF : 96.50747% 

Peaking - 85.056% 

TECO : 95.93944% 

STIPULA TED .' i. 
U S ~  a What are the projected Capkcity coat  recovery 

f o r  each rate claau for 'tho , .  'Roriod January, 2001 
through Decamber, 20013 -. . .  

. , . . .  

FPC : 

R a t e a m  
Residential 
General Service Non-demand 

@Primary voltage 
@Transmission Voltage 

General Service 100% Load Factor 
General Service Demand 

@Primary Voltage 
@Transmission Voltage 

@Primary Voltage 
@Transmission Voltage 

@Primary voltage 
@Transmission Voltage 

Curtailable 

Interruptible 

Lighting 

, .  - - 
1.108 
0.834 
0.826 
0.817 
0 . 5 9 8  
0.703 
0.695 
0.688 
0.621 
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FPL: 
Rate Class 

RS 1 
GS 1 
GSDl 
os2 
GSLD~/CS~ 
GSLD2 /CS2 
GS LD3 / CS 3 
CILCD/CILCG 
CILCT 
MET 
OL~/SLI/PL-~ 
SL2 

Fa&s3ml 

ISSTlD 
SSTlT 
SSTlD 

GULF : 
&&LmL%3 

RS, RST, RSVP 
GS, GST 
GSD, GSDT 
LP. LPT 
PX. PXT, RTP, SBS 
os-I, os-I1 
os-I11 
os - IV 

- 
- ,. . ._ 

. .  .... ' . .  1.86 ., .. . . 

- 
1.87 
1.86 
1.98 
1.96 
1.95 
1.92 - 
- . . .  

' "  , - - - 
.24 
.23 
.23 

t v  Recoverv 

.00527 

.00492 

.00305 
- 
- 

- 
.00191 
.00340 - 

&tor (Sum of D U  - 
.11 
.ll 
.11 

Recoverv F a c t a  
Lw&Rusw- * 

,208 
,206 
.160 
.140 
.120 
.025 
.126 
.058 

TECO : - rv F a c t a  
0 

RS . 00256  
GS, TS I 00237 
GSD, EV-X . ooiea 
GSLD, SBF ,00165 
IS-1, IS-3, SBI-1, SBI-3 .00015 
SL/OL .,00028 
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IX. W T  L u  
Witness 

Direct 
John Scardino, 
Jr . 
John Scardino, 
Jr . 
Karl H. Wieland 

FPC . (JS-1) 

Karl H. Wieland FPC 

Rebecca J. FPC 
McClintock 

Rebecca J. 
McClintock 

FPC 

G. Yupp FPL 

K. M. Dubin FPL 

(RJM-1) 

(RJM-2) 

(GY-1) 

("-1 & 
"-2) 

. , JI 

. ' .  ..: . ,  
. .  . . ,,. 

True -up Variance 
Ana 1 ys i s 

Schedules A1 through 
A1 3 

Forecast Assumptions 
(Parts A-C), and 

Recovery Factors 
(Part D) 
Schedules E l  through 
E10 and H1 
Standard Foriti GPIF 
S c h e d u l e s  
(Reward/Penalty, 
January-December 
1999) 
Standard Form GPIF 
S c h e d u l e s  
(Targets/Ranges, 
January-December 
2001) 
Appendix l/Fuel Cost 
Recovery Forecast 
Aeeumptions 

Appendix I and I1 
Fuel Cost Recovery 
and Capacity Cost 
Recovery - Final 
True-Up Calculation - January, 1999 
through December. 
1999 

Capacity cost 
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G. Yupp, K. M. FPL ' (KMD-5) 
Dubin, R. L. Wade 

K. M .  Dubin 

R. Silva 

R. Silva 

FPL 

FPL (RS-1) 

FPL (RS-2) 

George M. Bachman FPUC 

George M. Bachman FPUC 

,, . .  . .  
. , .. 

, .  . .  

(Gk-1) 

Appendix I and 
II/Fuel cost 
Recovery and 
Capacity Cost and 
R e c o v e r y  
Estimated/Actual 
True-up for January 
2000 through 
December 2060 
Appendix II/Fuel 
Cost Recovery E 
Schedules, Levelized 
Fuel Cost Recovery 
Factors for January 
2001 through 
December 2001 

Capacity Cost 
Recovery Factors f o r  

January, 2001 
through December. 
2001 

Appendix I11 / 

GPIF, Performance 
Results January 1999 
through December 
1999 
GPIF, Targets and 
Ranges, January 2001 
through December 
2001 
Schedules El, El-A, 
El-B, El-B1, E2, E7, 
and ~ 1 0  (Marianna 
Division) 
Schedules El, El-A, 

and E10 (Fernandina 
Beach Division) 

El-B, El-El, E2, E7, 
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witness 

M. F. Oaks Coal Suppliers 

December 1999 

M. F. Oaks ) .  Projected v s .  actual 

generated power- 
March 1991- December 
2001 

T. A .  Davis 

T. A. Davis 

T. A .  Davis 

J. R. Douglas 

J. R. Douglas 

M. W. Howell 

GULF 

GULF 

GULF 

GULF 

GULF 

GULF 

J. Denise Jordan TECO 

(TAD-1) Calculation of Final 
I True-Up for  Fuel and 

, I I  . . ,~l .. Capacity-January 
1439 - December 1999 V C .  .:.": 

. ',!; ,' ,,,,,, , . ,, , .. 
(TAD-2) Calculation of 

Estimated True-Up 
for Fue 1 and 
Capacity for 2000 

(TAD-3) Calculation of 
Projected Cost f o r  
Fuel and Capacity - 
January 2001 - 
December 2001 

(JRD-1) Gulf Power Company 
GPIF Results - 

December 1999 
January 1999 - 

(JRD-2) Gulf Power Company 
GPIF Targets -and 
Ranges - January 
2 0 Oi -December 2 0 0 1 

(MWH-1) Gulf Power Company 
Projected Purchased 
Power Contract 
Transactions - 

; ; ,  January 2 0 0 1 -  
' .  :. December 2001 

Fuel' Cost Recovery 
January 2000 - May 
2 0 0 0  
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Wi t nesg 

J. Denise Jordan 

J. Denise Jordan 

J. Denise Jordan 

TECO (JDJ-3) 

Brian S. Buckley 

Brian S. Buckley TECO (BSB-2) 

Rod Burkhardt 

Various 

TECO 

Staff Staff-1 

Fuel Ad j us t men t 
Projection January 
2000 - December 2000 

Recovery, January 
2000-December 2000 
Capacity cost 
Recovery, Projected 
January 2 0 0 1 -  
December 200: 
G e n e r a t i n g  
P e r f o r m a n c e  
Incentive Factor 
Results January 
1999-December 1999 

G e n e r a t i n g  
P e r f o r m a n c e  
Incentive Factor 
Estimated January 
2001-December 2001 
T r a n s p o r t a t i o n  
B e n c h m a r k  
Calculation- Coal 
B e n c h m a r k  
Calculation 
Staff's September 
20, 2000, memorandum 
to the parties 
c o n c e r n i n g  
implementation of 
the incentive 
mechanism approved 
by the Commission in 
Order No. PSC-OO- 

Capacity cost 

1744-PAA-EI. 

, . ,  , 
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Witness DescriDtia 
Various Staff Staff -2 Specified responses 

.,,. , 
;i. -,, , .. . , . tb Staff discbvery: 

Interrosatories 1-3 2. . ., , , ,.;. ,, - . ,  . 
and 11, and Document 
Request 3 from FPC; 

. , , . I .  . .  I Interrogatories 12- 
14 and Document 
Request 2 from FPL; 
Document Request 2 
f r o m  G u  1 f ; 
Interrogatories 16- 
17 and Document 
Requests 2 - 3  from 
TECO; Deposition of 

. . ,. :?  , . < , , ,  , .., , 

. .  

. ,  FPL witness Yupp 

Parties and Staff reserve the right to identify additional 
exhibits for the purpose of cross-examination. 

x. 
The parties have stipulated to several issues, as shown in 

Section V I 1 1  of this Order. In addition, the parties have 
stipulated to the following: 

FPL will be incurring costs beginning in 2001 necessary for 
the St. Lucie Spent Fuel Storage Project. However, FPL is in 
the process of exploring which alternative or alternatives to 
use to accomplish this project, All parties agree that FPL is 
not precluded from seeking recovery of costs associated with 
the St. Lucie Spent Fuel Storage Project at a later date. 
However, this does not and is not intended to prejudge the 
merits of the costs or the appropriate recovery mechanism. 

XI. W I N G  MOTIQKS 

The Florida Industrial Power Users Qroup'a Motion for Oral 
Argument and to Strike Testimony and Motion to Amend Prehearing 

Tampa Electric Company's for Confidential 
bit FS-1 is pending. 
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. .  ,:,. ...~ 

Based on the foregoing, it is:.' 

ORDERED by Commissioner Lila A. Jaber, as Prehearing Officer, 
t h a t  t h i s  Prehearing Order sha l ' l  govern the conduct of these 
proceedings as set forth above'.unless modified by the Commission. 

By ORDER of Commissioner Lila A.  Jaber as Prehearing Officer, 

,. . 
. ,  ,*;., . .,, '%., 

this Day of November , ' ,2000,. . ;  i 

( S E A L )  

WCK 

ssionefand Prehearinq Officer 
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NOTICE OF F-JJ, R E V m  

The Florida Public Service Commission is required by Section 
120.569(1), Florida Statutes, to notify parties of any 
administrative hearing or judicial review of Commission orders that 
is available under Sections 120.57 or 120.68, Florida Statutes, as 
well as the procedures and time limits that apply. This notice 
should not be construed to mean all requests for an administrative 
hearing or judicial review will be granted or result in the relief 
sought. 

Mediation may be available on a case-by-case basis. If 
mediation is conducted, it does not affect a substantially 
interested person's right to a hearing. 

Any party adversely affected'Cby ' 'this order, which is 
preliminary, procedural or intermediate- in..,nature, may request : (1) 
reconsideration within 10 days pureuant't0:Rule 25-22.0376, Florida 
Administrative Code, if issued by .a Prehearing Officer; (2) 
reconsideration within 15 days pursuant to Rule 25-22.060, Florida 
Administrative Code, if issued by the Commission; or ( 3 )  judicial 
review by the Florida Supreme Court, iri.:the case of an electric, 
gas or telephone utility, or the First District Court of Appeal, in 
t h e  case of a water or wastewater utility. A motion for 
reconsideration shall be filed with,,the' Director, Division of 
Records and Reporting, in the formprescribed by Rule 25-22.060, 
Florida Administrative Code. Judicial review of a preliminary, 
procedural or intermediate ruling or order is available if review 
of the final action will not provide an adequate remedy. Such 
review may be requested from the appropriate court, as described 
above, pursuant to Rule 9.100, Florida Rules of Appellate 
Procedure. 
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DATE: September 20, 2000 
TO: All Parties of Record 
FROM: Cochran Keating, Senior Attorney 

RE: 000001-E1 - Fuel and purchased power cost recovery clause 
Todd Bohrmann, Regulatory Analyst IV 

and generating performance incentive factor. 
V i a  Facsimile 

This memorandum is to confirm ineate the Commission 
Sta€f's proposed methodology, as presented at our September 12, 
2000, meeting with the parties, to imp ent the Comn?ission's 
recent decision in Docket No. 991779-EIyc ming the appropriate 
application of incentives to wholesale power sales. As stated at 
the meeting, although the Commission has not yet issued its final 
order in this docket, Staff believes that implementation of the 
Commission's decision remains an open issue which should be 
resolved at this November's fuel hearing. 

To implement the Commission's decieion in Docket No. 991779- 
EI, Staff believes that the following issues are appropriate for 
res3lution at this November's fuel hearing: 

I. How should the Commission's decision in Docket No. 
991779-EI, concerning the application of incentives to 
wholesale power sales, be implemented? 

2. What is the appropriate estimated benchmark level for 
calendar year 2001 for gains on non-separated wholesale 
energy sales elisible for a shareholder incentive _. 
pursuant to the commission's decision in Docket No. 
991779-E1? 

A s  discussed at the meeting, Staff proposes the following 

1. In its Actual/Estimated ,, filing and 
testimony, each utili an estimated 
value of gains on eli ed wholesale 
energy sales for the year (2000) 
based on actual and e 

methodology to address the first iss 
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2 .  In its Projection filing, each utility shall 
include a forecasted value.of gains on eligible 
non-separated wholesale 'sales for the next 
calendar year (2001) ; 

3 .  Each utility shall compa forecasted value of 
gains from eligible sales for the next calendar 
year (2001) to an estimated three-year moving 
average of such gains. This estimated three-year 
moving average, or estimated benchmark, will be 
based on actual gains from eligible sales for each 
of the previous two calendar years (1998 and 1999) 
and the estimated gains from eligible sales for the 
current calendar year (200,0),. This comparison will 
be one of numerous inputs. that each utility will 
use to calculate ita levelized fuel cost recovery 
factor for the next ca1endar"year (2001) ; 

4. In its April True-Up filing in the next calendar 
year (20011, each utility shall.indicate its actual 
gains on eligible non-separated wholesale energy 
sales for the previous calendar year (2000). Each 
utility will then re-calculate its three-year 
moving average based on the' actual gains from 
eligible sales for each of the previous three years 
(1998, 1999, and 2000) to establish an actual 
benchmark. 

5 .  Each utility shall record its actual gains from 
eligible non-separated wholesale energy sales on 
its Schedule A-6 filed monthly with the Commission. 
When these actual gains are equal to or less than 
the utility's actual benchmark, the utility shall 
credit 100 percent of these gains to its ratepayers 
through its fuel and purchased power cost recovery 
clause (fuel clause). When these actual gains are 
greater than the utility's actual benchmark, the 
utility shall credit 80 percent of the gains above 
the benchmark to its ratepayera through its fuel 
clause. The utility shall credit the remaining 20 
percent to its shareholdare 

6. Each utility shall reflect ifferences between 
its actual and forecasted ga from eligible sales 
through its monthly true-up calculations in 
Schedule A-2;  
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7 .  The first e-Zimated benchmark for gains on eligible 
non-separated wholesale energy sales shall be 
establlshed at the November 2000 fuel hearing for 
purposes of calculating a levelized fuel cost 
recovery factor for 2001. The shareholder 
incentive shall apply to actual gains on eligible 
sales made over the actual benchmark for 2001. On 
a going-forward basis, the& difference between 
actual and forecasted gains on eligible sales shall 
be "trued-up" at each fuel hearing. 

For illustrative purposes, this methodology, using hypothetical 
data, is presented in table form in the attached document. 

If have any questions or comments concerning Staff's proposal, 
please contact Todd Bohrmann at ( 8 5 0 )  413-6445 or Cochran Keating 
at (850) 413-6193. 

WCK 
Attachment 
cc: Division of Regulatory Oversight 

i: 000001m6.wck 
Division of Economic Regulation 

.., , . 
. .  ', .,. 

. , .  , 
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Proposed Shareholder Incentive Implementat ion Methodology 
Hypothetical Example 

Part I A 
Nov '00 B 

c 

D 
E 
F 

Part I1 G 
A p r  '01 H 

Part 111 I 
Nov '01 

J 

K 
L 

Part IV M 
A p r  '02 N 

0 

P 

, . . ,  

1998 Actual Gains 
1999 Actual Gains * 
2000 Actual/Estimated I 

Gains 
2001 Forecasted Bcnchmar (A+BtC) / 3  
2001 Forecasted Gains * 
Credit 

2000 Actual Gains * $ 7 5 . 0 0  
2001 Actual Benchmark , , $95.00 (A+B+G) / 3  

2001 Forecasted Ratepayer $ 1 2 6 . 0 0  I2-t ( (E-D) * . e )  

. .  

2001 Actual/Estimated 
Gains * 
2001 Actual/Estimated 
True-Up 
2002 Forecasted Benchmark 
2001 Estimated Ratepayer 
Credit 

2001 Actual Gains 
2001 Final True-up 
2001 Actual Ratepayer 
Credit 
2002 Actual Benchmark 

$ 1 2 8 . 0 0  

($4.60) L-F 

$104.33 (B+G+I) / 3  
r $ 1 2 1 . 4 0  H+( (I-H) * . e )  

$ 1 4 0 . 0 0  
$9.60 0-L 

$13  1 . 0 0  H+ ( (M-H) . 8 )  

$ 1 0 8 . 3 3  (B+G+M) /3 

Note: Items marked with an asterisk ( * )  are values that 
would be found in a utility filing, but are hypothetical for 
this example. 



I .PAGE 4 0  . .  , , ,  .,>.>,'?*' - 

QPIF REWN~S/PEN~TIES 
January 1 9 9 9  'to December 1 9 9 9  

Anclote 2 
crystal River 1 
crystal River 2 
Crystal River 3 
Crystal River 4 
Cryscal River 5 

9 4 . 9  9 2 . 1  9 , 9 1 2  9 , 9 3 4  
7 6 . 2  7 1 . 3  9 , 8 4 1  9 , 8 2 9  
8 5 . 2  9 0 . 9  9 . 7 6 4  9 , 6 8 0  
8 0 . 4  8 4 . 8  1 0 . 4 0 4  1 0 , 2 9 5  
9 0 . 2  9 4 . 1  9 , 3 9 5  9 , 4 8 3  
8 3 . 8  8 2 . 1  9 , 3 3 0  9 , 3 3 6  

Adiusted Adluated 

Fort Lauderdale 4 9 3 . 2  95.5 7 . 2 9 0  7 . 2 7 2  

Manatee 2 88.8 9 0 . 9  1 0 . 1 3 8  1 0 . 2 0 5  I 

Port Everiladee 4 96.0 9 1 . 4  9 1 8 3 6  9 . 8 3 9  I 

St. Lucie 1 8 3 . 6  8 6 . 4  1 0 , 8 7 9  1 0 , 8 0 4  I 

Smith 2 8 8 . 0  9 0 . 9  1 0 . 2 6 3  1 0 , 0 8 5  I 

I 
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GPIF REWARDS/PENALTIES 

January 1999 to December 1999 

Utility/ 
glant/UniC 

E!xL 
Big Bend 1 
Biq Bend 2 
si; Bend 3 

EBE i i k L i u s  

B E t v p l m  
Adjusted Adjusted 

AGual 
10.083 79.8 

82.2 81.1 10,247 9.983 
72.5 68.5 9.992 9,826 

77.4 10,230 
m 

Gannon 6 71.5 63.7 10,401 10.836 



uti 1 i ty/ 
p 1 ant /un  & 

Eix 
Anclote 1 
Anclote 2 
Bartow 3 
Crystal River 1 
Crystal River 2 
Crystal River 3 
Crystal River 4 
Crystal River 5 
Tiger Bay 

ELLLf 
Crist 6 
Crist 7 
Smith 1 
Smith 2 
Daniel 1 
Daniel 2 

EEL 
Cape Canaveral 1 
Cape Canaveral 2 
Ft Lauderdale 4 
Ft Lauderdale 5 
Manatee 1 
Manatee 2 
Martin 1 
Martin 2 
Martin 3 
Martin 4 
Port Everglades 3 
Port Evergladce 4 
Scherer 4 
St Lucie 1 
St Lucie 2 
Turkey Point 1 
Turkey Point 3 
Turkey Point 4 

OPIP TAROET8 

January 2001 t o  December 2001 

t u u u i S  

G”!i SEnff s . m u n Y m  
EBP E P T E U P P  
78.8 ,15.6 5.6 Agree 10,091 Agree 
92.a . o . o  7.2 Agree 10,003 Agree 
93.9 ’ , o . o  6.1 Agree 10,105 Agree 
76.4 ‘13.4 10.2 Agree 9.831 Agree 
84.2 0.0 15.8 Agree 9.788 Agree 
85.5 11.5 3 . 0  Agree 10,247 Agree 
95.4 0.0 4.6 Agree 9,389 Agree 
87.6 ’ 9.6 2.8 Agree 9,360 Agree 
78.7 15.3 6.0 Agree 7,190 Agree 

G”!i SEnff f”nYstntf 
EAE E p E H I l p E  
84.5 7.9 7.6 Agree 9,581 Agree 
94.5 0.0 5.5 Agree 9,721 Agree 
93.2 3.0 3.8’Agree 7,337 Agree 
93.2 3.0 ’ 3.8 Agree 7,336 Agree 
78.3 14.2 ’ 7.5 Agree 10,066 Agree 
90.1 0.8 , ,9.1 Agree 10,216 AgKee 
87.7 4.1 8.4 Agree 9,734 Agree 
90.9 0.0 9.1 Agree 9.876 Agree 
92.5 3.4 4.1 Agree 6,874 Agree 
93.1 1.1 5.9 Agree 6,797 Agree 
84.5 10.4 5.3 Agree 9,447 Agree 
93.7 0.0 6.3 Agree 9,632 Agree 
87.9 8.5 3.6 Agree 10,043 Agree 
85.7 8.5 5.8 Agree 10,817 Agrce 
85.7 8.5 5.8 Agree 10.821 Agree 
92.4 0.0 7.6 Agree 9,319 Agree 
86.0 8 . 5  5.8 Agree 11,121 Agree 
93.6 0.0 6.4 Agree 11,095 Agree 

G”!i SLAff 5 a u m J l Y S t s f f  
EAE p Q E E . u Q E  
78.1 17.8 4.1 Agree 10.502 Agree 
76.4 14.0 9.6 Agree 10,184 Agree 
88.7 8.8 2.5 Agree 10,113 Agree 
87.5 8.8 3.7 Agree 10.058 Agree 
74.5 16.4 ..’, 9.1 Agree 10,075 Agree 
75.2 16.2 . 8 . 6  Agree 9,872 Agree 

I . .  



Uti 1 i ty/ 
f2dnul& 

m 
B i g  Bend 1 
B i g  Bend 2 
Big Bend 3 
B i f  Bend  4 
Gannon 5 
Cannon 6 
Polk 1 

69.9 i 3 . 4  
77.9 5 . 8  
71.8 5 . 8  
83.9 3 . 8  
68.4 7 . 7  
6 7 . 1  7.7 
78.5 7 . 7  

DOC:;ET NO. 000001-E1 
.PAGE 4 3  

OPIF TAROETS 

January 2001 t o  December  2 0 0 1  

Epplnnrry sraff !aua.nY%t&f 
EBT P P E E U P E  

1 6 . 7  Agree 1 0 , 1 1 8  A g r e e  
1 6 . 3  Agree 9 , 8 9 5  Agree 
2 2 . 1  Agree 9 , 9 3 2  Aqrcr 
1 2 . 3  Agree 9 , 9 4 4  A g r e e  
2 3 . 9  Agree 1 0 , 7 6 2  A g r e e  
24.9  Agree 1 0 , 5 9 6  A g r e e  
1 3 . 8  Agree 1 0 . 1 4 6  Agree 
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VICKI GORDON KAUFMAN, Esquire, McWhirter Reeves 
McGlothlin Davidson Decker Kaufman Arnold & Steen, P.A., 
117 South Gadsden Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
On behalf of Florida Industrial Power Us ere Group 
(FIPUG) . 

WM. COCHRAN KEATING, IV, Esquire, Florida public Service 
Commission, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, 
Florida 32399-0850 
On behalf of the Commission Staff. 

ORDER APPROVING INCENT IVE MECHANISM FOR SPECIFIED NON-SEPARATED 
WHOLESALE POWER SALES BY INVESTOR-OWNED ELECTR IC UTILITIE S 

BY THE COMMISSION: 

By Order No. 12923, issued January 24, 1984, in Docket No. 
830001-EU-B, this Commission established a shareholder incentive 
mechanism to encourage investor-owned electric utilities (IOUs) to 
make economy energy sales. Prior to the issuance of Order No. 
12923, in 1984, the revenues from the sale of economy energy were 
considered in each IOU’s general rate proceeding. By Order No. 
12923, this Commission removedthese revenues from base rates, and 
credited the revenues through the Fuel and Purchased Power Cost 
Recovery Clause (fuel clause). At page 2 of Order No. 12923, we 
stated that [tlhe chief reason for this proposed treatment was to 
eliminate the potential for over- or under- recovery of revenues 
associated with economy energy sales ~ * Further, we authorized the 
IOUs to keep 20 percent of the gains on these salee as an incentive 
to ‘maximize the amount of economy sales and provide a net benefit 
to the ratepayer.’ In other words, the incentive was created, in 
part, to encourage the IOU8 to use their excess capacity to make 
economy sales, with 80 percent of the revenue from those sales 
being credited to the ratepayers. 

At our November 22-23, 1999, hearing in Docket No. 990001-E1, 
the panel heard arguments about whether this incentive mechanism ie 
still necessary or appropriate. By Order No. PSC-99-2512-FOF-EI, 
issued December 22, 1999, a proceeding was instituted so that the 
full Commieeion could hear this matter. Accordingly, an 
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evidentiary hearing was held on May 10, 2000, and post-hearing 
briefs were filed by the parties. 

- I. ADDroDriateness of Shareholder Incentives 

With respect to the question of whether the incentive 
mechanism approved in Order No. 12923 is still necessary and 
appropriate, FPC witness Wieland testified that we should continue 
our policy of providing shareholder incentives to encourage economy 
sales. Further, witness Wieland testified that becauee these sales 
have shifted to more competitive markets outside of the Florida 
Energy Broker Network (Broker or EBN), with new non-utility 
participants who retain 100% of the profits, our incentive policy 
should be updatedto reflect current market conditione- FPL argued 
in its brief that no disputed fact or factual showing has been 
identified that would sustain the burden of reversing our policy on 
incentives. Gulf witness Howell also testified that the current 
shareholder incentive should not be eliminated. Like FPC witness 
Wieland, witnesw Howell testified that because today's wholesale 
market is more competitive, utility economy sales are more 
difficult to achieve, thus increasing the importance of the 
incentive to encourage continued participation in the economy 
energymarket. Along with the other IOUs' witnesses, TECO witness 
L. Brown testified that we should adhere to our existing policy of 
providing shareholder incentives to encourage non-separated, non- 
firm wholesale sales.' Witness Brown testified that these 
incentives mayprovide greater benefits to ratepayers now thanwhen 
they were first adopted. 

In opposition to the IOUs, FIPUG argued in its brief that the 
current incentive mechanism should be eliminated. FIPUG asserted 
that we should not provide an additional incentive, beyond the 
current incentive of a guaranteed return and a captive customer 
base, for the IOUs to perform their required managerial duties. 
OPC witness Dismukes also supported elimination of the current 
incentive. Witness Dismukes testified that factors other than the 
incentive established in Order No. 12923 are serving as far 
stronger incentives for Florida's IOUs to maximize their wholesale 
sales. Further, witness Dismukes testified that the current 
incentive mechanism is one-sided in that it does not penalize IOU8 
for substandard performance and that it requires consumers to pay 
a second time for services for which they are already paying full 
costs. 

'By Order No. PSC-97-0262-FOF-EI, issued March 11, 1997, we 
defined non-separated wholesale power sales, stating that 
~hlistorically, the Commiseion has treated sales that are non- 

firm or lees than one year in duration as non-separated sales.' 
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The record shows that prior to the issuance of Order No. 
12923, the buying and selling of economy energy was a peripheral 
function of the system dispatcher. Most economy energy 
transactions were accomplished over the Broker. After meeting 
their requirements for firm load, the buying and selling utilities 
would enter quotes determined by decremental and incremental 
production costs. A computer program would then match buyers and 
sellers with the greatest cost savings. The transaction price was 
based on a split-the-savings methodology. Thus, the record 
demonstrates that the Broker functioned essentially as a simple 
cost-based market for short-term excess energy within Peninsular 
Florida. Buyers and sellers benefitted equally from each 
transaction made over the Broker due to the split-the-savings 
pricing methodology. 

The parties to this proceeding acknowledge that the wholesale 
market in Florida is more competitive today than when Order No. 
12923 was issued. Changes to the wholesale market were promptedin 
part by the Public Utilities Regulatory Policy Act; the Energy 
Policy Act of 1992; FERC Orders 588 and 889; and other federal and 
state regulatory policy initiatives. These regulatory changes have 
resulted in a more robust wholesale market in Florida, with 
additional buyers and sellers. The record demonstrates that this 
movement toward competition has prompted additional efforts on the 
part of Florida’s IOU8 to participate in the wholesale market ~ For 
example, IOUs have substantially augmented the trained staff in 
their marketing departments in recent years. Further, the buying 
and selling of energy has now become the primary function of a 
specific group of employees, rather than the peripheral function of 
the system dispatcher. 

The record shows that these increased efforts have produced 
results. As a whole, the data indicates that utilities have 
increased their presence in the wholesale market through the 
increased number of their non-separated wholesale transactions and 
the increased gains on those transactions in recent years. The 
record also shows that FPC, FPL, and TECO did not apply the 20 
percent shareholder incentive approved in Order No. 12923 to the 
majority of their non-separated sales made over the last s i x  years. 
FPC witness Wieland, FPL witness Stepenovitch, and TECO witness L. 
Brown indicated that their respective companies have interpreted 
the Order to provide an incentive only on their sales made under 
FERC Schedules C and X. Witness Stepenovitch indicated, however, 
that FPL recently discontinued Schedule X sales. As a result. FPC, 
FPL, and TECO received an incentive on sales associated with only 
2.l%, 0.2%. and 6.8% of the gains for 1999, respectively. Gulf 
interpreted Order No. 12923 more broadly and, according to witness 
Howell, applied the shareholder incentive to the gains for all of 
its non-firm, non-separated wholesale sales. 
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The record indicates that this increase in gains is the result 
of both the increased efforts to make sales and the ability to 
charge market-based rates. For example, FPL witness Stepenovitch 
testified that FPL had increased the number of its contracts from 
approximately 63 to over 400 in the past three years. FPL received 
authority from F’ERC to charge market-based rates for out-of-state 
sales in 1998, the same year in which there is a dramatic increase 
in the gains reported by FPL. The record also shows that FPC and 
Gulf have experienced dramatic increases in gains on non-separated 
wholesale sales since 1996. Since 1996, FPC has received authority 
from FERC to charge market-based rates for out-of-state sales, and 
Gulf, through Southern, has received authority from FERCto charge 
market-based rates for in-state and out-of-state sales. Only TECO 
has experienced a recent decline in gains. TECO witness L. Brown 
explained that the decline in its gains from 1998 to 1999 was due 
to the lack of capacity resulting from the explosion at its Gannon 
Unit 6 last April. TECO received authority to charge market-based 
rates for in-state and out-of-state sales in April 1999. 

OPC witness Dismukes testified that these changes to the 
wholesale market and other changes that have occurred in the 
electric industry since Order No. 12923 was issued in 1984 now 
provide the IOUs with the necessary incentives to make non- 
separated wholesale sales. According to witness Dismukes, e [nl o 
utility today can afford not to participate in the wholesale 
markets.’ Witness Dismukes testified that the IOUs face greater 
pressure today to keep their rates low due to the threat of 
customer loss resulting from retail competition and better options 
for self-generation. Witness Dismukes noted that making economy 
energy sales and crediting revenues from those sales to retail 
customers helps the IOUs to keep rates low. Further, witness 
Dismukes testified that today’s more competitive wholesale market 
provides the IOUs with greater opportunities and flexibility to 
make these sales. Therefore, OPC argues in its brief that the 
shareholder incentive established in Order No. 12923 is no longer 
necessary because there are other incentives driving the IOUs’ 
participation in the wholesale market. 

We agree that there are factors other than the 2 0  percent 
shareholder incentive that affect the IOUs’ participation in the 
wholesale market. Clearly, as the IOUs’ witnesses have readily 
admitted, they are not going to stop making economy energy sales if 
we eliminate the shareholder incentive approved in Order No. 12923. 
However, as all of the witnesses in this proceeding agreed, 
incentives may be used to prompt a positive response. The IOUs’ 
witnesses testified that a shareholder incentive is an effective 
tool to drive management to focus on, and devote resourcee to, 
sustaining or increasing the level of their economy energy sales 
and the level of gains on those sales, in turn creating benefits 
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for ratepayers. We agree. Thus, while there io no way to 
precisely measure the effect of a shareholder incentive on the 
IOUs' participation in the wholesale market, we find that a 
properly structured incentive will result in greater management 
efforts to increase economy energy sales, yielding gains on those 
sales to the benefit of ratepayers. 

Further, as noted above and discussed in part I1 of this 
Order, FPC, FPL, and TECO are engaged in a broad range of non- 
separated wholesale energy sales to which an incentive is not 
currently applied, although the gains from these sales, which 
account for over 90 percent of these 10th' total gains on non- 
separated sale0, are credited to ratepayers to reduce the costs 
that they would otherwise have to bear. Thus, we find that a 
properly structured incentive may achieve even greater benefits for 
ratepayers by encouraging the types of sales from which ratepayers 
are currently receiving the greatest benefit. In conclusion, we 
find that the incentive program established in Order No. 12923 
should not be eliminated, but should be modified to provide an 
appropriate incentive structure that reflects the changes in the 
wholesale market and the electric industry that have occurred since 
Order No. 12923 wae issued and maximizes the potential benefits to 
ratepayers accordingly. 

II. Structure for Shareholder Incentive 

Five proposals were presented in this proceeding for the 
appropriate structure of an incentive on non-separated wholesale 
power sales on a going-forward basis. These proposals are 
summarized as follows: 

1. FPC witness Wieland proposed a 20 percent 
shareholder incentive on the gains from all non- 
separated sales, including firm sales. Witness 
Wieland proposes to include such sales made under 
existing Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
(F'ERC) schedules and under new FERC schedules as . 
they are approved. 

FPL witness Dubin proposed a sliding scale approach 
to the shareholder incentive. The incentive would 
be' applied to the gains on all non-firm, non- 
separated sales, including such sales made under 
newly approved FERC schedules. Under this 
proposal, FPL' s shareholders would receive 20 
percent of the first $20 million of gains, 40 
percent of the next $20 million of gains, and 50 
percent of the gains over $40 million. Witness 
Dubin stated that the specific thresholds for the 

2. 
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sliding scale apply only to FPL and should be 
adjusted as appropriate for other IOUs. 

3. Gulf witness Howell proposed no change to its 
current incentive treatment. As noted above, Gulf 
currently applies the 20 percent shareholder 
incentive to all non-firm, non-separated sales, 
including market-priced sales. 

4. TECO witness L. Brown proposed a shareholder 
incentive on the gains from all non-firm, non- 
separated sales. Under TECO’ s proposal, the 
incentive varies based on whether the sale is an 
in-state or an out-of-state sale. TECO witness D. 
Brown proposed a 40 percent shareholder incentive 
for in-state sales, and a 2 0  percent incentive for 
out-of-state sales. 

5. As stated above, OPC argued that an incentive is 
not necessary or appropriate. However, as an 
alternative, OPC witness Dismukes proposed an 
incentive only on gains from sales made over the 
Broker. Witness Dismukes suggested a five year 
moving average to determine a benchmark based on 
past energy sales. Under this proposal, an IOU 
would only receive an incentive if the benchmark is 
exceeded by 25 percent. The proposal would 
penalize an IOU if its sales are 75 percent of the 
benchmark or less. 

As noted above, FIPUG argued that a shareholder incentive is not 
appropriate. Therefore, FIPUG did not offer a specific proposal 
for incentives. 

L Sales Elisible for Shareholder Incentive 

As stated above, FPC, FPL. and TECO have applied the incentive 
approved in Order .No. 12923 only to their sales under FERC 
Schedules C and X. As also noted above, these sales account for 
only 2.1%. 0.2%, and 6.0% of the total gains on non-separated 
wholesale sales in 1999 for FPC, FPL, and TECO, respectively. For 
example, the record shows that of the $59.2 million in gains earned 
by FPL on non-firm, non-separated wholesale energy sales, FPL 
received an incentive on sales that resulted in only $41,660 of 
those gains. FPL witness Stepenovitch testified that 75 to 80 
percent of the gains on FPL’s total non-separated wholesale energy 
sales for 1999 are attributed to market-based sales to which FPL 
does not currently apply a shareholder incentive. As the witnesses 
for these IOUs noted, the types of non-separated sales that did not 
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qualify for an incentive have the same beneficial effect that 
Schedule C and X sales have: they reduce the costs that the selling 
utility's retail customers would otherwise have to bear. 
Accordingly, we agree that a properly structured shareholder 
incentive should encourage utility management, on a going-forward 
basis, to focus on sustaining and increasing the gains from this 
broader range of non-separated wholesale sales to provide cost 
reduction benefits to Florida's ratepayers. 

FPC witness Wieland testified that both firm and non-firm, 
non-separated wholesale sales should be eligible for the 
shareholder incentive. He testified that in today's wholesale 
market it is difficult to differentiate between firm and non-firm 
wholesale sales because so many of these sales are made with 
various levels of firmness - * The record indicates that the recent 
grants of authority for the IOU8 to engage in market-based 
transactions have provided the IOUs with greater flexibility in 
structuring wholesale transactions. This flexibility has led to 
more tailored, negotiated contract terms that provide various 
levels of commitment from the seller. Thus, we agree with witness 
Wieland that in today's wholesale market, it will be very 
difficult, if not impossible, to prevent a shareholder incentive 
from being applied to sales with a certain degree of firmness. 

FPC witness Wieland and FPL witness Stepenovitch both 
testified that the shareholder incentive should apply to both 
current and future FERC-approved schedules, as long as the sales 
made under these schedules are non-separated sales. Over time, 
utilities may petition the F'ERC for changes to existing FERC 
schedules and for new schedules as the market changes. Thus, we 
agree with FPC witness Wieland that structuring an incentive based 
only on current F'ERC schedules may lead to unnecessary difficulties 
in our administration of the incentive in the future. 

All of the IOUs took the position that emergency sales should 
not be eligible for a shareholder incentive. As stated by FPC 
witness Wieland, emergency sales are 'made upon the request of the 
buyer, not marketed by the eeller.. Therefore, emergency sales are 
less under a seller's control than other types of non-separated 
wholesale sales. Because emergency sales are primarily determined 
by the buyer's need for power, rather than the potential for cost 
savings, we agree that emergency sales should not be eligible for 
a shareholder incentive. 

In summary, we find that to encourage the types of wholesale 
sales that are currently providing the greatest cost reduction 
benefit to Florida's retail ratepayers, a properly structured 
shareholder incentive should apply to all non-separated wholesale 
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sales, firm and non-firm, excluding emergency sales, made under 
current and future FERC-approved schedules. 

- B. Level of Shareholder Incentive 

As evidenced by the parties' various proposals, there are 
potentially an unending number of ways to devise an incentive. As 
FPC witness Wieland testified, there is no 'magic number' for an 
appropriate incentive level. In establishing an appropriate 
incentive structure, we believe that the incentive should not be 
designed to encourage behavior that is already occurring. 
Therefore, the incentive should be based on some type of threshold 
that represents the level of sales that would be expected to occur 
in the absence of an incentive. This threshold should be 
determined using past data on the gains on non-separated wholesale 
sales eligible for the incentive. As OPC witness Dismukes 
testified, any incentive provided for gains below this threshold 
will create the potential for a free rider effect, rewarding 
utilities for behavior which is taking place for reasons other than 
the incentive. We disagree with the IOUs' argument that an 
appropriate threshold cannot be determined because these sales are 
difficult to predict. The record shows that FPC, FPL, and TECO 
employ some type of sales standard in determining the compensation 
of marketing employees. Gulf has no marketing department, and 
Southern acts its agent for these sales. As TECO witness L. Erown 
testified, while it is difficult to establish these standards, it 
is nevertheless done. 

The evidence indicates that the yearly gains on these sales 
may be erratic due to changes in capacity, or other factors beyond 
a seller's control, such as the needs of buyers. We agree with OPC 
witness Dismukes that it is appropriate to use a moving average to 
determine the threshold to reduce the impact of anomalies in 
individual years. We find that a three year moving average is 
appropriate for two reasons. First, as noted above, F'ERC Orders 
8 8 8  and 889 have helped increase the volume of wholesale sales in 
the past three years. Second, Florida's two largest IOUs, FPL and 
FPC, received F'ERC approval for out-of-state market-based rates 
within the past three years. TECO also received appronl to make 
both in-state and out-of-state market-priced sales. As OPC witness 
Dismukes testified, and as evidenced by the IOUs' level of non- 
separated wholesale transactions and gains, these factors have 
substantially impacted the potential gains for the IOUs. These two 
factors have caused a systemic change in the wholesale market in 
Florida. 

As stated above, OPC witness Dismukes has proposed a five year 
moving average as part of its proposed reward/penalty methodology. 
We disagree that five years is an appropriate period. Including 
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years prior to FERC Orders 888 and 889 and the IOUs' authority to 
engage in market-based transactions fails to recognize the market 
changes caused by these events and would set the incentive 
threshold too low. Thus, we believe this approach would reward the 
IOUs for normal effort, rather than the superior effort that should 
be required to receive an incentive. 

Therefore, we find that a three year moving average of the 
gains on non-separated sales, firm and non-firm, excluding 
emergency sales, is an appropriate threshold for the shareholder 
incentive. All gains at or below this threshold shall be credited 
to the ratepayers. All gains above this threshold shall be split 
80%/20% between ratepayers and shareholders, respectively. We find 
that this incentive structure will allow ratepayers: (1) to 
continue to receive the substantial cost reduction benefits 
achieved through the IOUs' current level of non-separated sales; 
and (2) to benefit from a credit to the fuel clause of 80 percent 
of the gains on non-separated sales above the threshold. This 
incentive structure also minimizes the possibility that the IOUs 
could be rewarded for behavior that is already occurring. The IOUs 
are rewarded only for performing better than they performed, on 
average, over the previous three year period. To the extent an IOU 
surpasses the threshold, its threshold will increase for the next 
year. To the extent an IOU does not surpass the threshold, its 
shareholders will not receive as an incentive any portion of the 
gains that the IOU does achieve. 

As noted above, both FPC witness Wieland and Gulf witness 
Howell proposed a 20 percent shareholder incentive as an 
appropriate incentive level. As witness Wieland conceded, the 20 
percent figure is subjective in that there is no scientific basis 
used in selecting that percentage. However, we find that a 20 
percent incentive is consistent with Order No. 12923, is 
reasonable, and should provide utilities with an adequate 
incentive. 

We reject FIPUG and OPC's contention that any shareholder 
incentive structure should include a penalty for substandard 
performance, because imposing such a penalty would potentially 
counteract the incentive. We believe that the incentive approach 
described above is sufficient to encourage performance. As witness 
L. Brown testified and witness Dismukes conceded, a utility that 
does not make an adequate effort to make these sales is 
experiencing the opportunity cost of forgone profits. Further, we 
note that the shareholder incentive approved in Order No. 12923 did 
not include a penalty. Thus, including a penalty would represent 
a change in Commission policy which we believe has not been 
adequately justified. 
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We also reject FPL witness Eubin’s sliding scale approach. We 
are not persuaded that IOU shareholders should receive a higher 
percentage incentive as gains increase. Witness Dubin admitted 
that the levels of FPL’s sliding scale were subjective and not 
based on any analysis. Witness Dubin also testified that these 
levels should apply to FPL alone, and other levels should be 
developed for other IOUs. Thus, using a sliding scale approach 
places this Commission in the difficult position of developing the 
gain levels for the scale for each IOU without any record evidence 
to support such a determination. 

In addition, we reject TECO witness D. Brown’s proposal to 
apply a higher incentive to in-state sales. The record evidence 
shows that approximately 95 percent of TECO’s non-separated 
wholesale sales revenues are currently earned on in-state sales. 
Further, unlike FPL and FPC, TECO is authorized to make market- 
based sales in-state. Thus, providing a higher incentive on these 
sales would reward TECO for behavior that is already taking place. 
We are also concerned that providing a higher incentive on in-state 
sales could result in a perverse incentive for IOUs to make sales 
with the highest shareholder incentive, rather than the highest 
gain. Sales with the highest gain benefit the selling utility’s 
ratepayers the most by resulting in the highest credit to 
ratepayers. 

Finally, we reject the *deadband‘ approach proposed by OPC 
witness Dismukes. Witness Dismukes ’ approach calculates a 
benchmark based on a five-year moving average of sales’made on the 
Broker. Under this approach, the IOU would credit 100 percent of 
the gains to ratepayers when the current year’s sales fall between 
75 and 125 percent of this benchmark. If a current year’s sales 
exceed 125 percent of this benchmark, the IOU could retain for its 
shareholders up to 2 0  percent of those incremental gains. 
Conversely, if a current year’s sales do not reach 75 percent of 
this benchmark, the IOU would incur a penalty up to 20 percent of 
the shortfall. Witness Dismukes proposed this deadband approach in 
part to reduce the possibility that IOUs would be rewarded for 
actione beyond their control. As discueeed above,. we believe that 
a 20 percent incentive on gains above a three year moving average 
would address these concerns. Further, we are concerned that the 
deadband could potentially reduce the impact of a shareholder 
incentive in encouraging these sales. Thus, we find that this 
deadband approach is inappropriate. 

- C. Conclusion 

In conclusion, we approve the following as the appropriate 
structure for a shareholder incentive: 
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1. The incentive shall apply to the gains from all non- 
separated wholesale power sales, firm and non-firm, 
excluding emergency sales, made under current or future 
F’ERC-approved schedules. 

A three year moving average of gains on all non-separated 
wholesale power sales. firm and non-f inn, excluding 
emergency sales, shall be established each year as the 
threshold for application of the incentive. rill gains 
below this threshold shall be credited to the ratepayers. 
All gains above this threshold shall be split 805/205 
between ratepayers and shareholders, respectively. 

Notice r d  of 

2. 

2 
NOTICE is hereby given by the Florida Public Service 

Commission that the action discussed in this part only is 
preliminary in nature and will become final unless a person whose 
interests are substantially affected files a petition for a formal 
proceeding, pursuant to Rule 25-22.029, Florida Administrative 
Code. 

The record of this proceeding indicates that the IOUs 
calculate total gains differently for similar types of non- 
separated wholesale power sales. Because the IOUs sell short-term 
wholesale energy based upon their willingness and ability to sell 
at or above incremental costs, we believe that the IOU8 should 
measure the costs of these sales on an incremental basis. 
Accordingly, we find that each IOU shall measure the gain from its 
non-separated wholesale power sales by subtracting the sum of its 
incremental costs from the revenue received for each sale. 
Further, we find that the calculation of incremental costs for 
these sales shall include, but not be limited to: incremental fuel 
cost, incremental So2 emission allowance cost, incremental O&M 
cost, and separately-identified transmission or capacity charges. 

In addition, we find that the following regulatory.treatment 
for the revenues and expenses associated with each non-separated 
wholesale power sale is appropriate: 

1. Each IOU shall credit its fuel and purchased power cost 
recovery clause for an amount equal to the incremental 
fuel cost of generating the energy for each such sale; 

2. Except for FPC, each IOU shall credit its environmental 
cost recovery clause for an amount equal to the 
incremental SO2 emission allowance cost of generating the 
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energy for each such sale. FPC, because it does not have 
an environmental cost recovery clause, shall credit this 
cost to its fuel and purchased power cost recovery 
clause; 

3. Each IOU shall credit its operating revenues for an 
amount equal to the incremental operating and maintenance 
( O M )  
and 

December 22, 1999, in Docket No. 990001-E1, each IOU .-' ' 

amount equal to any transmission revenues or separately 
identifiable capacity revenues. 

cost of generating the energy for each such sale; 
I i.\ .. 

\ 
Q? \.-' 4 .  In accordance with Order No. PSC-99-2512-FOF-EI, issued 1 I 

-r\ .,L 
shall credit its capacity cost recovery clause for an . / 

If a person whose substantial interests are affected by our 
proposed action in this portion of the order timely files a 
protest, the issue shall be addressed as part of our Fuel and 
Purchased Power Cost Recovery proceedings. 

Iv. Conclusions of Law 

This Commisison is vested with jurisdiction over this matter 
through several provisions of Chapter 366, Florida Statutes, 
including Sections 366.04, 366.05, and 366.06, Florida Statutes. 

Based on the foregoing, it is 

ORDERED by the Florida Public Service Commission that the 
shareholder incentive mechanism approved in Order No. 12923, issued 
January 24, 1984, in Docket No. 830001-EU-B, is hereby modified.as 
met forth in parts I and I1 of this Order. It is further 

ORDERED that gains on non-separated wholesale power sales 
It is shall be calculated as set forth in part I11 of this Order. 

further 

ORDERED that the revenues and expenses associated with non- 
separated wholesale power sales shall be treated for regulatory 
purposes as set forth in part 111 of this Order. It ie further 
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ORDERED that the provisions of part 111 of this Order. issued 
as proposed agency action, shall become final and effective upon 
the issuance of a Consummating Order unless an appropriate 
petition, in the form provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida 
Administrative Code, is received by the Director, Division of 
Records and Reporting, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, 
Florida 32399-0850, by the close of business on the date set forth 
in the 'Notice of Further Proceedings' attached hereto. It i s  
further 

ORDERED that this Docket shall be closed after the time for 
filing an appeal of parts I and 11 has run or upon issuance of a 
Consummating Order on part 111, whichever occurs later. If a 
person whose substantial interests are affected by the Commission's 
proposed action in part 111 timely files a protest, the issue shall 
be addressed as part of the Commission's Fuel and Purchased Power 
Cost Recovery proceedings, and this Docket shall be closed after 
the time for filing an appeal on parte I and I1 has run. 

By ORDER of the Florida Public Service Commission this 2§Lh 
day of SeDtember, m. 

/e/ Blanca S. BavC 
BLANCA S. BAY , Director 
Division of Records and Reporting 

This is a facsimile copy. A signed 
copy of the order may be obtained by 
calling 1-850-413-6770. 

( S E A L )  

WCK 
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NOTICE OF FURTHE R PROCEEDINGS OR JUDICIAL R EVIEW 

The Florida Public Service Commission is required by Section 
120.569(1), Florida Statutes, to notify parties of any 
administrative hearing or judicial review of Commission orders that 
is available under Sections 120.57 or 120.68, Florida Statutes, as 
well as the procedures and time limits that apply. This notice 
should not be construedto mean all requests for an administrative 
hearing or judicial review will be granted or result in the relief 
sought. 

AB identified in the body of this order, our action in part 
111 of this order is preliminary in nature. Any person whose 
substantial interests are affected by the action proposed in part 
111 of this order may file a petition for a formal proceeding, in 
the form provided by Rule 28-106.201, Florida Administrative Code. 
This petition must be received by the Director, Division of Records 
and Reporting, at 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 
32399-0850, by the close of business on October 17. 2000. If such 
a petition is filed, mediation may be available on a case-by-case 
basis. If mediation is conducted, it does not affect a 
substantially interested person’s right to a hearing. In the 
absence of such a petition, part I11 of this order shall become 
effective and final upon the issuance of a Consummating Order. 

Any objection or protest filed in this docket before the 
issuance date of this order is considered abandoned unless it 
satisfies the foregoing conditions and is renewed within the 
specified protest period. 

Any party adversely affected by the Commission’s final action 
in parts I and I1 of this order may request: (1) reconeideration of 
the decision by filing a motion for reconsideration with the 
Director, Division of Records and Reporting within fifteen (15) 
days of the iseuance of this order in the form prescribed by Rule 
25-22.060, Florida Administrative Code; or (2) judicial review by 
the Florida Supreme Court in the case of an electric, gas or 
telephone utility or the First District Court of Appeal in the case 
of a water or wastewater utility by filing a notice of appeal with 
the Director, Division of Records and Reporting and filing a copy 
of the notice of appeal and the filing fee with the appropriate 
court. This filing must be completed within thirty (30) days after 
the issuance of this order, pursuant to Rule 9.110, Florida Rules 
of Appellate Procedure. The notice of appeal must be in the form 
specified in Rule 9.900(a). Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure. 
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CALCULATION OF ESTIMKTED TRUEYP 
TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 

ACNALESTIMATED FOR THE PERIOD: JANUARY 2001 THROUGH DECEMBER 2001 

SCHEWLE El-@ 

A. 1 FW Cor1 d Syrlm NcI Gencrah 35.049220 25.908.064 20.330.U24 26.941 440 27 442.M2 36.399.600 35.041.21*( ~6,391,718 32 64 i .m 30.r)i.255 21.296.671 2n.ni.248 ~ 1 0 . 6 5 8 . 8 2 ~  

2 FUN Cos1 01 Pmcr Sdd ''' 4,060,827 2.828.366 2,185,635 1.920.904 201.546 1.140.169 2.033.300 1.483.000 872,OW 1.710300 4.292.7M t.Ol0.700 71.136.551 

3 Fud C M  d Pur&scld P- 22.623.589 8.1R5.513 Ill.4ll.8Y( 21.199235 16.795132 16.405.170 l2.6l9.500 16 103.700 10.909.200 6.137.100 3,413,100 2.4883X 148.7Sl 8 0 7  
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48,719.864 51.978.5l8 43.793.084 15.212255 30.148271 30.898.746 508.882151 

(ri M ~ ~ ~ & u . w M ~ I  
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1.9Ro.011 
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TRANSACTIONS INCLUDING PEABODY 

7. O-l(Unm) R m r y  (15.802.795) [2.503.M2) (8.624.I'IR) (14.29010) (9.521.M2) 19,727,7171 (5,263,855) (7.730.557) 1.135.068 3.554.056 3.597.189 2.567.333 l61.394.440l 
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9. TOTAL ESllYAlED TRUE-UP FOR THE PERIOD (55,543,259) 
_n__._. 



FUEL AND PURCHASED POWER COST RECOVERY CLAUSE CALCULATION 
TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 

ACTUAUESTIMATED FOR THE PERIOD: JANUARY 2001 THROUGH DECEMBER 2001 

SCHEDULE E2 

ESTIMATED TOTAL 
.. Jan41 FebOl Mar41 Apr41 May41 Jun41 Jul41 Aug41 Sepal Ocl41 NOVO1 Dee41 PERIOD 

1. FudCosloiSyslem Nat Genwation 35.049.220 25,906,084 28.330.024 28.941.440 27.442.642 36399.600 35,041284 36.391718 32.849.664 30297.255 27.298.671 28.711.246 370,858,828 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2. Nudear Fuel Ol6posal 0 0 

3. Fuel Cast of Power Sold 4.660.627 2.828.368 2.765.635 1.928.904 201.546 1.140.789 2.033.300 1.463.000 872,600 1,718.300 1.292.700 1.010.700 22,136,667 
4. Fuel Cast of Purchased Power 22,823,589 8.185.643 10.471.638 21.799.335 18,795,332 16,405,170 12,619,530 16,103,700 10,909,200 6,737.100 3.413.100 2,468,300 146,751,807 

5. Demand and Non-Fuel Cas1 of Purchased Power 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

7. EneW Cost of Emnomy Purchases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

6. Payments lo Qualifying Fadlllles 814.083 477.237 865.771 640.934 623.903 851.322 958.400 950,100 911.WO W 0 . m  733.200 711.900 9.836.050 

8. Adluslment lo Fuel Cost (Ft MeadeNYau. Wheeling) . (4.145) (2.961) (3.158) (4.064) (4.381) (4.558) (4,000) (4.000) (4,000) (4.000) (4.000) (4,000) (47.267) 

68. .wj&lmmt I, F&I cost : i 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
g. 'TOTAL FUEL EL NET POWER TRANSACTIONS ;53,4Z,120 31.737.617 36,878,840 47,848,741 44.855.950 52,510,745 46,779.864 51,978,518 43,793,054 36,212,255 30,148,271 30,898,746 506,882,751 

10. Ju&dklional kwh Sold 1.604.027 1.202.892 1.209.453 1.232.701 1.303.234 1.580.541 1.649.041 1,826,561 1,875,400 1.498.370 1,294,124 1.266.997 17.253.340 

11. Jurisdidional% of Total Sales 0.8844065 0.9675662 0.9463076 0.9449931 0.9446218 0.9576239 0.9512248 0.9503877 0.9545846 0.9630512 0.9675462 0.9703569 . 
12 Jurisdictional Total Fuel & Net Poww Transactions 51.520.640 30.708.247 34.898.727 45.027.733 42.371.899 50.285.544 44,498,178 49.399.744 41.804.184 34.874256 29,169,845 29.980.871 484,539,866 

(Une 9 f Line 11) 

Uy Jurisdictional Loss Multiplier 1.00068 1.0OW6 1.00066 1.00066 1.00066 1.00066 1.00066 1.00086 1.00066 1.00066 1.00066 1.00066 

14. Juris&tknal Sales Adjusted for Line Losses 51,554,844 30.728.514 34.921.760 45,057,451 42.399.864 50.318.732 44.527.545 49.432.346 41.631.775 34.897.273 29,189.097 50.000.658 484,859,661 
Wum,12'Llne13) 

15. Peabody Coal Contract Buyout Amarkation 345.594 343.063 340.532 338.002 335.471 332.940 330,409 327.876 325.347 322.816 320.285 317.754 3.980.091 

46. Peabody Jurisdldianalized (Line 15 * Une 11) 333.293 331.936 327.248 319.410 316.893 318.831 314.293 311.611 310.571 310.888 309.691 308.335 3.808.200 

17. JURISD. TOTAL FUEL & NET PWR. TRANS. INCL. 51,887,937 31,060,450 35,244,008 45,378,881 42,716,767 50,637,583 44,641,838 49,743,959 42,142,346 35,208,161 29,498,988 30,308,993 488,667,861 
PEABODY (LINE 14,161 

18. Cost Per kwh Sold (CenwkWh) 3.2349 2.4024 2.9140 3.6811 3.2778 3.2036 2.7193 3.0562 2.5154 2.3496 2.2795 2.3550 2.8323 

79. T m u p  (C*"tokWh) 0 0.2210 0.2754 0.2944 0.2780 0.2629 0.2168 0.2078 0.2107 0.204s 0.2287 0.2648 0.2862 0.2443 

ZU. Total (CenwkWh) (Line 16+19) 3.4566 2.6778 3.2064 3.9591 3.5407 3.4206 2.9271 3.2889 2.7199 2.5785 2.5443 2.6212 3.0766 

21. Revsnue Tax Factor 1.wO72 1.MN)72 1.wO72 1.00072 1.00072 1.00072 1.00072 1.00072 1.wO72 1.wO72 1.wO72 1.00072 1.00072 

22. Remvery Faclor Adjusted for Taxes (Cenwkwh) 3.4593 2.6797 3.2107 3.9620 3.5432 3.4231 2.9292 3.2713 2.7219 2.5804' 2.5461 2.6231 3.0789 
(Exduding GPIF) 

23. GPIF Adjusled far Taxes (CenWkWh) (0.0080) (0.0074) (0.0079) (0.0078) (0.0074) (0.0081) (0.0058) (0.0059) (0.0057) (0.0084) (0.0074) (0.0074) (0.0068) 

24. TOTAL RECOVERY FACTOR (LINE 22+23) 3,4533 . 2.6723 32028 3.9542 3.5358 3.4170 2.9234 32654 2.7182 2.5740 2.5387 2.6157 3.0721 

25. RECOVERY FACTOR ROUNDED TO NEAREST 3.453 2.672 3.203 3.954 3.536 3.417 2.923 3.265 2.716 2.574 2.539 2.616 3.072 
0.001 CENTSlKWH 

"' Indudes Gains 
B a w l  on Jurisdictional Sales Only 



POWER SOLD 

ACTUAL FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 2001 THROUGH JUNE 2001 
TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 

SCHEDULE E6 
PAGE 1 OF 2 

14) (1) (2) 131 15) (61 (7) (8) (01 
MWH CENTSlKWH TOTAL I 

TYPE TOTAL WHEELED MWH (AI (E) FOR FUEL TOTAL 
& MWH FROMOTHER FROMOWN FUEL TOTAL ADJUSTMENT COST 

MONTH SOLD TO SCHEDULE SOLD SYSTEMS GENERATION COST COST (8)XRA) (8)XVBI 

ACTUAL 
Jsndl  

VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
HPP 
FMPA 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

ACTUAL 
F e b 4 l  

VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
HPP 
FMPA 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

ACTUAL 
M a r 4 1  

VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
HPP 
FMPA 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

ACTUAL 
Apr4 l  

VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
HPP 
FMPA 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

ACTUAL 
May41 

VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
HPP 
FMPA 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

ACTUAL 
Jundl 

VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
HPP 
FMPA 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

ECON. - ~ .  
JURISD. SCH. -D 
SEPARATED CONTRACT 
JURISD. SCH. -D 
JURISD. MKT. BASE 
JURISD. SCH. J 

ECON. 
JURISO. SCH. -D 
SEPARATED CONTRACT 
JURISD. SCH. -D 
JURISD. MKT. BASE 
JURISD. SCH. J 

ECON. 
JURISD. SCH. 0 
SEPARATED CONTRACT 
JURISD. SCH. -D 
JURISD. MKT. BASE 
JURISD. SCH. -J 

ECON. 
JURISD. SCH. -D 
SEPARATED CONTRACT 
JURISD. SCH. -0 
JURISD. MKT. BASE 
JURISD. SCH. J 

ECON. 
JURISD. SCH. -D 
SEPARATED CONTRACT 
JURISD. SCH. -D 
JURISD. MKT. BASE 
JURISD. SCH. -J 

ECON. 
JURISD. SCH. -D 
SEPARATED CONTRACT 
JURISD. SCH. 9 
JURISD. MKT. BASE 
JURISD. SCH. J 

n o  00 0.0 o onn n m  n on om ~~~ ~~~ 

3.Wl.O 50.3 2.841.7 2.710 2.710 78.088.31 79,888.31 
72.685.0 0.0 72.685.0 2.200 2.080 1.664.609.20 2.186.00275 

108.285.0 0.0 106.285.0 1.027 1.027 2.066.080.85 2.086.989.05 
18,225.0 0.0 16,225.0 5.646 5.648 1.028.849.57 1.028.949.57 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.OW 0.00 0.00 
202,186.0 50.3 202.136.7 2.405 2.853 4.860.627.03 5.361.030.58 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 0.00 0.00 
3.193.0 0.0 3.103.0 2.109 2.100 70.217.14 70.217.14 

47.085.0 0.0 47.065.0 2.442 2.007 1,149,167.85 1,410,663.30 
72.580.0 0.0 72.560.0 1.030 '1,930 1,400,845.45 1,400.845.45 
7.011.0 0.0 7,011.0 2.060 3.221 208.135.44 225.610.69 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 0.W 0.00 
128.848.0 0.0 128.848.0 2.178 2.303 2.828.365.88 3.107.545.56 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 0.00 0.00 
3.182.0 10.2 3.171.8 2.749 2.740 87.184.80 87.184.68 

87.575.0 0.0 67.575.0 2.448 3.044 1.852.681.55 2,058,972.20 
50.685.0 0.0 50.605.0 1.031 1.031 078.000.85 078.W0.65 
4.4220 0.0 4,422.0 1.510 2.740 66.767.88 121.161.03 

0.0 0.0 0 0  0.ow 0.ow 0.00 0.00 
125.874.0 10.2 125.863.8 2.213 2,578 2.785.635.17 3,244.318.87 

0.0 0.0 0.0 o m 0  0 . 0 ~  0.00 0.00 
3.212.0 4174 2.784.6 3.780 3.780 105,622.06 105.622.06 

71.440.0 0.0 71.440.0 2.511 3.218 1.703.014.50 2.288.607.55 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 0.00 0.00 

102.0 0.0 182.0 0.000 0.255 0.00 488.80 
75,702.0 417.4 75,374.6 2958 3.233 1.828.003.03 2436,503.08 

848.0 0.0 048.0 3.008 3.353 29,367.37 3i.784.n 

0.00 0.W 
3.084.0 131.7 2.0323 2.265 2265 66,407.04 66.407.04 
1,030.0 0.0 1.030.0 (1.494) (1.478) (26.826.80) (28,523.103 

0.00 0.00 
5.086.0 0.0 5.086.0 2.730 2970 163.885.41 <78.327.01 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 
~ 

0.00 0.00 
10.080.0 131.7 10.848.3 1.858 1.003 201.545.65 218.210.05 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.wo 0.w 0.04 
2.745.9 266.8 2.478.0 2346 2348 58,140.51 58.149.51 

31.617.0 0.0 31.617.0 3.173 3.400 1.003.208.42 1.1ffi.181.60 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.wo 0.000 0.W 0.00 

2.323.0 0.0 2.323.0 2.887 3.122 86.811.72 72.535.37 
276.0 0.0 276.0 4.M8 4.M5 12.819.11 12.818.11 

38.061.9 ' ' 266.8 36.685.0 3.109 3.406 1.140.788.76 1.240.665.58 

. .  . . 
~. 

.~ .. .. 
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POWER SOLD 

ESTIMATED FOR THE PERIOD JULY 2001 THROUGH DECEMBER 2001 
TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 

SCHEDULE E8 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

* 11) (2) 3) 8) 8 18) 
MWH TOTAL $ 

TOTAL WHEELED (0) FOR FUEL TOTAL 
MWH FROM OTHER ADJUSTMENT COST 

MONTH SOLD TO SCHEDULE SOLD SYSTEMS GENERATION COST COST (6)XVA) IW(7Bl 

ESTIMATED 
Julol 

VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
HPP 
FMPA 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

ESTIMATED 
A"g-01 

VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
HPP 
FMPA 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

ESTIMATED 
Sap01 

VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
HPP 
FMPA 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

ESTIMATED 
oc to1  

VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
HPP 
FMPA 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

ESTIMATED 
Nov-01 

VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
HPP 
FMPA 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

ESTIMATED 
h C - 0 1  

VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
HPP 
FMPA 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

Jan41 
THRU 
Dec-01 VARIOUS 

VARIOUS 
HPP 
FMPA 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
T O T S  

ECON. 
JURISD. SCH. -D 
SEPARATED CONTRACT 
JURISD. SCH. -0 
JURISD. MKT. BASE 
JURISD. SCH. J 

ECON. 
JURISD. SCH. -0 
SEPARATED CONTRACT 
JURISD. SCH. -0 
JURISD. MKT. BASE 
JURISD. SCH. J 

ECON. 
JURISD. SCH. -D 
SEPARATED CONTRACT 
JURISD. SCH. 0 
JURISD. MKT. BASE 
JURISD. SCH. -J 

ECON. 
JURISD. SCH. 0 
SEPARATED CONTRACT 
JURISD. SCH. 0 
JURISD. MKT. BASE 
JURISD. SCH. J 

ECON. 
JURISD. SCH. -0 
SEPARATED CONTRACT 
JURISD. SCH. 9 
JURISD. MKT. BASE 
JURISO. SCH. J 

ECON. 
JURISD. SCH. 9 
SEPARATED CONTRACT 
JURISD. SCH. -D 
JURISD. MKT. BASE 
JURISD. SCH. -J 

ECON. 
JURISD. SCH. -0 
SEPARATED CONTRACT 
JURISD. SCH. 0 
JURISD. MKT. BASE 
JURISD. SCH.J 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.OW 0.000 0.00 0.00 
814.0 0.0 614.0 2.410 2.410 14.8W.00 14.8W.W 

37.758.0 0.0 37.758.0 2.484 3.639 038,000.00 1.374.0W.00 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 0.00 0.00 

18.776.0 0.0 18,778.0 5.755 6.010 1,080.500.00 1,128.4W.W 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 0.00 0.00 

57.148.0 0.0 57.148.0 3.558 4.405 2.033.300.00 2.517.2W.00 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 0.00 0.00 
6.055.0 0.0 6.055.0 1.706 1.706 103.300.00 103.300.W 

37,758.0 0.0 37.758.0 2.404 3.849 041,800.00 1,377.800.00 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 0.00 0.W 

8,833.0 0.0 8.633.0 4.731 4.988 417.800.00 440.4W.00 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0 . m  0.000 0.00 0.00 

52.848.0 0.0 52.846.0 2.770 3.650 1.463.WO.00 1.921.500.00 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 0.00 0.00 
6.030.0 0.0 8.030.0 1.698 1.808 102.400.00 102.4W.00 

26.1W.O 0.0 26.100.0 2.418 3.573 831.200.00 832.800.00 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 0.W 0.00 

5.050.0 0.0 5,050.0 2.758 3.012 138.200.W 152.100.00 
0.0 0.0 00 0.000 0.000 0.00 0.00 

37.180.0 0.0 37.180.0 2.347 3.103 872.800.00 1.187,lW.W 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 0.00 0.00 
8.055.0 0.0 6.055.0 1.708 1.706 103.300.00 103.5w.00 

53.840.0 0.0 53.940.0 2.403 3.55% 1.296.300.00 1.810.2W.W 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 0.00 0.W ~~ ~~~ ~~~ 

11.784.0 0.0 11.784.0 2.709 2.084 318.700.W 548.7W.W 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 0.w 0.W 

71.759.0 0.0 71.750.0 2.305 3.304 1,718.300.00 2,371200.W 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.WO 0.OW 0.00 0.09 
5.072.0 0.0 5.072.0 1.680 1.680 1W.3W.00 lW.5w.W 

24.012.0 0.0 24.012.0 2.342 3.486 562.300.W 830.5CQ.W 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.OW 0.00 0.00 

23.248.0 0.0 23.248.0 2.710 2.885 630.100.00 080.400.W 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.OW 0.00 0.w 

53.232.0 2.428 3.061 1282.700.00 1,629200.00 . ..~ 53.232.0 0.0 

- ~ , . ~ ~  ~ 

... . ~ 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.OW 0.00 0.W 
5.005.0 0.0 5.085.0 1.888 1.688 101.2OO.W 101.2W.00 
2.157.0 0.0 2.157.0 2.304 3.450 40.7W.W 74.800.00 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.WO 0.OW 0.W 0.00 
34805.0 0.0 34.805.0 2.485 2.730 859.8W.W M8.CCQ.00 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0,000 0.OW 0.00 0.W 
42,757.0 0.0 42.757.0 2384 2.628 1.010.700.00 1.123.800.W 

. . . . . .  



PURCHASED POWER 
(EXCLUSIVE OF ECONOMY AND WALIFYING FACILITIES) 

TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 
ACTUAL FOR THE PERIOD: JANUARY 2001 THROUGH JUNE 2001 

SCHEDULED 
Page 1 of 2 

MWH MWH C E N T S M  

PURCHASED OTHER INTERRUP- FOR FUEL TOTAL 
SCHEDULE PURCHASED UTILITIES 

ACTUAL 
Jan41 

13.152,110,23 VARIOUS SCH. J 156.147.0 0.0 4,394.0 151.753.0 8.667 8.667 
HPP IPP 82.250.0 0.0 0.0 82.250.0 11.515 11.515 9,471.478.81 .. 
VARIOUS OTHER 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.033 0.00 
VARIOUS MKT BASED 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0,000 0.000 0.00 
TOTAL 238,307.0 0.0 4,394.0 234.003.0 0.668 9.688 2z,BupQ.O4 

ACTUAL 
Feb41 

VARIOUS SCH. J 80.269.0 0.0 0.0 80.260.0 5429 5.428 4.358178.78 
HPP IPP 56.435.0 0.0 0.0 50.435.0 6.550 8.550 3,827.484.84 
VARIOUS OTHER 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 0.00 
VARIOUS MKTSASED 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0,000 0.00 
TOTAL 138.704.0 0.0 0.0 138,704.0 5.902 5.802 8.185.643.42 

ACTUAL 
Mar41 

VARIOUS 
HPP 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

ACTUAL 
Apr41 

VARIOUS 
HPP 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

ACTUAL 
May41 

VARIOUS 
HPP 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

ACTUAL 
Jun4l 

VARIOUS 
HPP 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

SCH. J 118.293.0 0.0 594.2 117.688.8 5.518 5.516 6.492221.6D 
IPP 73.141.0 0.0 0.0 73.141.0 5.441 5.441 3.979.516.01 
OTHER 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.wo 0.00 
MKT BASED 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 0.00 

191,434.0 0.0 594.7. 190.839.8 5.487 5.487 10,471,837.61 

SCH. J 274.208.0 0.0 24.996.0 249.212.0 6.538 8.536 16.288.085.35 
IPP 72.148.0 0.0 0.0 72,146.0 6.235 8.235 4.498.584.75 
OTHER 17.095.0 0.0 0.0 17.905.0 5.828 5.628 1,012675.25 
MKT BASEO 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.000 0.000 0.w 

384,349.0 0.0 24,896.0 338.353.0 6.424 6.424 21.709235.35 

SCH. J 
IPP 
OTHER 
MKT BASEO 

SCH. J 
IPP 
OTHER 
MKT BASED 

222.543.0 0.0 8,533.8 214.300.1 4.000 4.080 10,640,774.54 
102,327.0 0.0 0.0 102.327.0 4.800 4.899 5.013283.48 
20.851.0 0.0 0.0 20.851.0 5.430 5.430 1.132294.00 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.wo 0,000 0.00 
1 6.79525202 346.021.0 0.0 8,533.9 337.487.1 4.977 4.977 

216.268.0 0.0 21.804.2 ie4.4ei.8 6.078 6.078 11.820,04~.81 
95.024.0 0.0 0.0 85.024.0 2.483 2.483 2,358,447.W 
28.070.0 0.0 0.0 28.078.0 7.026 7.026 2.225.673.00 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.m OXIW 0.00 
0.0 21,8042 317,5648 5.iw 5.186 16,405.189.81 -. .. . .. . 339.368.0 



PURCHASED POWER 
EXC-USIVE OF ECONOMY AND QUALIFYING FACILITIES) 

SCHEDULE E7 
Page 2 of2 

TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY 
ESTIMATED FOR THE PERIOD JULY 2001 THROUGH DECEMBER 2001 

121 (3) i (5) B) 181 (9) 

MWH CENTSKWH TOTAL I 
TYPE TO FOR (AI (6) FOR FUEL 

PURCHASED e. MWH OTHER FUEL TOTAL ADJUSTMENT 
FROM SCHEDULE PURCHASED UTILITIES COST COST (IPWAl 

ESTIMATED 
Juldl 

ESTIMATED 
Augdl 

ESTIMATED 
Sew01 

ESTIMATED 
octal 

ESTIMATED 
Novd l  

ESTIMATED 
D B C 4 1  

Jan41 
THRU 
Decal  

VARIOUS 
HPP 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

VARIOUS 
HPP 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

VARIOUS 
HPP 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

VARIOUS 
HPP 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

VARIOUS 
HPP 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

VARIOUS 
HPP 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

VARIOUS 
HPP 
VARIOUS 
VARIOUS 
TOTAL 

- 

SCH. J 
IPP 
OTHER 
MKT BASEO 

SCH. J 
IPP 
OTHER 
MKT BASED 

SCH. J 
IPP 
OTHER 
MKT BASED 

SCH. J 
IPP 
OTHER 
MKT BASED 

SCH. J 
IPP 
OTHER 
MKT BASEO 

SCH. J 
IPP 
OTHER 
MKT BASED 

SCH. J 
IPP 
OTHER 
MKTBASEO 

14.757.0 0.0 8.600.0 6.148.0 0.504 0.504 584.300.00 
87.535.0 0.0 0.0 87.535.0 4.457 4.457 4.347.100.00 
48.343.0 0.0 0.0 48.303.0 0.033 8.033 4.363.303.00 
54.924.0 0.0 0.0 54.824.0 6.418 8.418 3,524.800.00 

215,519.0 0.0 8,808.0 206,810.0 6.106 8.196 12.819,MO.OO 

35.747.0 0.0 18,711.0 17.038.0 8,040 8.048 1,541 ,800.00 
124.338.0 0.0 0.0 124.338.0 4.458 4.458 5.54Z.BW.00 
44.451.0 0.0 0.0 44,451.0 8.300 0.300 4.137.800.00 
66.194.0 0.0 0.0 68,184.0 7.374 7.374 4,881.403.00 

270;128.0 0.0 18,711.0 252,017.0 8.300 8.390 16,103,700.00 

12257.0 0.0 7.684.0 4.583.0 7.640 7.640 350.0W.W 
83.480.0 0.0 0.0 83.460.0 4.532 4.532 3.783.2w.W 
83.001.0 0.0 0.0 63.891.0 6.744 6.744 4.31 5,800.00 
38.537.0 0.0 0.0 38.537.0 6.382 6.382 2,450.300.00 

198254.0 0.0 7.664.0 190,580.0 5.724 5.724 10,008,200.00 

11.812.0 0.0 7,308.0 4.304.0 7.642 7.642 328,800.00 
53,482.0 0.0 0.0 53.482.0 4.800 4.808 2.57Z.w0.W 
33.214.0 0.0 0.0 33.214.0 4.886 4.886 1.816.1 W.W 
24.481.0 0.0 0.0 34.481.0 6.438 6.438 2,220.1w.w 

132,788.0 0.0 7,308.0 125.d81.0 5.369 5.388 6,737,100.00 

2.802.0 0.0 1.925.0 084.0 7.645 7.645 73,70000 
28,764.0 0.0 0.0 28,764.0 5.218 5.218 1.5012w.00 
8.310.0 0.0 0.0 8,310.0 5.201 5.201 4322W.W 

28.418.0 0.0 0.0 25.418.0 5.322 5.322 I.4ffi.wO.W 
68,3640 0.0 1,928.0 64p56.0 5295 5395 3,413.100.00 

1.801.0 0.0 1,416.0 485.0 7.640 7.648 37,l W.W 
30.283.0 0.0 0.0 30.283.0 5.303 5.303 1.8ffi.5w.W 
4.484.0 0.0 0.0 4,494.0 5.401 5 401 242.700.00 
7.924.0 0.0 0.0 7.824.0 7.597 7.587 802.000.00 

44,612.0 0.0 1,418.0 43,196.0 5.780 5.780 2.4P.8.300.00 

1.147.1820 0.0 105.058.3 1.041.233.7 6.308 6.308 65.877.030.31 
801.2020 0.0 0.0 801,202.0 5.382 5.382 48.502.W.68 
280.688.0 0.0 0.0 268.688.0 7.223 7.223 18.478.54225 
228.478.0 0.0 0.0 228.478.0 6.806 6.6W 15.083.6W.W 

2,Ed6,680.0 0.0 105,958.3 2p(o,801.7 6.005 6.095 448,75160735 
. . .. 



Combustion Turbine 
Peaking Generation 

$75 

Generation 

$25 

Firm Purchased 
Power 

$100 

Purchased Power Agreement 
(Must Take) 

$125 



./ 

Base Load/Intemediate 
Generation 

$25 

Firm Purchased 
Power 

$70 

Purchased Power Agreement 
(Must Take) 

$20 



Base Load/Intermediate 
Generation 

$25 

. .. .. 

Purchased Power Agreement 
(Must Take) 

$125 



(R. 6/01) 
25-6.038 PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION v. 5, p. 238 

Commission any accident occurring in connection with any 
part of its transmission or distribution facilities which 

(a) Involves death or injury requiring hospitalization of 
nonutility persons; or 

@) Is significant from a safety standpoint in the judgment 
of the utility even though it is not required by (a). 

(6) Each public utility. rural electric cooperative, and 
municipal electric utility shall (without admitting liability) 
report each accident or malfunction, occurring in connection 
with any part of its transmission or distribution facilities, to 
the Commission within 30 days after it leams of the 
occurrence, provided the accident or malfunction: 

(a) Involves damage to the property of others in an 
amount in excess of $5ooO: or 

@) Causes significant damage in the judgment of the 
utility to the utility’s facilities. 

(7) Unless requested by the Commission, reports are not 
required with respect to personal injury, death, or property 
damage resulting from vehicles striking poles or other utility 

Spccifi Authority 350.127(2) FS. Law Implemented 366.04(2)(n, (6) 
FS. History--New 8-13-87, Amended 2-18-90, 11-10-93. 8-17-97, 

property. 

25-6.035 Adequacy of Resources 
(1) Each electric utility shall maintain sufficient 

generating capacity, supplemented by regularly available 
generating and non-generating resources, in order to meet all 
reasonable demands for service and provide a reasonable 
reserve for emergencies. Each electric utility shall also 
coordinate the sharing of energy reserves with other electric 
utilities in Peninsular Florida. To achieve an equitable 
sharing of energy reserves, Peninsular Florida utilities shall 
be ‘required to maintain, at a minimum, a 15% planned 
reserve margin. The planned and operating reserve margin 
standards established herein are intended to maintain an 
equitable sharing of energy reserves, not to set a prudent 
level of reserves for long-term planning or reliability 
pupses .  The planned reserve margin for each utility shall 
be calculated as follows: 

Rh4 = [(C - L)/Ll*lOO where; 
“W - Is defined as the utility’s percent planned 

reserve margin; 
“C” - Is defined as the aggregate sum of the rated 

dependable peak-hour capab s of the resources that- are 
expected to be available at the time of the utility’s annual 
peak: and 
“L” - Is defined as the expected f m  peak load of the 

system for which reserves are required. 
The following shall be utilized as the operating reserve 

standard for Peninsular Florida’s utilities: operating reserves 
shall be maintained by the combined Peninsular Florida 
system at a value equal to or greater than the loss of 
generation that would result from the most severe single 
generating unit conti The operating reserves shall be 
allocated among the s in proportion to each control 
area’s peak hour net energy for load for the preceding year, 
and the summer gross Florida Reliability Coordinating 
Council (FRCC) capability of its largest unit or ownership 
share of a joint unit, whichever is greater. Fifty percent shall 
be allocated on the basis of peak hour net energy for load 
and fifty percent on the basis of the summer gross FRCC 
capabili  of the largest unit. Operating reserves shall be 
fully available within fifteen minutes. At least 25% of the 
operating reserves shall be in the form of spinning reserves 

-. 
which are automaticallv reswnsive to a freauencv deviation 1 

J . .  . .  
from normal. 

(2) Tmtment of Purchased Power. Only fm purchase . ,  
power agreements may be included as a resource for 
purposes of calculating a planned or operating reserve 
margin. A utility may petition for waiver of this requirement 
based on the very high availability of specific non-firm . -  
purchases. 

(3) Treatment of Shared Generating Units. Only the utility 
wkch has first call on the generating unit may C O M t  the 
unit towards its planned or operating reserve margin. A 
utility has first call on a unit if the unit is available and the 
utility has the contractual right to dispatch the unit to meet 
its native load and other fm contractual commitments 
before any other party to the unit’s sharing arrangement. A 
utility may petition the Commission for approval of other 
methods demonstrating equivalent reliability on a case by 
case basis. 

(4) Treatment of N o n - F h  Load. If non-firm load (i.e., 
customers receiving service under load management, 
intermptible, curtailable, or similar tariffs) is relied upon by 
a utility when calculating its planned or operating reserves, 
the utility shall be required to make such reserves available 
to maintain the firm service requirements of other utilities. 

( 5 )  Buy-through Power for Intermptihle Customers. 
Intermption of service to non-firm customers is not an 
emergency. As such, a utility shall not be required to 
provide buy-through power for another utility’s intemptible 
customers under obligatory emergency interchange 
schedules. 
Specific Authority 366.05(1) FS. Law Implemented 366.03, 
366..04(2)(~), (5). 366.055 FS. HistowNew 7-29-69, Formerly 
25-6-35. Amended 9-5-%. 5-29-01. ._ 

25-6.036 Inspection of Plant. Each utility shall adopt a 
program of inspection of its electric plant in order to .,,: 
determine the necessity for replacement and repair. The ’ 
frequency of the various inspection shall be based on the 
utility’s experience and accepted good practice. Each utility 
shall keen sufficient records to eive evidence of comuliance - 
with its in\pwtion program. 
Specific Aulhorit) 366.0511, FS low Implrmentcd 366 04(21(0. (S), 
3660Si1,. 366 OSS. .MO.lM F.5 HLFIO~-NIL 7-29-69. bomrr ly  
25-6.36. 

25-6.037 Extent of System Which Utility Shall Operate 
and Maintain. Each utility, unless specifically relieved in 
any case by the Commission from such obligations, shall 
operate and maintain in safe, efficient, and proper condition. 
pursuant to the standards referenced herein, all of the 
facilities and equipment used in connection with the 
production, transmission, distribution, regulation, and 
delivery of electricity to any customer up to the point of 
delivery. The utility is also responsible for the safe, efficient 
measurement of electrical consumption consistent with test 
procedures and accuracies prescribed by the Commission. 
Specific Authority 366.05(1) FS. Law Implemented 366.03, 
366.04(6), 366.05(1), (3) FS. Histo-New 7-29-69. Amended 
4-13-80, Formerly 25-6.37. 

25-6.038 Change in Character of Service. If any 
changes are made by the utility in its existing service 
characteristics which would impair the safe, efficient 
utilization of energy by the customer’s equipment, the utility 
shall bear the cost of all changes necessary to adapt the 
customer’s equipment to the new service conditions so that 
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